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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Chairman's statement

Highlights 2006 2005 change
Revenue £2205 m £1948 m +13%
Operating profit* £438 m £393m +11%
Profit before tax £352m £344m +2%
Diluted earnings a share 418p Mi1p +23%
Adjusted diluted earnings a share® 286 p 263 p +9%
Dividend (including proposing dividend) 1700 p 1620 p +5%

+ Operating profit* exceeds £40m for first ime

+ Organic revenue growth drives profitabiity ugher

» Record cash generated from operations £60m

+ All business units contribute to improved performance

+ Capital Appreciation Plan continues to dnve growth

« £230m acquisition of Metal Bulletin completed post year-end

On October 5 your company announced that our recommended offer to acguire Metal Bulletin plc had gone
uncondtional, in a transaction that will transform the group into a much targer publishing company with revenues
approaching £300 millon and with 2,100 people worldwide - big enough to matter, but small enough to be nimble It
was by far our largest acquisition to date

We think the two will be a very good fit The culture of Metal Bullebn 15 very similar to ours Each has a strong
entrepreneunal streak, each demands commitment to quality of product, and each takes great pnde in investing for
growth

The products across the enlarged group include a range of ttles that carry great respect across the globe, excellent
branded events businesses, electronic information providers, BCA - an independent research business thatis a world
leader - and a marketing platform that should drive revenues into every business

The benefits we believe will flow from the merger of the two companies are cross-selling opportunities and revenue
synergies, international growth opportumities, particularly 1n emerging markets, a greater cniical mass to promote
increased electronic delivery of products, and significant operational cost efficiencies

The integration of Metal Bulletin 1s well under way and while it 1s too early to comment n detall, the company 1s
confident that the growth opportuniies and cost savings identified at the time of the acguisition are achievable We
have recrganised our management structure and inserted key Metal Bulletin people into it to buld a robust team to
drive future growth and to create new products, opering new career opporturities for all our people In the larger group

The acquisition was completed after a year in which Euromoney Institutional Investor broke all previous records for
revenues, profits and dividends On November 16 we reported that, excluding tming differences, underlying operating
profits® rose by a fifth in the year to September 30

Reported operating profits* were £43 8 million for the year to September 30, against £39 3 million for the previous year
Adjusted diluted earmings a share were 28 6p, against 26 3p in 2005, and the directors recommend a 5% wcrease in
the final dwidend to 11 6p, making a total for the year of 17 Op

These record results reflect further progress in the group’s strategy to build one of the world's leading international
business media groups All divisions achieved strong revenue growth, with group operating profit* exceeding £40
million for the first tme The group also benefited from record operating cash flows of £59 6 milhon wn 2006, after an
increase of £8 million in deferred subscription revenue

After another year of record performance, dniven by strong organic revenue growth across all dvisions, our objectives
remam the same to deliver continued top-ine growth from new and existing products, to diversify our revenues while
improving the operating margin, and to iInvest selectively n acquisibons that strengthen the company's market position

* Operating profit before acquired intangible amartisation, share option expense, exceptional items and share of results
n associates and joint ventures as set out in the income staternent

1 Diluted earnings per share before acquired intangibles amortization, exceptional dems, imputed interest on
acquisition option commitments and deferred tax assets recogrised, as set out In note 10
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Chairman's statement continued

TRADING BACKGROUND

Revenue Increased by 13% to £220 Smillon The trading environment has remamned good throughout the year, with financial
institutions continuing o benefit from a strong performance n almost every asset class Another year of bnsk M&A activity has helped
increase profitability for many of the group’s key customers, while ample higuidity within the secondary and private equity markets has
dnven capital flows and investment

Consistent with management's strategy, most of the growth in operating profil* has been generated organically The performance of
the print subscription titles has been partcularly pleasing, with subscriber numbers, subscnption rates and renewal rates all ahead of
the previous year This growth has been drven by the group’s continued investment in direct marketing, with spend increasing by
19% to £10 million in the year

Operating profits* from conferences and seminars were affected by iming differences two of IMN’s biggest events were run twice In
2005, but have since returned to their usual iming In the first quarter of 2007, this was partly compensated for by Adhesion's biennial
Vinisud wine exhibition which was held 1n 2006 Excluding these timing differences, underlying group operating profits® mcreased by
20% The training businesses have also been an important contnbutor to velume and margin imprevements, helped by the launch of
new courses

MARGIN

The group’s operating margin® was shghtly lower than last year at 19 9%, compared to 20 2% in 2005, due to tming differences on
some of the group’s largest events As expected, the positive benefit from operational gearing seen n 2005 moderated this year, as
the group continued to nvest tn the long-term sustanable growth of its businesses The focus remains on bulding high margin,
repeat annual revenues and the elimination of low margn products

BUSINESS REVIEW

Operating profits* from Financial Publishing increased by 17% to £13 1 million, as a result of strong growth n both adverhsing and
subscription revenues Nearly all titles increased profits Euromoney had an impressive year, achieving 17% growth in advertising
revenues and publishing its biggest IMF issue for ten years, Inshfutional Inveslor - International Edition ywmproved its performance
sharply on 2005, and the specialist bitles Euroweek and Project Finance delivered strong growth from advertising and new products

Business Publshing had a good year with operating profits* increasing by 25% to £6 8 million Encouragingly, this was a broad-based
improvement the US energy publications delivered record profits, the legal titles benefited from strong growth In subscription and
advertising revenues mncluding a record IFLR 1000 directory, and the transport and telecoms utles sharply increased profils by
dwersifying away from adverlising into new revenue streams

Operating profits* from Conferences and Seminars increased by 5% to £20 3 million and underlying profits, after adjusung for iming
differences, increased by 23% continuing the excellent growth record achieved over the past five years The continued interest in
alternative assets has supported revenue and profit growth, and most of the businesses achieved an increase In both the number of
events held and the average revenue per event, in ine with the group’s strategy 11 Memberships had an excellent year, with a record
number of members at year-end and subscription revenues increasing by 21% New membership organizations for private wealth
managers and legal and compliance officers are being launched in 2007 IMN continued to grow through the launch of successful
new events for the secuntzation and real estate markels

The Training businesses delivered operating profits* of £7 0 million, an increase of 13% and an all-time high The growth mainly came
from the volume of courses offered and an ncrease in the average yield The full year result 1s paricularly pleasing lo management
when compared to the half year, and reflects the decisive actions taken at that tme to improve performance, and an increase in
marketing mvestment

Operating profits® from Databases and Information Services mproved by 38% to £5 4 millon CEIC, consolidated from Apnl 2006,
conunues to perform ahead of its forecasts at acquisitton, and £05 million was invested in accelerating the roll out of CEIC's
economic data service to other emerging markets Revenue growth from IS, the emerging markets information provider, maintained
ts momentum, with a chent retention rate in excess of 90% The number of ISI customers, products and data providers all ncreased
during the year

CASH FLOW AND NET DEBT

Year-end net debt was £73 4 millan, down from £75 5 mion at the half year  While the lavel of debt 15 usually higher in the first half
following the payment of dividends and profit shares, net debt at year-end increased by only £7 0 mulion from 2005 This 1s after
investing £3 4 milion n the acquistion of Asia Business Forum, £19 7 million on the purchase of a 9% interest in Metal Bulletin, and a
further £14 5 million increasing the group's investments in IMN, IS| and CEIC under earn-oul agreements The significant gap
between what has been paid out and the increase In net debt has largely been met by the very strong cash generated from
operations of £59 8 million, demonstrating the robust organic performance of the business and reflecting a key strength of the group’s
business model In addiion deferred revenue at year end was £453 millon, against £37 5 milion at the end of 2005

* Operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation, share option expense, exceptional items and share of results in associates
and joint veniures as set out in the Income statement

Annual Report & Accounts 2006




Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Chairman's statement continued

MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE

Operating profit* exceeded £40 million for the first ime, reflecting further evidence of the benefits of the Capital Appreciation Plan This
mghly-geared equity Incentive was introduced to dnive profit** to a target of £50 million by 2008 against a basa of £21 million in 2003
Approximately 150 managers participate in this incentive which encourages investment In new products and directly rewards each
participant for the organic profit growth achieved by therr business

The non-cash cost of the CAP I1s being expensed over the Ife of the plan For 2006, the first full year of amortizing the CAP cost, an
expense of £4 3 million {2005 £1 3 million) has been charged

ACQUISITIONS
In March 2006, the group acquired a 47 5% stake in Asia Business Ferum, a leading business conference and training organizer in the
Astan region, for £3 4 million A further 42 5% interest will be acquired in 2007 under the earn-out agreement

In October 2006 the group acqured a 67% stake in Total Dervatives, a leading prowider of real-ime news and analysis about the
global fixed income derivatives markets, for £6 7 millon This 15 an exciting acquisition, taking the group further into the provision of
electronic snformation services and providing an excellent platform for the launch of new products The acquisition was funded from the
group s existing borrowing facility and 1s expected to be earnings enhancing in 2007

Euromoney's acquisihon of Metal Bulletin plc was declared unconditional on Oclober 5 2008, after the financial year-end The
acquisition cost of approximately £230 milion was funded by a mix of debl {£163 mithon) lean notes (£12 million) and up to 14 milhon
new shares (£55 million} The debt was prowded by a new £375 million three year mulli-currency facility in addition the company
assumed £14 miilion of Metal Bulletn net debt  The issue of new shares increased the Company’s 1ssued share capital by 16%, and
will significantly increase the free float in the company’s shares Daily Mail and General Trust plc now owns 61% of the company

The acquisition of Metal Bulletin is consistent with the group’s long-term strategy of bulding subscriphion and repeat revenues,
reducing 1is dependence on advertising revenue, investing further in growang financial information products, and establishing cntical
mass in non-financial Information preducts The tntegration of Metal Bulletin 1s underway, and while 1t1s too early to comment in detall,
the company I1s confident that the sigruficant growth opportunities and cost savings identified at the time of acquisition are achievable

DIVIDEND

The increase in the final dvidend 1s consistent with the company’s strategy of moving gradually to a divwdend cover of two imes, while
still delivering real dividend growth  The total payment to shareholders for the 2006 financial year will be £16 7 million, bnnging the
dividends returned to shareholders over the past five years to over £70 mitlion, all financed from operating cash flows

TAX

The group has traditionally had a low tax rate due 10 the tax amortization of goodwiil avallable on US acquisitions and the availability of
brought-forward tax losses for use against its US profits  In 20086, the group recognized a deferred tax credit of £13 6 mullion In respect
of US tax losses and tax deduchble US goodwill as the group’s US businesses are now expecled to generate faxable profits for the
foreseeable future After adjusting for this deferred tax credit, the group’s underlying tax rate was 27% against 28% in 2005 The
majonity of the group's tax losses and deferred tax assets have been recognized and the group's underlying tax rate for 2007 and
subsequent years is now expected o be at least 30%

QOUTLOOK

The company has benefited from a healthy financial environment in 2006, and any marked reversal in the performance of financial
markets in 2007 will present challenges However, the company's strategy has been to diversify its revenues while investing in the
quality of its products and services to ensure competiive advantage irrespective of the trading environment The opportumties that the
Metal Bulletin acquisition presents, along with the group’s continued organic growih, leave the company optimistic abeut its prospects
for 2007 For the new financial year, the first quarter 1s generally the least sigrificant in profit tlerms, and wisithlity for the second quarter
15 always Lmited at this stage However, current frading 1s encouraging, with advertising, sponsorship and delegate sales all ahead of
the same penod In 2005

Our people worked hard and well tgqproduce sugh a good result | thank thern on your behalf and mine | also thank the Board and
management of Metal Bulletin for gliftheir kmd‘ s and help following the success of the bid, and | welcome our new colleagues and
wish them well in handling the challgfigas and gpportunities that | believe he ahead

Padraic Failon I
Charrman
November 15 2006

L
* Operating profit before acquired intangible amorbisation, share option expense, exceptional tems and share of resulls in associates
and joint ventures as set out In the Income statement
** Profit before lax excluding acguired inlangibles amortization, share option expense, exceptional items and imputed interest on
acquisiion option commitments
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Directors’ report

The directors submit therr annual report and group accounts for the year ended September 30 2006

The directors’ report reflects the addiional requirements, effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after Aprit 1 2005, introduced in sections 234ZZA, 234ZZ8 and 234ZA to the Companies Act 1985 The
directors’ report has been prepared for the group as a whole and therefore gives greater emphasis to those
matters which are significant to Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC and its subsidiary undertakings when
viewed as a whole It has been prepared solely to provide additienal information 1o shareholders as a body to
asses the company's strategies and the polental for those strategies to succeed and that the directors’
report should not be relied upan by any other party for any other purpose

1 Prnincipal activities

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC 1s hsted on the London Stock Exchange and a member of the FTSE-
250 share index It 15 a leading international business-to-business media group focused primardy on the
international finance sector It publishes more than 100 magazines, newsletters and journals, including the
leading financial market titles Euromoney and Inshtutional Investor it also runs an extensive portfolio of
conferences, semnars and traning courses and 1S a leading provider of electronic information and data
covering international finance and emerging markets Its main offices are located In London, New York and
Hong Kong and nearly half its revenues and profits are dernived from the United States Details of the group's
legal entities can be found in note 13

2 Strategy
The group's strategy 1s

« to grow profits by driving top line growth from both new and existing products,

- to reduce the dependence on advertising by bullding more robust subscripbion and repeat revenues,

» to improve operating margins through revenue growth coupled with tight cost control, and

+ to make focused acquisitions that supplement the group’s existing businesses, that strengthen the
company's market position in key areas and that have the capacity for organic growth using the existing
knowledge base of the group,

To supplement this strategy the board set the group the objective to dnve profit* to a target of £50 mithon by
2008 against a base of £21 million in 2003

Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails

1 2 3 4

* Profit before tax excluding acquired intangible amortization, share option expense, exceptional tems and
imputed interest on acquisiion option commitments
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Directors' Re port continued

3 Business review

3 1 Group results and dividends

The group profit for the year atinbutable to shareholders amounted to £37 4 milhon (2005 £30 2 million} The direclors
recommend a final dvidend of 1168 pence per ordinary share (2005 110 pence), payable on Febryary 6 2007 to
shareholders on the register on November 24 2006 This, together with the interm dividend of 54 pence per ordinary
share {2005 5 2 pence) which was declared on May 17 2006 and paid on June 23 2006, brings the total dividend for the
year 1o 17 0 pence per ardinary share {2005 16 2 pence)

3 2 Key performance indicators

We implement and monitor our performance agamst the sirategy using the following key performance indicators
Performance in 2006 1s set oul in the table below, together wath prior year data

Annual Report & Accounts 2006

Revenue Mix Revenue Mix Revenue
2006 2006 2005 2005 growth
£000's % £000's % %
Revenue growth and mix

Advertising 58,589 27% 53,328 27% +9 9%
Sponsorship 37,176 1% 32,705 17% +137%
Subscrptions 56,300 25% 48,017 25% +17 3%
Delegates 57,442 26% 46,786 24% +22 8%
Other 9,123 4% 8,224 4% +10 9%
Closed businesses 1,846 1% 5772 3% (68 0%)
220,476 100% 194,832 100% +132%
2006 2005 Growth
Gross margin' 66 0% 67 4% {1 4%)
Operating margin® 19 9% 20 2% {0 3%)
Organic growth in profits® +£9 3m
Head count’ 1,680 1,543 147

Debt capacity® £200 4m £58 6m
Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails
1 2 3 4




Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Directors’ Report continued

Key performance indicators continued

City PBT®
City PBT®
2008 CAP Target
550 - £50m
500 ——
450 ———=
400 i
& 350 —
300 —
25 0
200
150 r T T T T T T )
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Year

1 Gross margin = gross profit as a percentage of revenue
Gross profit and revenue both as per note 4 In the financial statements

2 Operating margin = operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation, share ophion expense, exceptional items
and assocates and joint ventures as a percentage of revenue
Operating profit and revenue both as per the group income statement in the finanoial statements

3 Organic growth in profits = portion of operating profit growth that refates to organic growth
Operating profit 15 from continuing operations so excludes closed businesses and Is adjusted for significant tming in
events and publications

4 Headcount = number of permanent people employed at the end of the penod mcluding people employed n associales
and joint ventures

5 Additional debt capacity = the maximum amount available for drawdown from the borrowings facility as at September,
30 as restncted by the current borrowing covenants less amounts drawn down to date

6 City PBT = Profit before tax excluding acquired intangible amoruzation, share option expense, excephonal items and
imputed interest on acquisibon option commitments

3 3 KPI's explained

The key performance indicators show that the group 15 on track to achieving our strategy These are discussed n detail
in the Chairman's statement on pages 2 to 4, and below This should be read in conjunction with the additional
nformation on the development of the business of the group which 15 set out below

Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails

1 2 3 4
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Directors' Report continued

3 4 Doevelopment of the business of the group

3 4 1 Financial results

Thig 1s the first year the group has reported its results under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) As a
result, there are additonal narratives and disclosures, changes in format and more technical information given in the
report and accounts compared to pravious UK GAAP disclosures Comparative mformation for 2005 was restated as
set out In the group's prelminary restatement document In March 2006 which s avalable on
www euromoneyplc com/reports/IFRS_Restatement _ 2005 pdf and 1s republished in the back of these accounts

A detailed review of the group’s resulls 1s grven in the Chairman’s statement on pages 2to4

3 4 2 Finance costs

IAS 39 ‘Financial Instrumants Recogniion and Measurement' requires an imputed interest charge to be recognised on
the group's future acquisition payments under option agreements This additional finance cost increased the group’s
interest cost by £0 9m Excluding this, the group's net finance cost decreased from £3 8 million to £3 6 million, the
group benefiting from its treasury policy of fixing the interest rate on part of its long-term borrowings (see treasury
saction below)

34 3 Headcount

The number of people employed 1s monitored monthly, on a business-by-business and region-by-region basis to
ansure that there are sufficient people employed to meet the forthcoming demands of each business and to make sure
that the businesses continue to deliver sufficient results to support the people they employ At the end of September
the group employed 1,690 people (2005 1,543 peocple), an increase of 147, with the reduction of heads from the sale
of Mondiale, the restructuning of Adheston and the closure of Euromoney Business Meelings offset by addrtional
employees across our growing businesses, the more significant increases at Informaton Management Network,
HedgeFund Inteligence, Internet Securities, Inc . Asia conferences, and CEIC as well as acquired heads through the
Telcap acquisitton

3 4 4 Debt and working capital management

The group’s net increase 1n cash and cash equivalents was £2 3 million (2005 £1 7 millon) Net debt at September 30
2006 was £73 4 milion (2005 £66 4 milion} which includes cash of £27 5 million (2005 £25 1 milion} A discussion on
debt 15 contained within the Charman’s statement on page 4 Dunng August 2006 the group signed a new three year
£375 milion committed credit facility with Daily Mail and General Trust ple to enable the refinancing of the group's
existing borrowings and 1o provide sufficient funds for the purchase of Metal Bulletin plc The new facility replaced the
exising Dailly Mail and General Trust plc five year committed banking facility Al September 2006 there were £200 4
million (2005 £58 6 million) of committed undrawn amounts directly available to the group

3 4 5 Balance shoat

The net habllites of the group fell £92 millon to £26 & million (2005 £36 0 million) The man movements in the
balance sheet lems were in intangible assets, reflecting the recognition of £56 million of goodwill following the
acquisilion of RussiaDeal, the further 10% instalment of IMN and the increased equity holdings in 151 and CEIC offset
by the sale of Mondiale, property plant and equipment, ncreasing £39 milion to £14 6 milion, a result of the UK
property move, investments up £18 7 million to £25 8 milkon due to the imtial 9% tranche of Metal Bulletin plc shares,
ABF and CEIC acquisitions, deferred tax assets up £13 1 millon to £22 9 mithon, a result of full recogrition of US tax
deductble goodwill, and acguisition option commitments of £24 3 milhon which are required to be recognised on the
balance sheet for the first ime this year under IAS 39 'Financial Instruments Recogmition and Measurement'

3 4 6 Acquisitions

Acquisiions remain a fundamental part of the group's growth strategy and are key to the group reaching its £50 milhon
profit target In 2008  In parhicular we believe that acquisilions are valuable for taking us into new publishing sectors, for
bnnging new technologles into the group and for increasing the group’s overall growth through identifying rapidly
developing niche businesses

in March 2006, the group signed an agreement to acquire 47 5% of Asia Busmess Forum ("ABF"), a leading
conference organiser and traming business for the Asian region ABF produces mare than 150 events a year from s
three offices in Singapore, Kuala Lumpur and Bangkok The events altract more than 1,500 speakers and nearly 5,000
axecutives across Asia The pnce for the inibal 47 5% tranche is £3 0 millan In addition, Euromoney has an option to
acquire a further 42 5% 1n March 2007 and the final 10% after 2009 These further payments are dependent on the
audited profits of ABF for the years to December 31 2006, and 2009 or later, respectively The maximum consideration
payable for 100% of ABF 1s capped al £17 6 milion The acquisition Is eamings-enhancing for Euromoney for is
financial year ended September 30 2006

Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails

1 2 3 4
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Directors’ Report continued

Business review continued

3 4 6 Acquisitions continued

ABF was launched 1n Singapore 1in 1992 by Norman Wright and Linda Yeap, ABF's former shareholders
Its evenls cover a range of subjects including finance, law, energy, pharmaceuticals, telecoms and
aviation Norman Wnight will stay with ABF until the end of 2006 as a director and consultant Linda Yeap
will be managing dwector of ABF until at least the end of 2009

In July 2006, the group, through Internet Securities, Inc (151} purchased substantially all of the assets of
RussiaDeal LLC's financial deal information business based in Moscow RussiaDeal has developed and
operates an onlne deal database focusing on the Russian, CIS and Eastern Eurcpean markets, and
publishes a weekly dea! newsletter The maximum consideration payable 1s capped at $500,000

RussiaDeal, which was founded in 2003, compiles detalls on financial transactions throughout Russia
and its neighbouring countries including mergers and acquisitions, equity capital markels, private equity
and venture capital aclvibes The company also produces a weekly newsletter reporting on major
mergers, acquisitions and other deals in the region  The customers include the leading investment banks
and private equity fund management companies in Russia and abroad

RussiaDeal 1s the acknowledged record keeper for transaction and deal data in Russia and the CIS
They are especially good at tracking important deals that escape the radar of less focused information
compames |S| will leverage and integrate this data within our ISI products making our Emerging Market
Information Service the definiive resource for this type of data in Russia and CIS countries

The group continues to Increase its holdings in its associates and subsidianies and this year has paid the
following

In February 2006 the group paid the third 10% nstaiment of $14 2m for Informaton Management
Network, Inc the 80% owned financial conference organiser purchased in February 2004

Also in February 2008, the group purchased a further 1% of the equity share capital of 18I for a cash
consideration of $4 2m bringing the group's holding to 92%

In July 2008, the group, through ISI, paid the second instalment of $7 4m for CEIC Holdings Limited, one
of the leading providers of time-sernes macro-economic dala covenng Asia, increasing our investment in
its equity share capital by 25% and bringing our total holding to 74%

Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails

5 6 7 8
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Directors' Report continued

3 4 7 Marketing and circulation

in 2006 revenues generated from direct marketing campaigns have grown 14% Subscriptions on all of
our key tlles are up, as are pad delegates across the majority of our events businesses These
significant improvements in marketing have been driven by better use of on-line marketing techniques
mcluding Search Engines Optimization and paid for Search Marketing Additionally, much work has been
done n 2006 on enhancing the markeling database, Eden, with new names and adding more
information to customer data Delegate marketing continues to improve through better targeting and
combining print and electronic marketing channels In addition, on-line subscnptions, have grown
significantly for our tradibional prnnt products, primarily by upselling print based renewals to electronic site
deals

3 4 8 Systems and information technology

The company continues to nvest n its [T infrastructure Dunng the year new desktop computers were
rolled out across the orgamsation and an updated emall system was mmplemented New secure
connectivity software was nstalled to provide staff with remote access to our office-based systems from
anywhere in the world

The move nto new London office space was completed during the year with wireless networks
implemented In all buldings enhancing the existing high-speed network A new external network was
also rolled out linking the company's main offices in Europe, North Amerca and Asia The company
continued to rationalise telecom services over the year delivering significant cost savings

In 2006 disaster recovery and business continuity plans for all businesses were updated The company
has an active programme for testing the disaster recovery plans for all business units

At the beginning of the year the company's websiles were transferred to a dedicated, high-availlabiity
hosting centre Many sites were re-launched dunng 2006 with fresh designs and updated technologies
New e-commerce mfrastructure will be implemented during 2007 to help support our growing online
revenues

3 4 9 Tax and treasury

Comrmittee

The group's tax and ftreasury committee normally meets twice a year and 1s responsible for
recommending policy to the board The committee 1s attended by the charman and managing director
of the company, and the finance director and the deputy finance director of Daily Mail and General Trust
plc The charman of the audit committee 1s also invited to attend the tax and treasury meetings The
group’s treasury policies are directed to giving greater certainty of future costs and revenues and
ensuring that the group has adequate hguidity for working capital and debt capacity for funding
acquisitions

Treasury
The treasury department does not act as a profit centre, nor does 1t undertake any speculative frading
actvity and 1t operates within policies and procedures approved by the board

interest rate swaps and caps are used to manage the group’s exposure to fluctuations in interest rates
on its floating rate borrowings The maturity profile of these denvatives 1s matched with the expected
future debt profile of the group The group’s policy Is to fix the interest rates on approximately 80% of its
term debt looking forward over five years At September 30 2008, the group had 89% of its net debt
fixed by the use of interest rate hedges, management beginning to put In place additional interest rate
swaps 1o cover the debt required for the purchase of Metal Bulletin plc  As long-term rates are usually
higher than short-term rates this hedging strategy has the effect of increasing the interest charge, but it
does provide protection against increases in market rates

9 10 11 12

Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Directors' Report continued

3 4 9 Tax and treasury continued

The group 1s exposed to foreign exchange nsk in the form of transactions in foreign currencies entered
o by group companties and by the translation of the results of foreign subsidianes into sterling for
reporing purposes The group does not hedge the translatien of the resulis of foreign subsidianes, but
does endeavour to match forexgn currency borrowings to Investments in order lo provide a natural hedge
for the translation of the net assets of overseas subsidianes

Approximately 80% of the group’s revenues are In US dollars  Subsidianes normally do not hedge
transactions in foreign currencies nto the functional cumency of ther own operatons However, at a
group level a senes of US dollar forward contracts 1s put in place up to 48 months forward partally to
hedge its dollar revenues into sterling

Details of the financial instruments used are set out In note 17 to the accounts

Tax

The group's effective tax rate decreased to a negatve (10%) (excluding the efiect of goodwill
amortisation and exceptional tems) compared to 7% in 2005 The tax rate is significantly lower than the
expected rate at intenm and for 2005 due to, the recegrition of a further deferred tax asset of £13 6
million mn respect of tax deductble US goodwill and US tax losses as the group's US businesses
continue to generate significant taxable profits If the effect of this asset recognition 1s stnpped out, the
underlying tax rate 1s 28% This s higher than the rate forecast at interim due to a change in the mix of
profits as between the US and UK groups Now that the majonty of profit and loss account affecting
deferred lax assels have been fully recogmsed, the group’s undertying tax rate in 2007 and subsequent
years 1s expected to be above 30%

The total deferred tax balance he'd is an asset of £4% 8 milion (2005 full year £8 8 millicn) As noted
above this balance relates to tax deductible US goodwill and US federal tax losses as well as UK short
term timing differences and the future deductions available for the CAP scheme

There Is an unrecogmised US deferred tax asset of £6 0 million in total This relates to US state and city
tax losses {£0 7 million), and the 1AS 39 liability 1n respect of the group's obligations under the put option
held by IMN’s mingnty shareholders (£5 3 milion)

4 Risk management
The company has continued to develop its processes for nsk management Management of significant
nsk 1s regularly on the agenda of the board and other semior management meetings In particular this
year, we have refocused our internal audit work to align much more closely with the respective nsks
within the businesses

Specific nsk areas that potentially could have a matenal impact on the group's long-term performance

London or New York wide disaster

The group has its man offices located in London and New York An area wide disaster s hkely to have
senous consequences for the group, with office space potentially becoming unusable for several months
and lack of sutable alterative accommaodation, loss of key clients and staff in affected area and difficult
commumications with both customers and staff As a consequence of the above, loss of revenue

To mitigate this nsk we have detalled disaster recovery (DR) plans for all businesses All employees can
work from home or an intemet café and are aware of how to do this We penodically test our DR plans
We have robust systems In place with key locations {including the UK & US) benefiing from dual
locations of back ups, dual loading of ive back ups for key systems and third party 24-hour support

Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails
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Directors’ Report continued

4 Risk management confinued

Libel

The group generates a significant amount of its revenue from publishing and hence has an inherent libel
risk A successful ibel clam 1s ikely to affect our reputation in the market place where the libel claim
arose andfor where the publication was published As & consequence the group could suffer a loss of
advertising and other add-on revenue streams

To mitigate this risk we have mandatory annual libel courses for all journalists and editors Key staff are
aware of the significant nature of the nsks and we have strong internal controls on reporting to senior
management If a polential issue anses

Incorrect circulation claims

The group publishes over 100 tles and publications and salls advertising into these partly based on
circulation figures An incorrect claim for arculation could adversely affect our reputation in the applicable
market place with a potential knock-on effect for other unrelated titles within the group As a consequence
this could lead to the permanent loss of advertisers and other revenue streams

To mitigate this nisk the group undertakes rolling annual audits and regularly monitors internal controls
designed to cover circulaton Detaled guidance Is provided to all relevant employees and ther
understanding of the rules 15 regularly monitored There are a large number of mutually exclusive titles
and 1t 15 unlikely that an incorrect circulation claim, should 1t anise, would affect the crculation of other
tittes wathin the wider group

Poor choice of acquisition

Part of the group's strategy 1s to be acquisitive We review a number of potential acquisiions each year
with only a small proportion of these going through to due diligence stage and possible subsequent
purchase The group could pay too much for a business f, post acquisition, an acguired business does
not generate the expected returns or fail to operate Or grow In the necessary markets and products areas
to support the purchase price The risks of the acquire entity may be misunderstood As a consequence a
significant amount of management tme could be diverted from other aoperational matters

To miugate this sk senior experienced management perform detaled due diigence Acquisition
agreements are usually structured so as to retain key employees in the acquired company and there 15
close monitoring of performance of the entity concerned post acquisition

Downturn in economy or market sector

The group generates significant income from certain key geographical regions and market sectors for
both its publishing and events businesses Should there be a downturn or collapse in one of these areas
income is likely 1o be adversely affected and for events businesses some abandonment costs may also
be incurred

However, the group has a strong product mix and operates In multiple geographical locatons which
reduces dependency on any one sector or region Management have, n the past, a proven ability to
adapt to new unaffected markets, (e g SARS outhreak in Asia and terrorist attacks in New York)

Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails
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Directors' Report continued

4 Risk management continued

Technological change

The internet 1s becoming an ever increasing important revenue stream for the group and with this comes
nsk The internet has the potential to erode hard copy advertising, subscribers could switch to electronic
copies of products, and the demand for delivering on-line training could become the norm

The group 1s already embracing these challenges. and, overall, views the intemmet as an opporunity
rather than a threat Many of our busmnesses already produce soft copies of 1ssues to supplement the
hard coples We have several internet sites that may also benefit from such a change as well as a daly
email business that1s being developed While the internet 1s an impertant toel to our revenue generating
ability, our product mix provides protection for any potential unforeseen problems, for example, our
share of profit from gvent businasses s growing, with tace-to-face meetings of increasing importance

Liquidity risk

The group has significant bank and intercompany borrewings and 1s an approved borrower under a Daily
Mail and General Trust plc £375 million revolving multi-currency facility This faciity requires the group to
meet certan covenants based on net debt and profits adjusted for certan non-cash tems Failure to do
so would result in the group being In breach of the faciity potentally resuling in the faciity being
withdrawn Management regularly monitor the covenants and prepare detalled debt forecasts to ensure
that sufficient headroom 1s available and that the covenants are not close or potentially clase to breach
The debt capacity avaliable to the group I1s given in the KPI section of this directors report The group's
objective s lo use excess operating cash generaled to pay down the debt The group has a cash
conversion (the percentage by which cash generated by operations covers operating profit} of over
100%, due to much of its subscrption, advertising, conference and traning revenue being pad In
advance, as such the directors have no reason 10 believe that the debl 1s not serviceable

Interest rate risk

The group's borrowings are in both pounds sterling and US dollars with the related interest tied to US
and UK LIBOR This results in the group's interest charge being at nsk to fluctuations in interest rates It
15 the group's pehcy to hedge approximately 80% of its interest exposure, swapping its floating rate debt
into fixed debt by means of interest rate swaps Long-lerm rates are usually higher than short-term rates
this hedging strategy has the effect of increasing the interest charge, but it does provide protection
against increases i market rates Detals of the group's interest rate swaps are given in note 17

Foreign currency nsk

The group 15 exposed to foreign exchange nsk i the form of transactons in foreign currencies entered
into by group companies and by the translaton of the results of foreign subsidiaries into sterling for
reporiing purposes

The group does not hedge the translation of the results of foreign subsidianes, consequently,
fluctuations in the value of pounds sterling versus cummencies could matenally affect the amount of these
ttems n the consolidated financial statements, even if ther values has not changed in their onginal
currency The group does endeavour to match foreign currency borrowings to investments in order to
provide a natural hedge for the translation of the net assets of overseas subsidianes

Approximately 60% of the group's revenues are in US dollars At a group level a senes of US dollar
forward contracts 1s put in place up to 48 months forward partally to hedge its dollar revenues into
sterling The timing and value of these forward contracts is based on managements estimate of its future
US dollar revenues over a 48 month penod and 1s regularly reviewed and revised with any changes in
estimates resulting in either additional forward contracts being taken out or existing contract's matunty
dates being moved forward or back In addition, each subsidiary Is encouraged to nvoice sales in their
tocal functional currency where possible Details of the group’s forward contracts are given in note 17

Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails Thumbnails
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Directors’ Report continued

5 Social Responsibility
The group continues to participate and develop its mvolvement in the community

The group provides specific paid graduate tranee programmes and internships with the polential for long-lerm
career opportuniies within the orgamization This year we have expanded our graduate tranee program and
attended recruitment farrs at University College London, School of Oniental and Afnican Studies and the Guardian
Summer Recruitment Fair This has enabled us to increase the number of graduate trainees employed

The group remains a keen supporter of local and international chanties and regularly provides sponsorships and
funds to support these

Indian eye chnic

The group has set itself a big charity challenge for the coming year in addition to our usuat annual gving With the
full support of the board it has set out to raise £188,000 to bulld a paediatric eye clinic 1 India which wll save the
sight of 15,000 children a year This will be in partnership with the Kalinga Eye Hospital in central Orissa, one of the
poorest regions in India We will work wath the chanty Orbis, whose role is to restore the sight of people in poor
countnes

The group will give £50,000 directly to this project, in addition to its usual chanty budget, and the rest will be raised
through staff fund-raising and from other inhatives Every Euromoney person has been asked to help, and each
profit centre has been invited to pledge a certain amount The response has been very enthusiastic, with group
employees at every office in the world volunteering to help The group's customers will also be asked to donate to
the cause It 1s expected that the employees who have done the most will be awarded field trips to see the work of
the climic at first hand The project will be the first where all group employees are invited to take part In a single
project

6 Future developments in the business

An indication of the trading outlook for the group I1s given in the Charman's statement on page 4 In 2007 the
drectors will begin the integration and restructure of Metal Bulletin (see seclion 14) releasing the synergies from a
mare efficient enlarged group The directors are already putting in place certain derivalive instruments to protect the
group aganst the additonal foreign exchange nsk and interest rate nsk exposure and to bring the enlarged group In
line with the staled tax and treasury committee policies (see section 3 4 9) The directors will continue to review the
portfolio of businesses, disposing, closing or restructuring any under-performing businesses alloming the group to
have the necessary resources and skills to remain acquisiive for potential future acquisitions The group will
contnue to invest in technology, particutanly web based products and publication delivery systems

7 Directors and therr interests

The directors who served during the year are listed on pages 17 to 18 The directors’ interests are given on page
39 Followmng best practice under corporate governance and in accordance with the company's Articles of
Association, all executive directors submit themselves for re-efection at least every three years Accordingly, PR
Ensor, DC Cohen, CR Jones, and RT Lamont, will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election Also, as required by best practice under corporate governance, all non-
executive directors who have served for more than three three-year terms must submit themselves for re-election
on an annual basis Accordingly, JC Botts, CJF Sinclar, and JP Willlams will retire at the forthcorming Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election

in addition, as required by the Articles of Association, Sir Patrick Sergeant, being over the age of 70, will retire at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election Detalls of the interests of
the directors in the ordinary shares of the company and of options held by the directors to subscribe for ordinary
shares in the company are set out In the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 27 to 40
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Directors' Re port continued

8 Significant shareholdings
At November 14 2006, being the latest practical date before approval of the accounts, notification had been receved of the following
interests of 3% or more in the company's ordinary share capital

Number %
Daily Maill General Holdings Limited 62,147,624 606
HSBC Global custody nominee UK Limited 3,230,621 32

Banque Internationale 4 Luxembourg SA has issued international depesitary receipts in bearer form in respect of a total of 1,362,800
shares {1 5%) registered in its name

8 Authority to purchase own shares
The company’s authonty to purchase up to 10% of its own shares expires at the conclusion of the company’s next Annual General
Meeting A resolubion to renew this authonity for a further period will be put to shareholders at this meeting

10 Poltical and charitable contnbutions
During the year the group raised chantable contributions of £205,000 (2005 £292,000) There were no political contributions in

either year

11 Disabled employees

It 1s the group’s policy to give full and fair consideration to applications for employment from people who are disabled, to continue,
wherever possible, the employment of, and to arrange appropnate traning for, employees who become disabled, and to provide
opportunities for the career development, training and promotion of disabled employees

12 Employee involvement and traimng

The group believes It 1s important to provide skills and management training of its employees around the world We continue to
develop these programmes and try to ensure that as many of our employees as possible benefit from internal and external training
We are continually developing and expanding the traiming programmes prowvided

The group recognizes the importance of good communication in relationships with its staff This 1s pursued in a number of ways,
including training and regular meetings between management and staff, which seek to achieve common awareness on the part of all
employees of the financial and economic circumstances affecting the group’s performance Many employees participate directly in
the success of the business through volvement in the group's profit sharing schemes, the Capital Appreciatton Plan and in the
savings related share option scheme

13 Suppher payment policy

Each Euromoney Instilutional Investor business agrees payment terms with its suppliers on an individual basis and it 1s group policy
to make payments In accordance with these terms The group had 62 days of purchases in creditors at September 30 2006 (2005
57 days)
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Directors' Report continued

14 Post Balance sheet event

On August 4 2006, Euromoney announced the terms of a recommended cash offer for Euromoney
Institutional Investor (Ventures) Limited, a subsidiary of the company, to acquire the entire ordinary
share capital of Metal Bulletin Plc The offer document setting out the full terms of the offer was posted
to Metal Bulletin Shareholders on August 31 2006

All of the conditions of the offer have been satisfied and the offer was declared unconditional on October
5 2006

Under the terms of the offer, Metal Bulletin shareholders received 400 pence in cash for every Metal
Bulletin share held The offer valued the 1ssued ordinary share capilal of Metal Bulletin at approximately
£225 milhon

A partial share alternative was made avalable which allowed Meta! Bulletin shareholders to elect to
receive any proportion of the consideration in new Euromoney shares subject to not more than 14 million
new Euromoney shares beng issued For the purposes of the partial share alternative, each
consideration share had an assumed value of 394 75 pence which was Euromoney's closing share price
on July 25 2006, the last business day before the announcement made by Euromoney of the final
proposed recommended offer for Metal Bulletin The partial share alternative was oversubscnbed and
the maximum number of Euromoney shares were 1ssued on October & 2006, bringing the total issued
share capital to 102 4 milion shares

A loan note alternative was also made avallable Shareholders were entitled to elect to receive, for every
£1 of cash consideration, £1 nominal value of loan notes The loan notes will bear interest from the date
of 1ssue payable every six months in arrears on June 30 and December 31 in each year, at 0 75 per cent
below LIBOR per year The loan notes are redeemable at par on interest payment dates commencing on
June 30 2007 Any loan notes outstanding on December 31 2016 will be redeemed at par on that date

At October 24 2006 Euromoney was the beneficial owner of 97 2% of the i1ssued ordinary share capital
of Metal Bulletin Metal Bulletin sharehalders opting for the loan note alternative represent 5 2% of Metal
Bulletin's share capital Accordingly it 1s estmated that the cash component of the offer will be
approximately £157 milion

Metal Bulletin's balance sheet at the date of acquisition 1s set out in note 14

15 Annual General Meeting
The company's Annual General Meeting will be held on February 1 2007

16 Auditors
A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP as the company's auditor wil be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting

17 Disclosure of information to auditors
In the case of each of the persons who are directars of the company at November 15 2006

. 50 far as each of the directors 15 aware, there 13 no relevant audit information (as defined in the
Companies Act 1985) of which the company's auditors are unaware, and

. each of the directors has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a diwector to make
himselffherself aware of any relevant audit information (as defined) and to establish that the company's
auditors are aware of the informaton

By order of the board
Colin Jones

Company Secretary '
November 15 2006
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Directors and Advisors

Executive Directors

Chairman
Mr PM Fallon {aged 60)1s chairman He joined the company in 1974 and was appointed an executive director in
Oclober 1975 He was appointed managing director in 1985, chief executive in 1989 and charrman in 1992 He
is charman of the nominations committee He 1s also an executive director of Daily Mail and General Trust plc, a
non-executive director of Alled Insh Banks pic and a member of the board of the Tnmity College Dublin
Foundation

Managing Director

Mr PR Ensor (aged 58) 1s the managing director He jomed the company in 1976 and was appointed an
executive director In 1983 He was appointed managing director in 1992 and 1s a member of the nominations
commitiee He 1s also a director of Internet Secunties, Inc

Mr NF Osborn (aged 57) joined the company in 1983 and was appointed an executive director m February
1988 He 1s the publisher of Euromoney He 1s also a director of OAO RBC Information Systems, a Russian
public company

Mr DC Cohen (aged 49) jomned the company In 1984 and was appointed an executive director In September
1989 He is managing director of the training division

Mr CR Brown (aged 52) jomed the company in 1982 and was appointed an executive director in September
1989 He is based in the United States and president of Institutional Investor, Inc

Mr CR Jones {aged 46) 1s the finance director He joined the company in July 1996 and was appointed finance
director in Novernber 1996 He 1s alsa the company secretary, a director of Institutional Investor, Inc, fnformation
Management Network, Inc and internet Secunties, Inc

Mr SM Brady (aged 41) joined the company in 1988 and was apponted an executive director (n May 1999 He s
managing director of Euromoney

Mr RT Lamont (aged 59) joined Institutional Investor, Inc in 1976 and was appomnted an executive director in
May 1999 He 1s editor of Institutional Investor's newsletter division and a director of Institutional Investor, Inc

Ms D Alfano {aged 50) joined Institutional Investor, Inc 1n 1984 and was appointed an executive director in July
2000 She 1s managing director of Institutional Investor's conference division and a director of Institutional
Investor, Inc and Information Management Network, Inc

Mr G Mueller (aged 40) 1s charman of Internet Secunties, Inc (ISI), which he founded in 1924 Euromoney
acquired ISI n 1999, at which point Mr Mueller joined the company He was appointed an executive director In
July 2000 He 1s also a director and charman of Information Management Network, Inc

Mr MJ Carroll (aged 49) joined Institutiona! Investor, Inc in 1994 and was appointed an executive director In
May 2002 He Is the edior of institutional Investor and a director of Institutional Investor, Inc

Mr CHC Fordham (aged 46) joined the company in 2000 and was appointed an executive director in July 2003
He 1s the director responsible for the company's legal and energy publishing businesses and 15 a director of
HedgeFund Inteligence Limied and TelCap Limted He 1s also the director responsible for acquisitions

Annual Report & Accounts 2006

17



Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Directors and Advisors continued

Non-executive Directors

The Viscount Rothermere (aged 38) was appomnted a non-executive director in September 1998 and 15 a
T member of the remuneration and nomination commitiees He 1s chairman of Dally Mall and General Trust plc and
a non-executive director of Fleming Mercantile Investment Trust PLC

Sir Patrick Sergeant (aged 82) i1s a non-executive direclor and president He founded the company in 1969 and
1§ was managing director until 1985 when he became charrman He retired as chairman in September 1992 when he
was apponted president and non-executive director He 1s a member of the audit and nominations committees

Mr CJF Sinclair (aged 58) was appointed a non-executive director in November 1985 and is a member of the
remuneration and nominaticns committees He 1s chief executive of Daily Mail and General Trest pic and a non-
11 executive director of SVG Caputal plc

Mr JP Williams (aged 53} was appointed a non-executive director in June 1891 and 1s a member of the audit
committee He is finance director of Daily Mail and General Trust plc and a non-execulive director of GCap Media
§ plc

Mr JC Botts (aged 65) was apponted a non-executive director in December 1992 and 1s charman of the audit
and remuneration commitiees and a member of the nominations committee He i1s charman of Botts & Company

11§ Limited and LongAcre Partners Lid , and a non-executive director of United Business Media Plc

Mr JC Gonzalez (aged 61) was appointed a non-executive director in November 2004 He 1s chairman and chief
executive of Amencan Onent Capital Partners Holdings Limited, an investment and financial adwisary services firm
based in Hong Kong covenng the Asia Pacific region He is also a director of a number of publicly hsted
compamies In the Philippines, including IPVG Corporation, Philweb Corporation, 'SM Communications
Corporation, and Southeast Asia Cement Holdings Inc (a subsidiary of Lafarge SA) Previously he was vice
chairman and president of the Philippine Intemational Trading Corporation (the trading amm of the Philippine
Government), Special Trade Negotator of the Ministry of Trade and Industry of the Philippines (with the equivalent
rank of Deputy Miruster), and managing director of Shearson Lehman Brothers {Asia}, Inc

1 member of the remuneration committee

1 member of the nominations committee

§ member of the audit committee

President Sir Patrnick Sergeant

Company Secretary CR Jones

Registered Office Nestor House, Playhouse Yard, London EC4V 5EX

Registered Number 954730

Auditors Deloitte & Touche LLP, London

Solicitors Nabarro Nathanson, Lacon House, Theobald's Road, London WC1X 8RW
Stockbrokers UBS, 1 Finsbury Avenue, London EC2M 2PP

Depositary Bangue Internationale & Luxembourg SA, 69 route d’Esch, 2953 Luxembourg
Agents of the Depositary

Citicorp Investment Bank (Switzerland), Bahnhofstrasse 63, PO Box 224, CH 8021 Zurich
Citbank NA, Cittbank House, 336 Strand, London WC2R 1HB

Registrars Capita IRG plc, Northem House, Woodsome Park, Fenay Bndge, West Yorkshre, HD8 OLA
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Corporate Governance

The Financial Reporting Council's Combined Code on corporate governance 15 part of the Listng Rules of
the Financial Services Authority The paragraphs below and in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
pages 27 to 40 set out how the company has applied the principles laid down by the Code The company
has substantially complied with the Code, save for the exceptions disclosed In the directors’ comphance
statement on page 26

Directors

The board and its role

Detarls of directors who served during the year are set out on pages 17 to 18 The board comprises the
chairman {Mr PM Fallon), managing director (Mr PR Ensor), 10 other executive directors and six non-
executive directors Two of the six non-executive direclors are independent, one I1s the founder and ex-
charman of the company, and the other three are also directors of Daly Mail and General Trust plc, an
intermediate parant company There are clear dwisions of responsibility within the board such that no one
indvidual has unfettered powers of decision The board although large does not consider itself to be
unwieldy and believes it 1s beneficial to have representatives from all key areas of the business at board
meetings There 1s a procedure for all directors i the furtherance of therr duties lo take independent
professional advice, at the company's expense They also have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary All directors submit themselves for re-election at least once every three years Newly
appointed direclors are submitted for election at the first avallable opportunity after their appointment

The board meets every two months and there Is frequent contact between meetings Board meetings {ake
place in London and New York, and occastonally in other locations where the group has operations The
board has delegated specific aspects of the group’s affairs, each of which operates within defined terms of
reference, lo standing committees Details of these are set out below However, to ensure its overall control
of the group's affarrs, the board has reserved certan matters to itself for decision The board meetings are
held to set and mondor strategy, identfy, evaluate and manage materal rsks, to review trading
performance, ensure adequale funding, exarmnine major acquisition possibilities and approve reports to
shareholders Procedures are established to ensure that appropriate informaticn 15 communicated to the
board in a tmely manner to enable 1t to fulfil its duties

Executive committee

Charred by the company’s chairman, the executive commiltee also compnses the divisional directors of the
group's main businesses, together with the managing director and finance director The committee 1s
responsible for the approval of acquisitions, divestments, capital expendiure and contractual commitments
below the level that the board has reserved to itself for decision, and for certain operational, administrative
and other routine matters The committee also regularly reviews and reporls to the board on the
performance of the group's businesses At least 11 meetings are held each year and other senior
executives frequently attend by invitation

Nominations committee

The nominations commitiee 1s responsible for proposing candidates for appointment to the board having
regard to the balance of skills and structure of the board and ensuring the appointees have sufficient time
availlable to devote to the role The committee meets when reguired and comprises PM Fallon {chairman of
the nominations committee), PR Ensor and four non-executive directors, Sir Patrick Sergeant, The Viscount
Rothermere, CJF Sinclair, and JC Botts (independent) The commitiee's terms of reference are available on
the company's web site

The nominations commitiee met formally dunng the year to discuss the possible appointment of one or

more new execulive directors, given Mr Bounous resignation during the year, and to consider appointing an
additional non-executive director
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Corporate Governance continued

Remuneration commuttee

The remuneration committee meets twice a year and additionally as required It 1s respensible for
determining the contract terrns, remuneration and other benefits for executve directors, including
performance related profit share schemes The committee also recommends and monitors the level of
remuneration for senior management and for the rest of the group The composition of the committee,
detals of directors’ remuneration and interests in share options, together with information on directors'
service contracts, are set out In the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 27 to 40 The committee's
terms of reference are available on the company's web site

Audit commttee
Details of the members and role of the audit committee are set out on page 24 The committee's terms of
reference are avarable on the company's web site

Tax and Treasury committee
Details of the members and role of the tax and treasury commitiee are set out in the directors report on
page 10

Nori-executive directors

The non-executive directors bring both independent views and the views of the company's major
sharehelder to the board The non-executive directors, whose biographies can be found on pages 17 and
18 of the accounts, are The Viscount Rothermere, Sir Patnck Sergeant, CJF Sinclar, JP Willams, JC
Botts and JC Gonzalez At least once a year the company’s chairman meets the non-executive directors
without the executive directors being present

The board considers JC Botts and JC Gonzalez to be independent non-executive directors Although JC
Botts has been on the board for more than the recommended term of nine years under the Code, the board
belleves that his length of service enhances his role as an independent director JC Botts also holds
options to subscnbe for common stock in Internet Securities, Inc a subsidiary of the company However,
the number of options held by JC Botts 1s not matenal to him or to the company

The Viscount Rothermere has a significant shareholding in the company through his beneficial holding in
Daily Mait and General Trust plc and because of this he 15 not considered independent

Sir Patnck Sergeant also has a significant shareholding in the company and in addition has served on the
board 1n vanous roles since founding the company in 1969 and has been a non-executive director since
1992 and hence, under the Cade, 1s not considered independent

The Viscount Rothermere, CJF Sinclair, and JP Willams are also executive directors of Dally Mail and
General Trust pic, an intermediate parent company However, the company 1s run as a separate, distinct
and decentralised subsidiary of Dally Mail and General Trust plc and these directors have no invalvement
in the day-to-day management of the company They bring valuable experience and advice to the company
but the board does not beleve these non-executive directors are able to exert undue influence on decisions
taken by the board, nor does it consider therr independence to be impaired by their positions with Daily Mail
and General Trust plc However, their relationship with Daity Mail and General Trust plc means they do not
meet the Code's defimtion of independence
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Corporate Governance continued

Board and committee meelings

Board and committee meatings are amanged well in advance of the meeting date and papers covernng the points to be discussed are
distnbuted fo its members in advance of the meetings The following table sets out the number of board and committee meetings
attended by the directors dunng 2006

Tax &
Board Executive Remuneration Nominations Audit treasury
meetings committee committes  committee committeet committes

Number of meetings held during year 6 1 3 1 3 2

Executive directors

PM Fallon - Chalrman

PR Ensor - Managing Director
NF Osborn

DC Cohen

CR Brown

E Bounogus®

CR Jones - Finance Director
RT Lamont

SM Brady

D Alfano

G Mueller

MJ Carroll

CHC Fordham

" - 1 - 0
10 - 1 - 2
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Non-executive directors
The Viscount Rothermere
Sir Patnck Sergeant

CJF Sinclar

JP Willlams

JC Botis

JC Gonzalez
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= retired as a director on Apnl 13 2006
1t In addition to the three audit committee meetings held durng the year several informal meetings were also held
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Corporate Governance contmued

Board and committee effectiveness

During the year the board, through its charman, assessed its performance and that of is
commitiees The chairman distributed a detaled questionnaire to each of the board members and
together with personal interviews evaluated the strengths and weaknesses of the board and its
members In addtion, each of the man commitlees completed a detaled questionnaire
encompassing key areas within therr mandates The resulls of the assessment were presented and
discussed at a board meeting and It was concluded that the board and its committees had been
effective throughout the year

Communication with shareholders

The company's chairman, together with the board, encourages regular dialogue with shareholders
Meetings are held, both in the US and UK, to discuss annual and intenm results and highhght
significant acquisitions or disposals, or at the request of institutional shareholders Private
shareholders are encouraged to paricipate in the annual general meeting In hne with best practice
all shareholders have at least 20 working days notice of the annual general meeting al which the
executive directors, non-executive directors and committee chairs are available for questioning

Internal control and sk management

The board I1s responsible for the group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness
Such a system 15 designed lo manage rather than eliminate the risk of falure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss

In accordance with the guidance published by the Internal Control Working Party of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants i England and Wales (the Turnbull Report}, the board has implemented an
ongoing process for identfying, evaluating and managing the matenal nsks faced by the group

The board has reviewed the effectiveness of the group’s system of internal control and has taken
account of material developments which have taken place since September 30 2005 It has
considered the major business and financial risks, the control environment and the results of internal
audit Steps have been taken to embed internal contral and nsk management further into the
operations of the group and to deal with areas of improvement which have come o management’s
and the board's attention

Key procedures which the directors have established with a view to providing effective internal
control, and which have been 1n place throughout the year, are as follows

The board of directors

« the board normally meets six times a year to consider group strategy, nsk management, financial
performance, acquisitions, business development and management ISsues,

« the board has overall responsibility for the group and there 1s a formal schedule of matiers
specifically reserved for decision by the board,

« Each executive director has been given responsibility for specific aspects of the group’s affarrs,

o the board divides the group’s key risks into six broad categornes and reviews and assesses each of
these at least annually,

« the board seeks assurance that effective contro! 1s being maintained through regular repons from
business group management, the audit committeg and vanous independent monitonng functicns,
and

« the board approves the annual forecast after performing a review of key nsk factors Performance
1s monitored regularly by way of vanances and key performance indicators to enable relevant action
to be taken and forecasts are updated each quarter The board considers longer-term financial
projections as part of its regular discussions on the group's strategy
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Quality, integrity of personnel and whistle blowing arrangements

The integnty and competence of persennel i1s ensured through migh recruitment standards and a commitment to
management and business skills training High quality personnel are seen as an essential part of the control
environment and the high ethical standards expected are communicated by management leadership and
through the employee handbock which 1s provided to all employees The employee handbook also sets out the
procedures available to staff to rasse, in confidence, possible impropneties in matters of financial reporting or
other matters

Social responsibility

The group 1s keen to maintan a high level of social responsibibty and has core procedures embedded in its
internal systems and controls to ensure its social standards are monitored regularly and are not breached The
group supports and encourages employees who become involved In social projects and examples of these are
given in the Director's report

Environmental responsibility

The group does not operate directly in industnes where there 1s the potential for serious industnal pollution It
does not pnnt products n-house or have any investments i pnntng works However, it does lake its
environmental responsibility senously and complies with all relevant environmental laws and regulations in each
country 1n which it operates Wherever economically feasible, account 1s taken of enviranmental 1ssues when
placing contracts with suppliers of goods and services and these suppliers are regularly reviewed and
monitored The group 1s not a heavy user of energy, however, It does manage its energy requirements sensibly
using low energy office equipment where possible and using a common sense approach such as switching off
aquipment, ar-condiboning, heating and lights when not required

Health and safety

The group 15 commutted to the health and safety of its employees and ¢communities in which 1t operates The
group complies with all local health and safety regulations and makes use of extemal health and safety adwisors
where appropnate The UK businesses benefit from a monthly assessment of the working environment by
expenenced assessors and regular traning of all existing and new UK employees in health and safety matters

Investment appraisal

The managing director, finance director and business group managers consider proposals for acquisihons and
new businesses Proposals beyond specified hmits are put to the board for approval and are subject 10 due
dihgence by the group's finance team and, if necessary. independent advisers Capital expenditure 1s regulated
by strct authonzation controls For capital expendiure above specified levels, detalled wntten proposals must
ba submitted to the board and reviews carned out to monitor progress against budget

Accounting and computer systems conlrols and procedures

Accounting controls and procedures are regularly reviewed and communicated throughout the group Particular
attention 1s pald to authonzation levels and segregation of duties The group's tax, financing and foreign
exchange positions are overseen by the tax and treasury committee, which meets at least twice a year Controls
and procedures over the secunty of data held on computer systems are perodically reviewed and are subject to
internal audit Controls mclude a specific focus on data secunty and disaster recovery

internal audit

The group has an intemal audit funchon which 1s managed by the head of Dally Mail and General Trust Plc's
(DMGT) internal audit department, working closely with the company's finance director Internal audit draws on
the services of the group's central finance team to assist In completing the audit assignments Intemal audit
aims to provide an independent assessment as to whether effective systems and controls are n place and
being operated to manage significant rsks in the businesses wisited It also ams to support management by
prowiding cost effective recommendations to mitigate nsk and control weaknesses identfied dunng the audit
process, as well as provide Insight into where efficiencies and monetary gans might be made by improving the
operations of the business Businesses and central departments are selected for an internal audit visiton a nsk-
focused basis, taking account of the nsks idenbfied as part of the nsk management process, the nsk and
matenality of each the group's businesses, the scope and findings of external audit work, and the departments
and businesses reviewed previously and the findings from these reviews This approach ensures that the
internal audit focus 1s placed on the higher nsk areas of the group. while ensunng an appropnate breadth of
coverage The head of DMGT's intemal audit department reports his findings to management and to the audit
commuittee
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Accountability and audit

Audit committee

The audit committee compnises three non-executive directors, JC Botis (chairman), Sir Patnck Sergeant and JP
Willams, and meets three times each financial year The committee s responsible for reviewng the mntenm
report, the annual report and accounts and other related formal statements before therr submission to the board,
and reviewing and overseeing controls necessary to ensure the integnity of the financial information reported to
ihe shareholders The audit committee advises the board on the appoiniment of extemal auditors and on therr
remuneration, both for audit and non-audit work it has set and applied a formal policy, which focuses on the
effectiveness, Independence and objectivity of the extemal audit, the type of non-audit work permissible and a
dimimimus level of fees acceptable Any non-audit work performed outside this remit Is assessed and where
appropnate approved by the committee The committee discusses the nature, scope and findings of the audit with
the extemal auditors and considers and determines relevant action m respect of any control 1ssues raised by the
external auditors The audit committee 1s also responsible for monitoring and assessing the effectiveness of
internal audit, and reviews the internal audit programme and receives penodic reports on its findings It reviews
the whistle blowing arrangements available to staff The audit committee’s terms of reference are available on the
company's website
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities 1n respect of the accounts

The direclors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements The directors have
chosen to prepare accounts for the group in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation, and for the company in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

In the case of UK GAAP accounts, the directors are required to prepare financial statements for each financial
year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company
for that penod  In prepanng these financial statements, the directors are required to

» select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently,

» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

« state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, and
e prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis

In the case of IFRS accounts, Intemational Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present
farly for each financial year the company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows This
requires the faithful representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with
the defintions and recognition critena for assets, habilities, Income and expenses set out in the Internatonal
Accounting Standards Board's 'Framework for the preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements' In
virtually all circumstances, a farr presentation will be achieved by compliance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards Directors are also required to

» properly select and apply accounting polices,

e present information, including accounting policies, In a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information,

e provide additional disclosures when comphance with the specific requirements in International Financial
Reporting Standards I1s insufficent to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other
evenls and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial performance, and

e prepare the accounts on a going concerm basis unless, having assessed the ability of the company to continue
as a going concern, management either intends to igwdate the entity or to cease trading, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial posttion of the company, for safeguarding the assets, for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other imegulanties and for the preparation of a directors’ report and
directors' remuneration report which comply with the reguirements of the Companies Act 1885

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the company website Legislation in the United
Kingdom goveming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements differs from legistation 1n other

junsdictions

The directors confirm that these requirements have been satisfied
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Statement by the directors on compliance with the Combined Code

The Listing Rules require the board to report on compltance throughout the accounting year with the
49 provisions of the July 2003 Financial Reporting Council's Combined Code on Corporate
Governance 1ssued by the Financial Services Authonty Save for the exceptions outlined below, the
group has comphed throughout the financial year ended September 30 2006 with the provisions set
out in Section 1 of the Combined Code

Proviston A 3 2 states that half the board, excluding the chawman, should be compnsed of non-
executive directors determined by the board to be independent The board currently comprises 18
directors of whom two are considered to be independent non-executive directors

Contrary to provision A3 3, the board has not 1dentified a senior non-executive director as the
directors are of the opinion that all matiers relating to the effective governance of the group must be
dealt with by the board as a whole

Provision A4 1 requires that the majority of the neminations committee should be comprised of
independent non-executive directors Although the committee consists of four non-executive and two
executive directors, only one of the non-executive directors can be considered independent under the
Combined Code

Provision A 4 4 states that the terms and conditions of appointment of non-executive directors should
be availlable for inspection As explained in the Directors’ Remuneration Report, the non-executive
directors do not have service contracts

Provisions B2 1 and C 3 1 require the remuneration and audit committees to comprise entirely of
independent non-executive directors Both the remuneration and audit committees compnse of three
non-executive directors, only one of whom on each committee can be considered independent under
the Combined Code

On behalf of the board

Padraic Fallon
Chairman
November 15 2006
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Directors' Remuneration Report

Introduction

This remuneration report sets out the group's policy and struclure for the remuneration of executive angd non-
executive directors together with details of directers' remuneration packages and service contracls The report
has been prepared in accordance with the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 and shareholders
will be invited to approve this report at the Annual General Meeting on February 1 2007

The remuneration committee

The remuneration commitiee 1s chared by JC Botts Its other members are The Viscount Rothermere and CJF
Sinclar All members of the committee are non-executive directors of the company The Viscount Rothermere
and CJF Sinclair are also directors of Daly Mail and General Trust plc but have no personal financial interests
n the company {other than as shareholders}, and no day-to-day involvement in running the business The
executive charman normally attends meetings of the remuneration commitee, but 1s not present at any
discussion concerning own remuneration For the year under review the committee also sought advice and
information from the company's managing director and finance director The committee’s lerms of reference
permit its members to obtan professional external advice on any matier, at the company's expense, although
none did so In 2008 The group fself can take external advice and information from many sources n
prepanng proposals for the remuneration committee, but no matena!l assistance from a single source was
recerved i relation to remuneration decisions for 2006

Remuneration policy

The group beleves 1n aligning the interests of management with those of sharehclders The two consistent
objectives n its remuneration policy since the company's inception 1n 1969 have been the maximization of
earnings per share and the creation of shareholder value

The first objective is achieved through a comprehensive profil sharing scheme that links the pay of executive
directors and key managers to the profits and growth in profits of the group or relevant parts of the group This
scheme 15 completely vanable with no guaranteed floor and no celing

To support the implementation of the policy of profit sharing, the group 1s divided into a number of profit
centres The manager of each profit centre 1s paid a profit share related to the profit centre’s profits and profit
growth Each profit centre 1s part of a larger business group Each business group manager has an incentive
based on the business group's profits and profit growth Profit sharing encourages directors and managers (o
grow ther businesses, to launch new ventures and to search for acquisitions that would fit weil with thewr
businesses

All executives on profit shares are aware that if profits nse, so does ther pay Similarly if profits fall, so do thesr
profit shares The profit shares of executive directors and senior managers make up much of their total pay
For example, of the total remuneration of the 13 executive directors who served in the year, 79% was derived
from profit shares

The creation of shareholder value 1s also encouraged through an executive share option scheme and, from
October 2003, the Capita) Appreciation Plan {CAP) The company’s first share option scheme was approved
by shareholders 1n 1985 and expired in 1995, although options granted under this scheme may be exercised
before various dates through to 2005 A subsequent executive share opton scheme was approved by
shareholders i January 1996 The performance cnitena under which options granted under this scheme may
be exercised are set out on page 28 This scheme expired and closed in 2008, but no share options have been
wsued under it since February 2004 although options previously granted may be exercised before various
dates to February 2014 The CAP was approved by shareholders in February 2005, and is a8 highly geared
performance-based share option scheme which not only directly rewards growth in profits of each executive's
businessas but also links more robustly equity reward with the dehvery of economic shareholder value A more
detalled explanation of the CAP I1s given on page 29

The directors believe that these profit shanng and share option arrangements are responsible for much of the
company's success since 1363 These arrangements serve shareholders by ahigning the interests of the
directors and managers with those of shareholders and are considered an important driver of the company's
growth strategy

The remunerauon of the non-executive directors 15 determined by the board
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Remuneration structure

Executive directors

It 1s the group's policy to consiruct executive remuneration packages such that a significant part of a director's
compensation 1s based on the growth n the group’s profits contributed by that director The details of the
remuneration packages of individual directors are set out below

Basic salary and benefits

The basic salary and benefits are generally not the most significant part of a director’s overall compensation package
Each executive director receives a salary which Is reviewed annually by the committee Certain non-cash benefils are
also provided including pnivate health care, and hfe assurance through the membership of one of the pension
schemes

Pension schemes

Each UK-based director 1s entitled to participate in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme (a defined benefit scheme,
closed to new directors), the Euromoney Pension Plan (a money purchase plan) or their own private pension scheme
Directors based overseas are enttled to partcipate in the pension scheme arrangements applicable to the country
where they work Currently, NF Osborn, CR Brown, RT Lamont, D Alfano, G Muelier and MJ Carroll participate in the
group's US 401(k) plan Details of penstan scheme contnbutions can be found on page 35 of this report There are no
other post retirement benefits

Profit share scheme

The group believes in aligning the economic interests of management with those of shareholders and achieves this
through a comprehensive profit shanng scheme that links the pay of each executive director to the profits and growth
in profits of the businesses that the executive director manages

The executive directors who manage business divisions are set profit thresholds for the businesses for which they are
responsible The profit thresholds are set at the time the director takes on responsibiity for the businesses concerned,
usually based an the profits of the previous 12 months, and are adjusted if such responsibilities change The normal
profit share arrangement pays 1% of profits from zero up to a threshold and then 5% of profits achieved in excess of
this threshold Some of the directors have schemes which have been In place for a number of years and pay profit
shares at slightly higher rates or which are subject to additional thresholds

The profit shares of the chairman and managing director are based on the pre-tax post-minonity profits of the group,
thereby matching their profit share with the return the group generates for its shareholders The charman is entitled to
6 49% of the pre-tax profits The managing director 1S gntitied to 3 84% of the pre-tax profits up to a threshold of
£20,000,000 and an additional 1 44% of pre-tax profits In excess of this threshold

The finance director receives a profit share linked to the adjusted earnings per share of the group (EPS) A fixed sum
1s payable for every percentage point the EPS 1s above 10p A further sum Is payable for every percentage point that
EPS i1s above 17 25p

CHC Fordham, in addition to his profit share, has a second incentive linked to the performance of acquisitions

All of the profit share schemes are completely variable with no guaranteed floor and no celing and are designed lo be
the most significant part of the executive director’s remuneration package
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Remuneration structure continued

The table below shows the 2006 percentage spht of the fixed and vanable elements of each director's remuneration
package

Fixed Varable

Salary & Profit

Executive directors benefits share
PM Fallon 1% 93%
PR Ensor T% 93%
NF Osborn 3M1% 69%
DC Cchen 22% 78%
CR Brown 43% 57%
E Bounous™ 21% T9%
CR Jones 52% 48%
RT Lamont 76% 24%
SM Brady 64% 36%
D Alfano 25% 15%
G Mueller 30% 70%
MJ Carrell 81% 19%
CHC Fordham 34% 66%
Total 21% 79%

* E Bounous retired as a director on April 13 2006

SAYE scheme

The group operates an all employee save as you eam scheme In which those directors employed in the UK are
eligible to participate Participants save a fixed monthly amount of up to £250 for three years and are then able to buy
shares In the company &t a price set at a 20% discount to the market value at the start of the savings penod In line
with market practice, no performance conditions attach to options granied under {tus plan The executive directors
who are currently participating in this scheme are PM Fallon, PR Ensor, NF Osborn, CR Jones, SM Brady and CHC
Fordham, details of which can be found on pages 36 and 37 of this report

Share option schemes
The directors consider that share opbon schemes are an important part of overall compensation and algn the
interests of directors and employees with those of shareholders

Capital Apprectation Plan (CAP)

The CAP was appraved by shareholders on February 1 2005 Each CAP award compnses an option to subscribe for
ordinary shares of 0 25p each in the company for an exercise price of 0 25p per ordinary share In accordance with
the terms of CAP, no consideration was paid for the grant of the awards The awards become exercisable on
salisfaction of certain performance conditions and lapse 1o the extent unexercised on September 30 2014 The
scheme Is potentially available to all employees The performance conditions, broadly, require that the company
achieve pre-tax profits (before goodwill amortisation or impairment, exceptional items and before the cost of the CAP)
of £50 miion by no later than the financial year ending September 30 2008 In the event that this profit target 1s
achieved, the option pool (of 8 maximum aof 7 5 midlion shares) will be allccated between the holders of outstanding
awards by reference to ther contribubion to the achevement of the performance condition, but no ndividual may have
an option over more than 10% of the option pool One third of the awards will vest immediately, with the other two
thirds vesting n equal tranches in the following two years, but only if the specified profit target 15 mantained
Otherwise vesting 1s deferred until the profits achieved in 2008 are achieved agamn, but no later than by reference to
the year ending September 30 2013 Thus the CAP 1s designed so that profit growth must be suslamed If awards are
to vest 1 full Accordingly, and subject as described above, the award to each director comprises an oplion to
subscnbe for up to 750,000 shares The actual value of the CAP award to each director will depend on the relatve
profit contribution of his/her businesses to the achievement of the performance condition It 15 expected that {subject
to the satisfacton of the performance conditon) the directors will receve 1n aggregate approximately 25% of the
option pool, or on average an option to subscribe for approxirmately 145,000 shares each

The fair value per option granted and the assumptions used to calculate its value are set out in note 22
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Share option schemes conltnued

1996 scheme

All executive directors have options from a previous executive share option scheme approved by shareholders n
1896 1n which potentially all employees could receive options This scheme expired 1n 2006 and no share options
have been issued under this scheme since February 2004 although options granted may be exercised before vanous
dates to February 2014 Options were i1ssued to a selection of individual employees, including directers, on a ment
basis These opuions are exercisable at least three years after their grant and are subject to certain performance
conditions For options expiring on February 7 2007, January 29 2009, February 11 2009, June 25 2009 and January
5 2010 the performance test set by the remuneration commitiee requires the growth n the company's earnings per
share for the three consecutive financial years commencing from the year of grant to exceed the growth in the retail
prices index by an average of 4% a year For the options expiring on June 25 2009 only, there I1s an additonal
performance condition which requires that Internet Secunties, Inc must have achieved an operating profit for three
consecutive months and a cumulative operating profit over a penod of six months For all other options expinng after
2005, the performance test set by the remuneration committee requires that the Total Shareholder Retumn (TSR) of
the company exceeds that of the average TSR for the FTSE 250 index for the same penod The TSR test s carmed
out at the end of each calendar month starting 30 months after the option grant date For the performance condition
to be satisfied, the TSR of the company must exceed that of the FTSE 250 i any four out of six consecutive months
from that date

The fair value per option granted and the assumptions used to calculate its value are set outin note 22

Internet Securities, Inc option scheme

G Mueller, NF Osborn and JC Botts are also participants in the Internet Secunties, Inc option scheme G Mueller's
options are exercisable at the rate of 6 25% quarterly and are fully vested after four years NF Osborn's options are
exercisable at the rate of 25% after one year and at a rate of 6 25% quarterly thereafter unti! fully vested after four
years The price I1s based on the fair market value of the subsidiary and determined by the board There are no
performance conditions attached to these ophions

Details of directors' share options can be found on pages 36 to 38

Annual Report & Accounts 2006

30




Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Remuneration structure conltinued

Put options

G Mueller has a put option whereby he 1s able to sell his 5% holding of shares in Internet Secunties, Inc {I1S1), a
subsidiary of the group, to Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC at a price per share based on a muitiple of ISi’s
profit per share up to a celing G Mueller retains the rights granted under this put option should his employment
contract terminate In addition G Mueller has an IPO registration nght over 1S that he may exercise every Six
months subject to the agreement of the other shareholders If an agreement cannot be reached the company
has the right to purchase his shares at a formula denved price

Non-executive directors

The remuneration of the non-executive directors Is determined by the chairman and executive board with the
aid of external professional advice If necessary Non-executive directors receive a fee and are re-mbursed
expenses incurred in attending meetings They do not recewve any performance related bonuses, pension
provisions, share options or other forms of benefits apart from Sir Patnck Sergeant, who receives an expense
allowance, and JC Botts who 15 a pariicipant in the Internet Securities, Inc option scheme

Total shareholder return (TSR)

Shown below is the group’s TSR for the five years to September 30 2006 compared to the TSR achieved by the
FTSE 250 index over the same period This index has been presented as it comprnses the comparator group for
the performance conditions attached to the share option scheme referred to above The TSR calculahens
assume the re-investment of dividends

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC
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Service contracts
The group's pohcy 1s normally to employ executive directors on tweive month roling service contracts The remuneration
commitiee seeks to mimmise termination payments and believes these should be restncted to the value of remuneration
for the notice penod With the exception of Sir Patrnick Sergeant, none of the non-executive directors has a service
contract All executive service contracts are reviewed from time to time and updated where necessary A service contract
terminates automatically on the director reaching his/her respective retirement age

Executive
directors
PM Fallon

PR Ensor

NF Osborn

DC Cohen

CR Brown

E Bounous
{resigned
Apnl 13 20086)

CR Jones

RT Lamont

SM Brady

D Alfano
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Date of
service
contract
Jun 2
1986

Jan 13
1993

Jan 4
1991

Nov 2
1992

Dec 31
1991

Aug 26
1997

Aug 27
1997

Jan 6
2000

Feb 17
2000

Jan 10
2001

Notice
penod
{months)

12

12

12

12

12

12

12

Retire
-ment
age

63

62

60

60

60

60

60

60

60

60

Benefits accruing

if contract terminated*

12 months' salary, profit
share, pension and car
allowance

12  months' salary, profit
share, pension and car
allowance

12 months' salary, pension
and a pro-rated profit share
up to the date notice of
termination 1s given

12 months' salary, pension,
car allowance and a pro-
rated profit share up to the
date notice of termination 1s
given

12 months' salary, pension
and a pro-rated profit share
up to the date notice of
termination 1s given

12 months' salary, pension
and a pro-rated profil share
up to the date notice of
termination 15 given

12 months' salary, pension
and a pro-rated profit share
up to the date notice of
termination 1s given

9 months' salary, pension
and a pro-rated profit share
Up to the dale notice of
termination 1s given

12 maonths’ salary, pension
and a pro-rated profit share
up to the date notice of
termination 15 given

6 months' salary, pension
and a pro-rated profit share
up to the date notice of
termination 1s given

Benefits accruing

if contract terminated due to
incapacity/death **

9 months' salary, proft share,
pension and car allowance

6 months' salary, profit share,
pension and car allowance

1 month's salary, pension and a
pro-rated profit share up to the
date of termination

1 month's salary, pension, car
allowance and a pro-rated profi
share up to the date of
termination

1 month’s salary, pension and a
pro-rated profit share up to the
date of termination

6 months' salary and pension and
profit share f already paid

6 months' salary, pension and a
pro-rated proftt share up to the
date of termination

3 months' salary, pension and
profit share If already paid

6 months' salary, pension and
pro-rated profit share up to the
date of termination

The contract 18 terminated
immediately The director 13
entitted to her salary, pension
and profit share earned up to the
date of termination

Note
(N,
(3
(3)

)
{3

3

3

(3)

3

(3)

(4}

{3)

(3}
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Directors' Remuneration Report continued

Service contracts confinued

Date of Notice
Executive service period
directors contract (months}
G Mueller Jan 25 12
1999
MJ Carroll Mar 18 6
1999
CHC Sep 21 12
Fordham 2004
Non-executive
director
Sir Patrick Jan 10 12
Sergeant 1993

Retire
-ment
age

60

60

60

n/a

Benefits accruing
if contract terminated”

12 menths' salary, pension
and a pro-rated bonus up to
the date notice of termination
15 given In addition, If the
company terminates the
contract without cause, Mr
Mueller 1s entitled 1o exercise
immediately any outstanding
and unvested options due to
invest In two years

6 months' salary, pension
and a pro-rated profit share
up to the date notice of
termination 1s given

12 months' salary, pension
and a pro-rated profit share
up to the date notice of
termination 1S given

12 menths'
allowance

expense

Benefits accruing
if contract terminated due to
incapacity/death **

The contract 15 terminated
immediately The director s
entitled to his salary and pension
eammed up to the date of
termination and any ncentive
earned provided it has already
been pad

6 months' salary, pension and
pro-rated profit share up o the
date of termination

6 months' salary, pension and
pro-rated profit share up to the
date of termination

The contract s terminated
immediately The director 1s
entitled to his expense allowance
up to the date of termination

Note

(3)
)

).
(6)

(3)

* If the director terminated reaches fis/her respective retirement age before the expiration of ther notice penod then
benefits will only be paid up to the date of retirement

** This also applies If the director gives less than their notice penod to the company If the con

tract 15 terminated for

reasons of bankruptcy or senous misconduct the contract I1s terminated immediately without any payment in heu of

notice

1 E Bounous' service contract terminated on his resignation on Apnl 13 2006

(1) PM Fallon has a second service c

ontract with a subsidiary of the group, Euromoney Publications (Jersey} Limited

(EPJ), dated May 4 1993 This service contract has the same terms as his contract with Euromoney Institutional Investor

PLC Any termination payment would include profit share based on EPJ's results In addition, If Mr Fallon be adjudicated
bankrupt, he 15 entitled to 7 days salary and profit share from EPJ
(2) NF Osborn has a second service contract with a subsidiary of the group, Euromoney Inc, dated January 4 1991
normailly terminated by 12 months notice In the event of termination Mr Osborn 1s entitled to 12 months base salary and

pension, plus a prorated profit shar

prorated profit share **

e lo the date nobice of terminalion 1S given The company may also terminate his

agreement due to incapacity giving 3 rmonths notice and Mr Osborn would be entitied to 3 months salary, pensian and

{3) On termination, profit share 1s calculated as though the director has been employed for the full financial year and
then pro-rated accordingly to the date of termination unless otherwise stated
(4) f employment 15 terminated due to a breach of contract and the company 1s Judged to have breached RT Lamont's
editonal independence, the company shall pay $87,500 to the Urited Way of Greater New York
{5) G Mueller's service agreement IS with Internet Secunties, Inc
(6) MJ Carroli's service agreement 1s with Institutional Investor Inc If terminated due to just cause he 15 entitled to his
salary and pension up to the date of termination, but no profit share unless already paid
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Directors’' Remuneration Report continved

Information subject to audit

Directors’' remuneration tabhle

Executive directors
PM Fallon

PR Ensor

NF Osborn
DC Cohen
CR Brown

GB Strahan'
E Bounous®
CR Jones

RT Lamont
SM Brady

D Alfano

G Mueller

MJ Carroll
CHC Fordham

Non-executive directors
The Viscount Rothermere
Sir Patnck Sergeant

CJF Sinclair

JP Wilhlams

JC Botls

JD Bolsover’

JC Gonzalez®

2006

Year to September 30

Salary Benefits Profit

and fees in kind share Total Total
2006 20086 2006 2006 2005

£ £ £ £ £
202,000 660 2,705,664 2,908,324 2,472,874
165,500 660 2,062,893 2,229,053 1,848,357
119,355 660 262,226 382,241 340,405
110,625 825 391,072 502,522 422 241
136,575 8,200 191,587 336,362 227,591
- - - - 47,308
50,558 825 189,643 241,026 277,984
252,022 12,016 244,809 508,847 476,242
114,226 6,648 37,657 158,531 138,654
131,250 830 75,827 207,907 169,700
108,503 7,701 349,875 466,079 301,548
125,364 11,726 321,145 458,235 378,088
133,111 8,975 32,327 174,413 132,026
134,500 825 263,182 398,507 365,769
28,000 - - 28,000 28,000
28,000 - - 28,000 28,000
28,000 - - 28,000 28,000
28,000 - - 28,000 28,000
37,750 - - 37,750 37,750
- - - - 9,333
28,000 - - 28,000 23,947
1,961,339 60,551 7,127,907 9,149,797 7,871,817

1 retired as a director on December 16 2004
2 retired as a director on Apnl 13 2006
3 retired as a director on February 1 2005

4 appointed as a non-executive director on November 23 2004

Fees as a director include fees paid as a director of subsidiary companies

Three of the directors have waved profit shares in respect of the cumrent and future years Profit shares
walived this year were as follows PM Fallon £700,000, NF Osborn £8,674, DC Cohen £10,000 Profit shares
waived were paid into pnvate pension schemes on the directors' behalf These waivers have not been
deducted from the profit shares above

PM Fallon 1s also a non-executive director of Alled Insh Banks Plc Durning the year Mr Fallon retained
earmings of €53,000 in relahion to this role
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Directors' Remuneration Report continued

Diractors’ pensions
Executive direclors can participate in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme {a defined benefit scheme, closed to new directors),
the Euromoney Pension Plan (a money purchase plan} or ther own private pension scheme

Pension contributions

Harmsworth Eurcmoney
Pension Pension Private

Scheme Plan schemes Total Total
2006 2006 2006 2006 2005
£ £ £ £ £

Director
PM Fallon - - - - -
PR Ensor 22,7112 - - 22,712 18,634
NF Osborn - 7.324 776 8,100 8,122
DC Cohen 16,975 - - 16,975 14,014
CR Brown - - 2,992 2,992 3,109
GB Strahan - - - - 1,258
E Bounpus® - 4194 - 4,194 7,743
CR Jones 19,581 - - 19,581 28,767
RT Lamont - - 2,856 2,856 2,545
SM Brady - 11,459 - 11,459 10,570
D Alfano - - 2,713 2,713 2,509
G Mueller - - 2,360 2,360 2,524
MJ Carroll - - 3,018 3,018 3,003
CHC Fordham 11,809 - 11,809 11,277
71,077 22,977 14,715 108,769 114,075

* Retired as a director on Apnl 13 2006
In addition to the company pension contnbutions above certain directors have elected to waive part of thewr profit shares
Profit shares waved are pad by the company into private pension schemes as set out on page 34

Under the Harmsworth Pension Scheme?, the following pension benefits were earned by the drectors

increase Accrued annual Increase In
n accrued pension at Transfer value  Transfer value transfer value
annual pension September 30 September 30 September 30  (net of director’s
during the year 2006 2006 2005  contributions)
£ £ £ £ £

Director
PM Fallon* 200 6,800 140,000 120,900 19,100
PR Ensor 2,100 54,800 1,080,000 889,300 185,400
DC Cohen 2,300 14,500 190,000 125,600 60,300
CR Jones 300 8,600 80,000 66,400 13,600

The accrued annual pensien entitlement i1s that which would be paid annually on retirement based on service to September 30
2005 and ignores any increase for future inflation All transfer values have been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice In
accardance with “Retirement Benefit Schemes — Transfer Values {GN11)" published by the Institute of Actuanes and the Faculty
of Actuaries The transfer values of the accrued entitiement represent the value of assets that the pension scheme would need
to transfer to another pension provider on transferring the scheme's liability in respect of each director's pension benefits They
do not represent a sum paid or payable to individual directors and therefore cannot be added meaningfully to annual
remuneration Members of the scheme have the option of paying Addilional Voluntary Contributions Neither the contnbutions
nor the resulting benefits are included in the above table The normal retirement age for the Harmsworth Pension Scheme s 62
years

* PM Fallon's pension benefits relate to a deferred pension In the Mail Newspapers Pension Scheme for pensionable service
between April 1 1978 and April 1 1886 No further contnbutions have been made to this scheme by the group or PM Fallon
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Directors' Remuneration Report continued

Directors' share options

The directors hold options to subscribe for new ordinary shares of 0 25p each in the company as follows

PM Fallon

PR Ensor

NF Osborn

DC Cohen

CR Brown

CR Jones

E Bouncus
(resigned Apni 13 2006)

At start Granted Exercised/ Atend
of year durnnp lapsed during  of year/date
year year of retirement

85,000 - - 85,000
255,000 - - 255,000
4,543 - (4,543) .

- 2533 - 2,533
344,543 2,533 (4,543) 342,533
75,000 - - 75,000
225,000 - - 225,000
4,543 - {4,543) -

- 2,533 - 2,533
304,543 2,533 (4,543) 302,533
4,543 - {4,543) -
5,000 - - 5,000

- 2,533 - 2,533

9,543 2,533 (4,543) 7,533
8,000 - - 8,000
6,000 - - 6,000
10,000 - - 10,000
5,000 - - 5,000
29,000 - . 29,000
28,000 - - 28,000
8,000 - - 8,000
40,000 - - 40,000
30,000 - - 30,000
106,000 - - 106,000
8,448 - - 8,448
32,000 - - 32,000
60,000 - - 60,000
8,000 - - 8,000
6,000 - - 6,000
4,543 - (4,543) -
20,000 - - 20,000
15,000 - - 15,000

. 2,533 - 2,533
153,991 2,533 (4,543) 151,981
20,000 - (20,000} -
8,000 - - 8,000
6,000 - (6,000) -
20,000 - - 20,000
15,000 - - 15,000
69,000 - (26,000) 43,000
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drink

Exercise
price

£395
£4 31
£208
£369

£395
£4.31
£208
£369

£208
£4 19
£369

£5 38
£335
£2 59

£419

£4 19

£5 38
£2 59

£419

£355
£419
£4 31
£538
£3 35
£2 08
£2 59

£4 19
£3 69

£4.19
£5 38

£3 35
£2 59

£419

Date
from which
exercisable

now
now

exercised’
Feb 01 09

now
now

exercised’
Feb 01 09

exercised’
Jan 28 07
Feb 01 09

now

now
TSR criteria
not satisfied

Jan 28 07

TSR cntena
not satisfied

now
TSR criteria
not satisfied

Jan 28 07

now

now

now

now

now
exercised’
TSR cniteria
not satisfied

Jan 28 07
Feb 0109

exercised®
now

exercised’
TSR criteria
not satisfied

Jan 28 07

Expiry
date

Feb 11 09
Jun 25 09
Aug 01 06
Aug 0112

Feb 1109
Jun 25 09
Aug 01 06
Aug 01 12

Aug 01 06
Jan 28 14
Aug 01 12

Mar 02 11
Jan 2312
Dec 04 12

Jan 28 14
Jan 29 09
Mar 02 11
Dec 04 12
Jan 28 14
Feb 07 07
Jan 29 09
Jun 2509
Mar 02 11
Jan 23 12

Aug 0106
Dec 04 12

Jan28 14
Aug 0112

Jan 29 09
Apr 12 07

Jan 2312
Apr 12 07

Apr 12 07
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Directors’' Remuneration Report continued

Directors' share options confinued

At start Granted Exercised Date
of year/ during during Atend Exercise  from which Expiry
appointment year year of year price  exercisable date
RT Lamont 10,000 - - 10,000 £4 19 now Jan 29 09
5,000 - - 5,000 £5 38 now Mar 02 11
15,000 - - 15,000
SM Brady 16,000 - - 16,000 £4 19 now Jan 29 09
8,000 - - 8,000 £538 now Mar 02 11
6,000 - - 6,000 £335 now Jan 23 12
20,000 - - 20,000 £259 TSR criteria Dec 04 12
not satisfied
10,000 - - 10,000 £4 19 Jan 28 07 Jan 28 14
2,847 - - 2,847 ** £3 24 Feh 01 07 Aug 01 07
62,847 - - 62,847
0 Alfano 10,000 - - 10,000 £4.19 now Jan 29 09
8,000 - - 8,000 £5 62 now Jan 05 10
5,000 - - 5,000 £538 now Mar 02 11
10,000 - - 10,000 £2 59 TSR criterla Dec 04 12
not satisfled
10,000 - - 10,000 £4 19 Jan 28 07 Jan 28 14
43,000 - - 43,000
G Mueller 10,000 - - 10,000 £538 now Mar 02 11
6,000 - - 6,000 £335 now Jan 23 12
20,000 - 20,000 £259 TSR criteria Dec 04 12
not satisfied
36,000 - - 36,000
MJ Carroll 4,000 - - 4,000 £4 19 now Jan 29 09
8,000 - - 8,000 £5 62 now Jan 0510
4,000 - - 4,000 £5 38 now Mar 02 11
20,000 - - 20,000 £259 TSR criteria Dec 04 12
not satisfied
10,000 - - 10,000 £4 19 Jan 28 07 Jan 28 14
46,000 - - 46,000
CHC Fordham 10,000 - - 10,000 £5 38 now Mar 02 11
6,000 - - 6,000 £335 now Jan 23 12
20,000 - - 20,000 £259 TSR criteria Dec 04 12
not satisfled
10,000 - - 10,000 £4 19 Jan 28 07 Jan 28 14
- 2,533 - 2,533 £3 69 Feb 01 09 Aug 01 12
46,000 2,533 - 48,533
Total 1,265,467 12,665 {44.172) 1,233,960

The company's 1996 option scheme expired i 2006 and no aptions were granted under the 1996 scheme during the year

Capital Appreciation Plan {CAP) options

In addition to the above, all executive directors are members of the Capital Appreciation Scheme (CAP) As described on page 29,
the award to each director comprises an option to subscribe for up to 750,000 shares The actual value of the CAP award to each
director will depend on the relatiwe profit contnbution of his/her businesses to the achievement of the performance condibion It 1s
expected that {subject 1o the satisfaction of the performance condition) the directors will receive in aggregate appraximately 25% of
the option paol, or on average an option to subscnbe for approximately 145,000 shares each No one director can have an oplicn
over more than 10% of the option pool The exercise pnce of each option 1s 0 25 pence with the three cption tranches, assuming
performance conditions being met, expinng on September 30 2012, September 30 2013 and September 30 2014

+ ;ssued under the Euromoney Instilutional Investor PLC Save As You Earn scheme 2002
+ |ssued under the Euromoney Institutional investor PLC Save As You Eam scheme 2004
=++ ssued under the Euromoney Institutional investor PLC Save As You Eam scheme 2006

1 PM Fallon's, PR Ensor's, NF Osborn's, and CR Jones' options were exercised on February 1 2006 when the markel pnce per
share was £5 15 resulting In a gain of £13,947 each The shares were retained by all the directors except for NF Osbom

2 E Bounous's options were both exercised on February 16 2006 at a market price of £5 17 resulting 1n gains of £19,600 and
£40,020 respectively E Bounous's remaining options are exercisable up to 12 months followsng the date of his resignation
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ share options confiued

The market price of the company's shares on September 30 2006 was £4 58 The high and low share prices during the year were
£53g and £3 73 respechively There were no options granted dunng the year The aggregate gam made by directors on the
exercise of share options In the year was £86,308 (2005 £283,879)

In addition, the following directors hold options to subscnibe for common stock of US$0 001 each in Internet Securities, Inc, a
subsidiary of the company All of these options are fully vested and exercisable

Granted Exercised/ Date
At start duning lapsed duning At end Exercise from which Expiry
of year year year of year pnce exercisable date
JC Botts 6,000 - - 6,000 US$7 40 now May1309
Exercised
G Mueller 27,024 - (27,024) - US$7 40 Jan06 May1309
Exercised
16,653 - (16,653} - US$8 95 Jan 06 Jan 01 10
Part -
exercised
9,000 - {3,937) 5,063 US$7 07 Jan 06 Feb 02 14
52,677 - {47,614) 5,063
NF Osborn 5,000 - - 5,000 UsS$8 95 now Sept 0510
Total 63,677 - (47,614) 16,063

No options in Internet Securties, Inc were granted during the year In January 2008, Mr Mueller exercised 47,614 options n
Internet Securities, Inc at a an independently assessed market price of $13 10 per share Mr Mueller retained these shares Also in
January 2006, Mr Mueller sold 67,614 shares 1n Internet Securities, Inc to Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC for $13 10 per
share (2005 69,999 shares valued at $8 72 per share)
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Directors' Remuneration Report continued

Information not subject to audit

Directors’ Interests in the company

The Interests of the directors and their familes in the ordinary shares of the company and its subsidianes as at

September 30 were as follows

Beneficial

PM Fallon

PR Ensor

NF Csborn

DC Cohen

CR Brown

E Bounous {resigned Apnt 13 2006)
CR Jones

RT Lamont

D Alfano

G Mueller

CHC Fordham

The Viscount Rothermere
Sir Patnck Sergeant

CJF Sinclarr

JP Willams

JC Botts

At September 30 2006 G Mueller was beneficially interested in 380,000 shares of Internet Securities, Inc a subsidiary

of the group {2005 400,000 shares)

Directors’ Interests in Daily Mail and General Trust plc

Ordinary shares of 0 25p each

2006 2005
966,872 962,329
256,151 251,608

42,590 42,590
36,664 36,664
41,111 -
6,920 6,920
17,537 12,994
25,503 25,503
1,747 1,747
20,503 20,503
873 873
20,864 20,864
285,304 297,804
7,494 7,484
3,075 3,075
5,503 5,503
1,738,711 1,696,471

The interests of the directors as defined under section 198 of the Companies Act 1985 in the shares of Dally Mail and

General Trust plc as at September 30 were as follows

Ordinary shares

A’ ordinary non-voting

of 12 5p each shares of 12 5p each
2006 2005 2006 2005
The Viscount Rothermere'®? 11,827,632 11,827,632 76,853,439 76,851,613
PM Fallon - - 41,500 41,500
Sir Patrick Sergeant - - 80,000 80,000
CJF Sinclair'®? . - 426,993 397,699
JP Williams'*? . - 224,871 213,512

1 The figures in the tabte above include 'A’ shares commitied by executives under a long-term incentive plan, details
of which are set out in the Daily Mail and General Trust Pics annual report
2 The figures In the table above include "A’ shares awarded to executives under the DMGT Executive Bonus Scheme

For The Viscount Rothermere, CJF Sinclarr and JP Willams respectively,

24,235, 22,106 and 12,208 of these shares

were subject to restrictions as explained in the Daily Mail and General Trust Plc annuai report The comparable figures

at October 3 2005 were 22,409, 19,008 and 10,495 respectively

Annual Report & Accounts 2008

39




Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Directors' Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ interests in Daily Mail and General Trust plc continued

The Viscount Rothermere had non-beneficial Interests as a trustee at September 30 2006 1n 5,540,000
‘A’ ordinary non-voting shares of 12 5p each (2005 5,540,000 shares) plus 669,208 ordinary shares
(2005 669,208 shares)

Daily Mail and General Trust plc has been notified that, under section 204 of the Compantes Act 1985
and including the interests shown in the table above, The Viscount Rothermere 1s deemed to have
been interested in 12,496,840 ordinary shares of 12 5p each (2005 12,496,840 shares)

At September 30 2006 and September 30 2005, The Viscount Rothermere was beneficially interested
in 756,700 ordinary shares of Rothermere Continuation Limited, the company's ultmate parent
company

The Viscount Rothermere, CJF Sinclar and JP Willams had options over 371,000, 606,000 and
320,000 ‘A’ ordinary non-voting shares in Daily Mail and General Trust plc at September 30 2006
respectively (2005 306,000, 486,000 and 255,000 respectively) The exercise price of these options
range from £4 07 to £10 30 Further detalls of these options are listed in the Dally Mail and General
Trust plc group accounts

There have been no changes in directors’ Interests since September 30 2006

John Bott
Chairman pof fhe ratiyn Committee
Novemberi13 2
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Independent Auditors' Report

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

We have audited the group financial statements of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC for the year ended September 30 2006 which
comprise the group income stalement, the group balance sheet, the group cash flow statement, the group statement of changes in equity
and the related notes 1 to 28 These group financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein We
have also audited the infermation in the directors’ remuneration report that 1s described as having been audited

We have reported separately on the individual company financial statements of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC for the year ended
September 30 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matlers we are required to state to them in an
auditors’ report and for no other purpose  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Raspective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng the annual report, the directors’ remuneration report and the group financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted for use in the European Union are
set out In the statement of directors responsibilities

Our responsibility ss to audit the group financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having been
audited in accordance with relevant United Kingdom legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the group financial statements give a true and far view, In accordance with the relevant
financial reporting framework, and whether the group financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report descrbed as
having been audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulaten We
report to you whether in our opmnion the information given (n the directors’ report is consistent with the group financial statements  We
also report to you iIf we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or If Information specified by law
regarding directors transactions with the company and other members of the group is not disclosed

We also report to you i, in our opinion, the company has nol complied with any of the four directors’ remuneration disclosure
requirements specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonity These compnse the amount of each
element in the remuneration package and information on share options, detaills of long-term incentive schemes, and meney purchase
and defined benefit schemes We give a statement, fo the extent passible, of details of any non-compliance

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the company’s compliance with the rine provisions of the 2003 FRC
Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financiat Services Authonty, and we report If it does not  We are not
required to censider whether the board's statement on internal control covers all nsks and controls, or form an opinon on the
effectiveness of the group s corporate governance pracedures or its risk and control procedures

We read the directors’ repert and the olher information contained in the annual report for the above year as descnbed in the contents
sectron including the unaudited part of the directors remuneration report and we consider the imphcations for our report If we become
aware of any apparent misstatements or material iInconsistencies with the group financial statements

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) rssued by the Auditing Practices Board
An audit inctudes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the group financial statements and
the part of the directors remuneration report described as having been audited It also includes an assessment of the significant
eslimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the group financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanatrons which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the group financial stalements and the part of the directors’
remuneration repon described as having been audited are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity
or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the group financial
statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having been audited

Opinion

In our opinion

+ the greup financial statements give a frue and fair view, In accordance with IFRSs as adopted for use in the Eurapean Union, of the
state of the group's affairs as at September 30 2006 and of its profit for the year then ended,

* the group financial stalements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having been audiled have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation, and

-ﬁhe information given in the directors’ report 1s consistent with the group financial stalements

Deloﬁtfgl':uch&l:! WM “f

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London
November 15 2006
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Group Income Statement

for the year ended September 30 2006

2006 2005
Notes £000's £000's
Revenue 2
Continuing operations 3 222,276 196,266
Less share of revenue of joint ventures {1,800) (1,434}
Total revenue 220,476 194,832
Operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation, share option
expense and exceptional items 3 43,812 39,348
Acquired intangible amortisation (144) -
Share option expense {(4,428) (1,380)
Exceptional tems 5 (716) {315)
Operating profit before associates and joint ventures 4 38,524 37,653
Share of results in associates and joint ventures 1,208 624
Operating profit 39,732 38,277
Finance income 7 772 340
imputed interest on acquisition option commitments (916) -
Other finance costs {4,354) (4,183)
Finance cosls (5,270} {4,183)
Net finance costs 7 {4,498) (3,843)
Profit before tax 35,234 34,434
Tax on profit (10,137) (9,657)
Deferred tax asset recognition 13,649 7,240
Tax credit/(charge) on profit on ordinary activities 8 3,512 (2.417)
Profit after tax 38,746 32,017
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent 37,430 30,181
Equity minonty interests 1,316 1,836
38,746 32,017
Basic earnings per share 10 4211p 3419
Diluted earnings per share 10 41 90p 3410p
Dvidend per share (including proposed dividends) 9 17.00p 16 20p
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Group Balance Sheet

as at September 30 2006

2006 2005
Notes £000's £000's
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Goodwill 1 68,452 66,029
Other intangible assets 1" 3,146 479
Property, plant and equipment 12 14,643 10,747
Investments 13 25,846 7,080
Deferred tax asset 20 22,017 9,820
135,004 94,155
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 15 73512 54,927
Cash and cash equivalents 27,503 25,071
Dernvative financial instruments 17 3,069 -
104,084 79,998
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 (95,515) (75,935)
Accruals {29,478) (23,225)
Deferred income {45,324) {37,491)
Bank cverdrafts 18 (1,235) (139)
(171,552} {136,790)
Net current hiabilities (67,468) (56,792}
Total assets less current liabilities 67,536 37,363
Non-current habilities
Acquisition option commitments 24 (24,332) -
Deferred consideration - (8.689)
Other non-current habiliies {597) -
Committed faclity 18 (65,530) {62,518}
Deferred tax habilities 20 (3,074) {981)
Provisions 19 (777} (1,125}
(94,310} (73,313)
Net habilities {26,774) (35,950}
Shareholders’ equity
Called up share capital 21 223 222
Share premium account 23 38,081 37,351
Capttal redemption reserve 23 8 8
Own shares 23 (74} (74}
Liability for share based payments 23 5,907 1,479
Fair value reserve 23 6,618 -
Translation reserve 23 (244) {1,300)
Retained earnings 23 (78,642) (75.245)
Equity shareholders® deficit {28,123) (37,559)
Equity minority interests 1,349 1,609
Total equity (26,774} {35,950)

The accounts were apprgveg by the bpard of director ovember 15 2006
Richard Ensor '3 (/L,J - Y\__/
Colin Jones

Directors m
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Group Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended September 30 2006

2006 2005
£000's £000's

Cash flow from operating activities
Operating profit 39,732 38,277
Share of operating profit in associates and joint ventures (1,208) (624)
Loss on disposal of business 1,483 315
Intangible amortisation 381 150
Goodwill impairment 519 -
Share option expense 4,428 1,380
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,925 1,595
Utiisation of property rental provision (348) {148)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1,286) 87
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 46,626 41,032
Increase In receivables {9,822) {4,395)
Increase 1n payables 22,753 6,181
Cash generated by operations 59,557 42,818
Income taxes patd (6,884) {6,797)
Net cash from operating activities 52,673 36,021
Investing activities
Dividends paid to minornities (1,724) (943}
Dwidends received from associate 756 -
Interest received 662 345
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (7,694) (5,387)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,975 20
Purchase of avallable for sale investments {19,740) -
Purchase of additional interest in subsidiary undertakings (14,507) (12,231)
Acquisition of associate and joint ventures {3,424) (6,097)
Disposal of subsidiary 150 500
Net cash used In investing activities (43,546) {23,793)
Financing activities
Dwidends paid (14,563) (13,376)
Interest pad {696) (3,756)
Issue of new share capital 730 2,960
Increase in borrowings 3,336 42,932
Repayment of borrowings - {39,540)
Loan repaid to DMGT group company (71,991) (15,384)
Loan received from DMGT group company 76,399 15,622
Net cash used in financing activities (6,785) {10,542)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,342 1,686
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 24,932 23,099
Effect of foreign exchange rate movements (1,0086) 147
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 26,268 24,932
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Note to the Group Cash Flow Statement

A Net Debt

Net debt at beginning of penod

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Decrease n loans

Decrease in amounts owed to DMGT group company
Other non cash changes

Effect of foreign exchange rate movements

Net debt at end of perod

2006 2005

£000's £000's
(66,430) (62,389)
2,342 1,686
(15,716} {18,907)
7,972 15,384
{4,973) {106)
3,367 {(2,098)
~(73,438) (66,430)

Net debt comprises cash at bank and in hand, bank overdrafts, bank loans and other borrowings
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement includes banks overdrafts
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Group Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended September 30 2006

2006 2005

Notes £000's £000's
Profit for the year 37,430 30,181

Dividends paid 9 (14,563) {13,376)
22,867 16,805
Proceeds from issue of shares for cash 731 2,960
Credit to equity for share based payments 4,428 1,380
Fair value gains on cash flow hedges 3,629 nfa
Fair value gains on available for sale investments 405 nfa
Net exchange difference on foreign currency loans 3,183 -
Changes in acquisition commitments (4,728) -
Tax on items going through reserves (265) (264)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operalions 1,056 (1,300)
Other movements (23) -
Net decrease in equity shareholders’ deficit 31,283 19,581
Impact of adoption of 1AS 39 on October 1 2005 29 (21,847) -
Opening equity shareholders’ deficit as restated/previously stated {37,559) (57,140)
Closing equity shareholders’ deficit {28,123) (37,559}

Total equity attributable to:

Equity halders of the parent (28,123) (37,559)
Equity minonty interests 1,349 1,609
{26,774) {35,950)

JAS 39 requires unreahised fair value gains/(losses) on certain financial Instruments to be recogmsed 1n equity,
when realised, these fair value gains/(losses) are recognised in the income statement In accordance with the
transition rules for first time adoption of IFRSs, 2005 comparatives have not been restated The impact of the

adoption of IAS 39 i1s shown above and in note 7

Annual Report & Accounts 2006

46



Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Notes to the Accounts

1 Accounting policies

General information
Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC {the 'Company') 1s a company incorporated in the UK

The group financial statements consolidate those of the company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
'group’} and equity-account the group's Interest In associates and jointly controlled entiies The parent company
financial statements present information about the entity and not about its group

The group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors 1in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards adopted for use i the European Union and therefore comply with
Article 4 of the EU 1AS Regulation The company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in
accordance with UK GAAP

Judgements made by the directors, in the application of these accounting policies that have a significant effect on
the financial statements and estimates with a significant nsk of matenal adjustment in the next year are discussed
in note 2

Basis of preparation

From Qctober 1 2005 the group 1s required to prepare Its annual consolidated financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as adopted by the European Union and implemented in
the UK This annual report has been prepared using IFRS accounting policies as set out in the group’s “Adoption
of International Financial Reporting Standards - Preliminary restatement of 2005 financial information™ document
which was publshed on March 22 2006, and s avalable on the group’s website at
www euromoneyplc comireports/IFRS_Restatement_2005 pdf This restatement i1s also contained within note 29
The reconciliations of profit and shareholders’ equity from UK GAAP to IFRS required by IFRS 1 “Furst time
adoption of IFRS” are included within this document

As permitted by IFRS 1 the group elected to defer implementation of 1AS 32 "Financial Instruments Presentation
and Disclosure” and IAS 39 “Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement” until the year ending
September 30 2006 The adjustments required for the adoption of 1AS 32 and IAS 39 as at October 1 2005 are
detailed in note 29 of this report

The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for denvative financial instruments
which have been measured at fair value

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been apphed consistently to all penods
presented in these group financial statements

Baslis of consolidation

The consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the company and entities controlled by the company (its
subsidianes) Control 1s achieved where the company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an investee entity so as to oblain benefits from its activities

An associate 1s an entity over which the group 1s 1n a position to exercise significant influence, but not contro! or
jont control, through participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee A joint venture I1s
an entity over which the group 1s in a position to exercise joint control over the financial and operating policies of
the mvestee The results and assets and liabiliies of associates and joint ventures are incorporated in these
financial statements using the equity method of accounting

Preliminary restatement of 2005 financial information
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Notes to the Accounts continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Basis of consclidation continue

Where the group owns a non-controlling interest in the equity share capita! of a non-quoted company and does not
exercise significant influence, 1t 1s held as an investment and stated in the balance sheet at the lower of cost and net
realisable value

The results of subsidiary and associated undertakings acquired dunng the year are incorporated from the effective date
of acqurstion Acguisitions are accounted for under the acquisitton method, with consideration given and the assets and
labiihies acquired being recorded at fair value

Minonty interests in the net assets of consohdated subisidianes are dentified separately from the group's equity theren
Minonty interests consists of the amount of those Interests at the date of the ongtinal business combination and the
minonty's share of changes in equity since the date of the combination Losses applicable to the minanty i excess of
the minenty In excess of the minonty interest in the subsidiary's equity are allecated aganst the interests of the group
except to the extent that the minonty has a binding obligation and 15 able to make an additonal mvestment to cover the
losses

Revenue

Tumover represents income from advertising, subscnptions, sponsorship and delegate fees, net of value added tax

+ Adverlising revenues are recogmized in the income statement on the date of publication

- Subscription revenues are recognized In the income statement on a straight-ine basis over the penod of the
subscription

+ Sponsership and delegata revenues are recognized in the income statement over the penod the event IS run
Ravenues invoiced but relating to future periods are deferred and treated as deferred income In the batance sheet

Derivatives and other financial instrumeants
The group uses vanous denvative finanwial Instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate
nsks, mncluding forward foreign currency contracts and interest rate swaps

For the period to September 30 2005, the group ulilised the exemption avallable under IFRS 1 and continued to apply
UK GAAP accounting pokicy to its denvative and other financial instruments The group adopted IAS 32/39 on Oclober
1 2005, and the impact 1s shown in note 29

Accounting policy to September 30 2005
Realized exchange gains and losses on currency swaps and forward foreign currency contracts used to convert foreign
currency funds into sterling to meet sterling costs are recognized in the income statement on maturnty

The premium or discount en interest rate instruments I1s recognized as part of net interest payable over the penied of the
contract Interest rate swaps, currency swaps and forward foreign currency contracts are not revalued to fair value or
shown in the group balance sheet at the year end as all transactons denve from hedging activities Interest rate swaps
are accounted for on an accruals basis

Put and call options are not revalued to far value and are not included in the balance sheet

Accounting policy from October 1 2005

All denvative instruments are recorded n the balance shest at far value Recogmition of gans or losses on denvalive
instruments depends on whether the mstrument 15 designated as a hedge and the type of exposure 1t is designed to
hedge

The effective portion of gains or losses on cash flow hedges are deferred in equity unbl the impact from the hedged
item 15 recognised in the ncome statement The ineffective portion of such gans and losses 15 recogrized in the
income statament immediately

Gains or losses on the qualfying part of net investment hedges are recagnized In equity together with the gains and
losses on the underiying net investment The meffective portion of such gains and losses 1s recogmized n the income
slatement immediately

Changes In the fair value of the dervative financial instruments that do not qualfy for hedge accounting are recognized
in the Incoma statement as they anse

Preliminary restatement of 2005 financial information




Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Notes to the Accounts continued

Accounting policies continued

Derivatives and other financial instruments continued
The premwum or discount on Iinterest rate instruments 15 recognized as part of net interest payable over the penod of the
contract Interest rate swaps are accounted for on an accruals basis

Liabiities for put options over the remaming minonty interests In subsidianes are recorded i the balance sheet at therr
estimated discounted present value These discounts are unwound and charged to the income statement as notional interest
over the penod up to the date of the potential future payment In respect of options over further interests n joint ventures and
associates, only movements in therr fair value are recognised

Foreign currencies

The functonal and presentation currency of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC and its UK subsidianes 15 Sterling (E) The
functional currency of subsidianes, associates and joint ventures s the currency of the pnmary economic environment in which
they operate

Transactions n foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assels
and liabiities denominated In foreign currencies are translated into sterhing at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date

The income statements of overseas operations are translated into sterling at the average exchange rates for the year and thew
balance sheets are translated into sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date All exchange differences
ansing on consolidation are taken to equity In the event of the disposal of an operation, the related cumulative translation
differences are recognised in the ncome statement in the penad of disposal

Gams and losses ansing on foreign currency borrowings and derivative instruments, to the extent that they are used to provide a
hedge against the group's equity investments in overseas undertakings, are taken to equity together with the exchange
difference ansing on the net nvestment in those undertakings All cther exchange differences are taken to the income
statement

Leased assets
Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statement on a straight-line or other systematic basis as allowed by 1AS 17
Leases '

Pensions
Contnbutions to pension schemes in respect of curent and past service, ex-gratia pensions, and cost of ving adjustments to
existing pensions are based on the adwice of independent actuanes

Payments to the Euromoney Pension Plan, a defined contnbution pension scheme, are charged as an expense as they fall due

The company also participates in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme, a defined benefit penswon scheme which 15 operated by
Daily Maii and General Trust plc  As there ts no contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the net defined benefit cost
for the plan as a whole to the individual entities, the company recognises an expense equal to Its contributions payable in the
period and does not recognise any unfunded hability of this pension scheme on its balance sheet

Earmngs per share

The eamings per share and diuted earnings per share calculations follow the provisions of IAS 33 'Eamings per share ' The
diluted earnings per share figure 15 calculated by adjusting for the dilution effect of the exercise of all ordinary share options,
SAYE options and the Capitat Apprecighon Plan options granted by the company, but excluding the ordinary shares held by the
Euromoney Employees’ Share Ownership Trust

Depreciation
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 1s provided on the straight-ine basis over their expected useful lives at the following rates
per year

Freehold premises 2%

Long-term leasehold premises over term of lease
Short-term leasehold premises over term of lease
Office equipment 11% - 33%

Motor vehicles 20%

All tangible assets are revwewed for impairmentn accordance with IAS 36 'Imparment of Assets' when there are indications that
the carrying value may not be recoverable
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Notes to the Accounts continued

Accounting policies continued

Trade and other receivables

Trade recevables are recognised and carnied at onginal invoice amount, less provision for mpairment A
provision 1s made and charged to the income statement when there 1s objective evidence that the group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equwvalents includes cash, short-term deposits and other short-term highly hquid
investments with an original matunty of three months or less

For the purpose of the group cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are as defined above, net
of outstanding bank overdrafts

Dividends
Dividends are recognized as an expense n the period in which they are approved by the company's
shareholders Intenm dividends are recorded in the penod 1n which they are paid

Own shares held by ESOP trust
Transactions of the group-sponsored ESOP trust are included in the Group financial statements In
particular, the trusts holdings of shares in the company are debited direct to equity

Prowisions

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the group has a present legal or constructive
cbligation as a result of a past event, and 1t 1s probable that economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation  If it1s matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at
a pre tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the nsks specific to the hability

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the farr value of purchase consideration over the net farr value of
identifiable assets and habiliies acquired

Goodwill 1s recognised as an asset at cost and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
impawrment For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to those cash generating units
that have benefited from the acquisiion The carrying value of goodwill i1s reviewed for impairment at least
annually or where there Is an indication that goodwill may be impaired If the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit 1s less than its carrying amount, then the impairment loss 1s allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assels of the unit on a pro
rata basis Any impairment is recognised immediately in the income statement and may not subsequently
be reversed On disposal of a subsidiary undertaking, the attributable amount of goodwili 1s included in
the determination of the profit and loss on disposal

Goodwill ansing on foreign subsidiary investments held in the consolidated balance sheet are
retranslated into sterling at at the applicable period end exchange rates Any exchange differences
anising are taken directly to equity as part of the retranslation of the net assets of the subsidiary

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRS has been retained at the previous
UK GAAP amounts having been tested for mpairment at that date Goodwill written off to reserves under
UK GAAP befare October 1 1998 has not been remnstated and 1s not included in determining any
subsequent profit or loss on disposal
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Notes to the Accounts continued

Accounting policies continued

Other intangible assets

The group makes an assessment of the far value of intangible assets ansing on acquisitions An
intangible asset will be recognised as long as the asset 1s separable or anses from contractual or other
legal nghts, and its fair value can be measured reliably

Amortisation 1s charged so as to write off the costs of intangible assets over their estmated useful hves,
using the straight-ine method

All intangible assets are reviewed for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’ when
there are indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable

The costs of acquinng and developing software that s not integral to the related hardware 15 capitalised
separately as an intangible asset These intangibles are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses

Share-based payments

The group makes share-based payments to certain employees These payments are measured at therr
estimated fair value at the date of grant, calculated using an appropnate option pncing model The fair
value determined at the grant date 1s expensed on a straight-ine basis over the vesting pencd, based on
the estimate of the number of shares that will eventually vest At the penod end the vesting assumptions
are revisited and the charge associated with the fair value of these options updated In accordance with
the transitional provisions of IFRS 1, IFRS 2 'Share-based payments' has been applied to all grants of
options after November 7 2002, that were unvested at October 1 2004, the date of transition to IFRS

Taxation

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid (or
recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s calculated under the provisions of IAS 12 ‘Income tax' and 1s recognised on
differences between the camying amounts of assets and labilties 1n the accounts and the corresponding
tax bases used n the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet hability
method Deferred tax habilites are generally recogrised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be uthsed No provision 1s made for temporary
differences on unremitied eamings of foreign subsidianes, joint ventures or associates where the group
has control and the reversal of the temporary difference 1s not foreseeable

The camying amount of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply n the penod when the hability 15
settled or the asset Is realised based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred tax Is charged or credited in the income statement, except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax i1s also dealt
with in eguity

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when there 15 a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax

assets against current tax abiiies and when they relate to Income taxes levied by the same taxation
authonty and the group intends to settle its current assets and liabiibies on a net basis
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Notes to the Accounts continued

2 Key judgemental areas adopted in preparing these accounts

The group prepares its Group Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS, the application of which often
requires Judgements to be made by management when formulating the group’s financial position and results
Under IFRS, the directors are required to adopt those accounting policies most appropnate to the group's
cireumstances for the purpose of presenting faily the group's financial position, financial performance and
cash flows

In determiming and applying accounting policies, judgement Is often required in respect of tems where the
choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could matenally affect the
reparted results or net asset position of the group should 1t later be determined that a different choice would
have been more appropnate

Management considers the accounting estmates and assumptions discussed below to be s key
judgemental areas and, accordingly, provides an explanation of each below

The discussion below should also be read n conjunction with the group's disclosure of IFRS accounting
policies, which 1s provided in note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management has discussed its cntical accounting estmates and associated disclosures with the group's
Audit Committee

Acquisitions

The group's accounting pohcy is that on acquisition of a subsidiary or business, the purchase consideration 1s
allocated over the net farr value of identifiable assets, habiiies and contingent habilities acquired, with any
excess purchase consideration representing goodwall

Fair value

Determining the far value of assets, labiities and contingent habiibes acquired requires management's
judgement and often involves the use of significant estimates and assumptions, including assumptions with
respect to future cash flows, recoverabihty of assets, and unprovided habilities and commitments particularly
in relation to tax and VAT

Intangible assets

The group makes an assessment of the fair value of intangible assets ansing on acquistions An intangible
asset will be recognised as long as the asset 15 separable or anses from contractual or other legal nghts, and
its fair value can be measured reliably

The measurement of the fair value of intangible assets acquired requires significant management judgement
particularly in relaton to the expected future cash flows from the acquired marketing databases (which are
generally based on managements estimale of marketing response rates), trademarks, brands, repeal and
well established events At September 30 2006 the net book value of intangible assets 1s £2 6 million (2005
£rl}

Goodwill

Goodwill 1s recognised as an asset at cost and subsequently measured at cosl less accumulated impairment
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to those cash generating units that have
benefited from the acquisiion The carrying value of goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment at least annually or
where there 1s an ndication that goodwill may be impaired

Goodwill 1s iImpaired where the carrying value of goodwill 1s Tugher than the net present vatue of future cash
flows of those cash generating units to which it relates Key areas of judgement in calculating the net present
value are the long term growth rate of the apphcable businesses and the discount rate applied to those cash
fliows Based on the latest valuations, no goodwill was impaired at September 30 2006 Goodwill held on the
balance sheet at September 30 2006 was £68 5 million (2005 £66 0 million)
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Notes to the Accounts continued

2 Key judgemental areas adopted in preparing these accounts continued

Deferred consideration on acquisitions

The group has subsidianes or businesses that were acquired by the group where payment for part of that
entity i1s made at a later date at a price determined by post acquisition profits Where this is the case, the net
present value of the estimated deferred payment i1s recognised as a liabihty on the balance sheet with a
corresponding increase In goodwill assets These discounts are unwound as an interest charge to the
ncome staterment In estimating the deferred payment management make assumptions on the post
acquisition future earnings of the acquired entity and on an appropnate discount rate The deferred
consideration 1s re-estimated regularly and, should the actual deferred payment be different to that
estimated a correction is reguired to goodwill, the amount of cash paid/to be paid and the interest charge At
September 30 2006 the present value of the deferred consideration on acquisitions was £8 1 milkon (2005
£16 2 millon)

Acquisition option commitments

The group s party to a number of put and call options over the remaining minority interests in some of its
subsidianes IAS 39 requires the discounted present value of these acquisition option commitments o be
recognised as a liabibty on the balance sheet with a corresponding decrease In reserves The discounts are
unwound as a notiona! interest charge to the income statement Key areas of judgement in calculating the
discounted present value of the options are the expected future cash flows and earnings of the business,
the penod remaining unlil the option IS exercised and the discount rate At September 30 2006 the
discounted present value of these acquisition option commitments 1s £24 3 milion (October 1 2005 £20 1
million)

Share based payments

The group makes share based payments {0 certain employees These payments are measured at their
estimated fair value at the date of grant, calculated using an appropriate option pncing model The far value
determined at the grant date 1s expensed on a straight-hne basis over the vesting penod, based on the
estimate of the number of shares that will eventually vest The key assumptions used 1n calculaing the far
value of the options are the discount rate, the group's share price volatility, diwvidend yield, nsk free rate of
return, and expected option lives, these are set out in note 22 Management regularly perform a true-up of
the estimate of the number of shares that are expected to vest, this 1s dependant on the anticipated number
of leavers

The Capital Appreciation Plan 1s explained in detail In the Remuneration Report The number of shares
available for award are dependant on the future profits of the group up to at least 2010 which, in addition to
the key assumptions above, management are required to estmate A fall in the estimate of these profits
would result in a lower cumulative charge to the income statement

The charge for share aptions for the year ended September 30 2006 1s £4 4 mithon (2005 £1 4 milion)

Taxation

The group's tax charge on ordinary actvities Is the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges The
calcutation of the group’s total tax charge necessanly involves a degree of estimation and judgement in
respect of certan items whose tax ireatment cannot be finally deterrmined until resolution has been reached
with the relevant tax authonty of, as appropriate, through a formal legal process The final resolution of
some of these tems may give nse to materia! profit and loss and/or cash flow vanances

The group 15 2 multinational group with tax affairs in many geographical locations This inherently leads to a
higher than usual complexity to the group’s tax structure and makes the degree of estimation and
judgement more challenging The resolution of 1ssues 1s not always within the control of the group and it Is
often dependent on the efficiency of the legal processes In ihe relevant taxing jurisdictions in which the
group operales Issues can, and often do, take many years to resolve Payments in respect of tax habilities
for an accounting penod result from payments on account and on the final resolution of open tems As a
result, there can be substantial differences between the tax charge in the ncome statement and tax
payments
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Notes to the Accounts continued

2 Key judgemental areas adopted in preparing these accounts continued

Taxation continued

The group has certain significant open items in several tax junsdictions and as a result the amounts
recognised 1n the group financial statements in respect of these tems are denved from the group’s best
estimation and judgement, as descrbed above However, the inherent uncertanty regarding the outcome of
these items means eventua! resolution could differ from the accounting estimates and therefore impact the
group's results and cash flows

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The recognition of deferred tax assets 1s based upon whether it 1s probable that sufficent and suitable
taxable profits will be available n the future, against which the reversal of temporary differences can be
deducted Recognition, therefore, mvolves judgement regarding the future financial performance of the
particular legal entity or tax group n which the deferred tax asset has been recogmsed

Histoncal differences between forecast and actual taxable profits have not resulted in matenal adjustments
to the recognition of deferred tax assets At September 30 2006, the group had a deferred tax asset of £22 9
million {2005 £9 8 milkon)

Treasury

Interest rate exposure

Interest rate swaps and caps are used to manage the group's exposure to fluctuations n interest rates on s
floating rate borrowings The matunity profile of these denvatives is matched with the expected future debt
profile of the group The group's policy 1s to fix the interest rates on approximately 80% of its term debt
looking forward over five years The expected future debt profile of the group i1s based on estimates of both
timings and size of future, as yet unknown, acquisitions offset by an estimate of the cash generated by the
group over a five year pencd If management matenally underestimate the group's future debt profile this
would lead to too few interest rate instruments being in place and the group more exposed to swings In
interest rates An overestimate of the group's future debt profile would lead to associated costs In unwinding
the excess interest rate nstruments At September 30 2006, the fair value of the group's interest rate swaps
was £2 0 million {October 1 2005 £1 3 million)

Forward contracts

The group Is exposed to foreign exchange nsk in the form of fransactions in foreign currencies entered into
by group companies and by the translation of the results of foreign subsidianes into sterling for reporting
purposes

The group does not hedge the translation of the results of foreign subsidianes, conseguently, fluctuations in
the value of pounds stering versus currencies could matenally affect the amount of these items in the
consolidated financial statements, even If their values has not changed in their onginal currency The group
does endeavour to match foreign currency borrowings to investments in order to provide a nalural hedge for
the translation of the net assets of overseas subsidianes

Approximately 60% of the group's revenues are n US dollars Subsidianes normally do not hedge
transactions In foreign currencies into the functional currency of their own operations However, at a group
level a senes of US dollar forward contracts 1s put in place up to 48 months forward partiaily to hedge its
dollar revenues into stering The tming and value of these forward contracts 1s based on managements
estimate of its future US dollar revenues over a 48 month penod If management matenally underestimate
the group's future US dollar revenues this would lead to too few forward contracts being in place and the
group more exposed to swings In US dollar to sterting exchange rates An overestimate of the group's US
dollar revenue would lead to associated costs in unwinding the excess forward contracts At September 30
2008, the fair value of the group's forward contracts was asset £1 0 million (October 1 2005 liabiity of £1 9
million)

Details of the financial instruments used are set out in note 17 to the accounts
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3

Segmental analysis

Primary reporting format

Segmental information 1s presented in respect of the group's business divistons and represent the group's management and internal reporting structure The
group I1s currantly crganised into five business divisions Financial publishing, Business publishing, Training, Conferences and seminars, and Databases and
\nformation services This 18 considered to be the prnmary reporting format Financial publishing and Business Publishing consist prmanly of advertising and
subscnption revenue The Training division consists primarly of delegate revenue Conferences and seminars consists of both sponsorsp income and
delegate revenue Databases and information services consists of subscription revenue A breakdown of the group's revenue by type 1s set out below

Secondary reporting format

The group divides the operation of its businesses across three main geographucal areas United Kingdom,

includes Asia) These geographical areas are considered as the secondary reporting format

Inter segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates

North Amenca, and Rest of Word (which pnmarily

United Kingdom North Amaerica Rest of World Eliminations Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's E£000's £000's £000's £000's
Revenue
By division and source
Finangial pubishing 31,905 29,425 31,637 28,365 1,605 1408 - - 65,147 59,198
Business pubhshing 15,829 14,610 8,362 7,039 1,292 1,155 - - 25,483 22,804
Training 19,831 16,342 7,143 6,580 2,243 2,140 (390) (358} 28,827 24,704
Conferences and seminars 28,021 22,101 41,200 38,894 11,859 7,976 {4,220} {4 313) 76,960 64,758
Databases and information services 5,201 4,894 5,349 4,304 10,689 7.344 - 5 21,219 16,547
Closed businesses 1,721 4,053 - 344 146 1,420 (21) (44) 1,846 5773
Unallocated corposate costs 1,980 1,718 - - - - (1,006) (670) 974 1,048
Group revenue 104,488 93,143 93,691 85626 27,934 21,443 {5.637} (5 380) 220,476 194,832
Jont ventures {sale of goods) 915 1434 - 885 - - - 1,800 1434
105,403 94 577 93,691 85,626 28,819 21,443 {5,637) {5 380) 222 276 196 266

The joint venture revenues of £1,800,000 (2005 £1,434,000) can be allocated as follows, Business publishing £815,000 (2005 £1,434,000}, Databases and
nformation serwces £885,000 (2005 £nil)

2006 2005
£000's £000's
Revenue by type
Advertising 58,589 53,328
Sponsorship 37,176 32,705
Subscnptions 56,300 43,017
Traning, delegates and events 57,442 46,766
Other 9,123 8,224
Closed businesses 1,846 5772
Total revenue 220,476 194,832
Investment income 733 340
Total revanue and investment income 221,209 195 172
United Kingdom North America Rest of World Eliminations Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
£000°s £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000"s EDOO's £000's £000's
Revenue
By destination
Sale of goods 24,334 23,212 58,303 52,853 38,606 32,697 (4,844} (3,414) 117,399 105,348
Sale of services 12,562 9,736 42,857 37,893 46,585 38 005 (773} (1922) 101,231 83,712
Closed businesses {sale of goods} 489 1,703 464 1,126 914 2987 (21} {44) 1,846 5,772
Group revenue 37,385 34,651 102,624 91872 86,105 73,689 {5,638) {5 380) 220,476 194,832
Joint ventures (sale of goods) &0 57 152 270 1,588 1,107 - - 1,800 1,434
Total revenue 37,445 34,708 102,776 92,142 87,693 74,796 (5,638) (5 380) 222,276 196 266
Investment income 284 119 366 189 83 32 - - 733 340
Total revanue (including share of
jaint venture revenue) and
investment income 37,729 34,827 103,142 92 31 87,776 74 B28 {5,638) {5 380) 223,009 196 806
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3

Segmental analysis continued

United Kingdom North America Rest of World Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £00C's £000's £000's
Oparating profit'
By division and source
Financial publishing 8,526 8,413 4,637 2,664 (ki) 141 13,150 11,218
Business publishing 5,020 3,861 1,560 1,475 204 a9 6,784 5425
Training 5,069 3,908 1,460 1,619 456 632 6,985 8,157
Caonferences and seminars 7,486 5,871 11,091 13,281 1,708 158 20,285 19,320
Catabases and informatien services 3,792 2,768 (121) 1,551 1,721 (427) 5,392 3,892
Closed businesses (108) {182) . (248} ] (66) (100} {496)
Unallocated corporate costs {7,548) {5 652) {1,097) (516) (39) - (8,684) (6 168)

22,237 18,985 17,530 19,836 4,045 527 43,812 39,348
Acquired intangible amortisation - - - . (144 - {144) -
Share option expense {2,241) (830} {1,944} (508} {243) (42) (4,428) {1 380)
Exceptional tems (note 5) (716) (315) . - - - (716) {315)
Oparating profit before assoclates
and joint ventures 19,280 17,840 15,586 19,328 3,658 485 38,524 37.653
Share of results In associates and
Jont ventures 1,208 624
Net finance costs {4,498) {3 843)
Profit before tax 35,234 34,434
Tax 3,512 2417y
Profit after tax 18,746 32,017

The exceptional tems of £716 000 (2005 £315,000) can be allocated as follows, Business publishing

profit £1,286,000 (2005 £} Share option expense of £4,428,000 (2005 £1,380
£373,379) Busmess publshing £464,000 (2005 £144,695) Traning £577,000 (2
Databases £302,000 (2005 £94,000), Unallocatad corporate costs £634,000 (200

000) can be allocated as folows,
005 £180,000), Conferences and semmars £1,263 000 {2005 390,000),
5 £198,000) Acquired ntangible amortisabon of £144 000 {2005 £nil) 15

£2 002,000 (2005 £315,000), Unallocated carporate costs,

Financial pubhshing £1,198,000 (2005

allocated entrrely to Databases and nformation services

1 Operating profit before acquired intangible amortisatien, share option expense and exceptional tems
2 Intangibles amortisation reprasents amortisation on acquisitions related non goodwill assets such as brands, database content and trademarks

Databases Noen-
Conferences and operating
Financial Business and information Closed assets/
publishing  publishing Tralning saminars services businesses {lsabilities} Total
E£000's £000's £000°s £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Net assets/(liabilities} by division
As at Septamber 30 2006
Assets 52,632 29,472 15,968 54,812 31,982 552 43,168 239,088
Liabiktes (56,472) {7,581) {6,021} (16,906} {38,456) 106 (140,531}  (265.862)
Net assets/{liabilities) {3.840) 22,391 9,948 47,908 (6,474} 858 (97,363} (26,774)
Capial expendrture (including intangiblas) (542) (125) {39} (126) (175) - (6,983) (7.,990)
Depreciaticn {524) (127) {30} {78} {514} . {1,653} {2,925}
Amortisation {14} N - {2} (321) - {37) (381)
Impaiment losses (291} {228) - - - - - {519)
Acquisition put option commitments {491) . - {8,703) {15,138} - - (24,332)
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3 Segmental analysis continued

Net assets/{liabillties) by division continued

Databases

and Non-aperating

Financial Business Conferences  infarmation Closed assels/
pubhshing  publishing Traning  and seminars services  businesses (fiabiktres) Total
£000's £000's £000's EOQQ's £000's £000's £000's £000's

As at September 30 2005

Assets 45,413 35,626 14,725 55,449 12,468 1,633 8,839 174 153
Liabilities (55871) (4 763) (2013) {7 679) (24 727) {950) {114 100) _(210103)
Net assets/(liabilities) (10 458} 30,863 12,712 47,770 {12 258) 683 (105 261) {35 950}
Capital expenditure (including intangiblas) (253) (20} (16) {60) (1330) - (3683) (5432)
Depreciation (517) {129) (37 {124) {393) - (395) (1 595)
Amortisation (10 (2} {6} 200 (103) - (27) {550)

Non-operating assets and liabilities principally include deferred tax, corporation tax, external bank koans, loans to and from DMGT dividend recevable, deferred
consideration, acquisition optign commiiments, and assets hewd for resale

United Kingdom North America Rast of Werld Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

£000's £000’s E000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Net assets/(llabilities)
By location
Assets 94,836 63,914 127,416 86 725 16,836 Z3 514 239,088 174,153
Labilities (71,536) {51932)  (166,235) (140 428} {28,091) (17 743) (265,862) (210 103)
Net assets/{habilties) 23,300 11,982 (38,819) {53 703) {11,255} 5771 {26,774) {35 950)
Capital expenditure by location 6,984 3679 629 1,263 81 74 7,604 5017

The goodwill net boak value of £68,452 000 (2005 £66,029,000) can be allocated as follows Financial publishing £14,717 000 (2005 £ 14,722 Q00), Business
pubhshing £6,189,000 (2005 £9,670,000), Conferences and seminars £36,470 000 (2005 £33 736,000), Training £2,205,000 (2005 £nil) and Databases and
informatien services £8,871 000 (2005 £7,901,000)

Annua! Report & Accounts 2008




Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Notes to the Accounts continued

4

Operating profit

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Operating profit before associates and joint ventures

Total Total
2006 2005
£000's £000's
220,476 194,832
(74,924) (63,523)
145,552 131,309
(4,625) (4,894)
{1062,403) (88,762)
38,524 37,653

Administrative expenses includes goodwill impairment of £519,000 (2005 £nil), loss on disposal of businesses of

£1,483,000 (2005 £315,000) and profit on sale of property £1,286,000 (2005 £nil)

Operating profit is stated after charging/{crediting)

Staff costs (note 6)
fntangibles amortisation
Acquired intangible amortisation
Licenses and software
Goodwill impairment
Depreciation of property plant and equipment
Auditors’ remuneration
Group
Fees for non-audit services
Property operating lease rentals
Profit on sale of property
Foreign exchange gains

The audit and non-audit services relate to

Fees payable for the audit of the company's annual accounts
Fees payable for other services to the group
Total audit fees

Other audit services
Other services pursuant to legisiation
Tax services
Other services

Total non-audit fees

2006 2005
£000's £000's
75,567 66,425

144

237 150
519 -
2,925 1,595
512 475
222 141
4,431 4,491
(1,286) .
503 {1.576)
2006 2005
£000's £000's
318 270
194 205
12 475
85 47
110 56
27 38

222 141

In addition to the above amounts, non-audit fees of £365,000 (2005 £83,000) arose in respect of acquisitions
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5 Exceptional items

Exceptional items are items of income or expense considered by the directors, either individually or if of a similar
type In aggregate, as being either matenal or significant and which require disclosure in order to provide a view of
the group's results excluding these items

2006 2005

£000's £000's

Profit on sale of property 1,286 -
Loss on disposal of business {1,483) (315)
Goodwill impairment {note 11) (519) -
(716) {315)

In September 2008, the group sold the freehold of one of its London properties with a net book value of £629,000
for £1,875,000 resulting n a profit on sale, after related sale costs, of £1,286,000 The group has capital losses
brought forward from prior years available to relieve this gain In the absence of these losses a tax charge of
approximately £386,000 would have ansen

In August 2006 the group sold Office Products Intemational Limited (previously named Mondiale Limited) (“OPI"),
the pubhsher and events organiser for £150,000 At the date of disposal OPI's net assets were £nil and the group
wrote off goodwill held on its balance sheet of £1,651 ,000 resutting in a loss on disposal, after related transaction
costs, of £1,483,000 There 1s no tax effect

The group regularly performs a review of its portfclio of businesses and in 2006 the review resulted in goodwill
impairment of £519,000 In 2005, no such impairment was required There 1s no tax effect
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6 Staff costs

(i) Directors’ emoluments

2006 2005
£000's £000's
The emoluments of the directors of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC
were as follows
Directors' salanies and fees, benefits in kind and profit shares 8,431 7,314
Pension contnibutions (including wawer of profil shares} 828 672
9,259 7,986

Detalls of directors’ remuneration are set out In the Dhrectors' Remuneration Report on pages 2710 40

(1) Number of staff (including directors)

2006 2005
Average Average
By busmness segment.
Financial publishing 416 469
Business publishing 207 223
Traning 142 127
Conferences and seminars n 223
Oatabases and information services 360 N
Central 288 245
1,734 1,618
2006 2005
By geographical location Average Average
United Kingdom 621 647
North Amenca 647 5H
Rest of World 466 380
1,734 1,618
{ni) Staff costs (Including directors}
2006 2005
£000's £000's
Salanes, wages and incentives 63,344 57,313
Social secunty costs 6,525 6,609
Pensian contnbutions 1,270 1,123
Share-based compensation cosls 4,428 1,380
75,567 66,425

(iv) Pension contributions

The company operates the Euromoney Pension Plan in the UK and the 401K savings and investment plan in the
US It also participates in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme, which 1s operated by Datly Mail and General Trust

plc

The pension charge for the year ended September 30 compnsed

2006 2005
£000's £000's

Harmsworth Pension Scheme 243 213
Euromoney Pension Plan 532 392
Private schemes 495 518
1,270 1,123
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Staff costs continued

Harmsworth Pension Scheme

The Harmsworth Pension Scheme 1s a defined benefit scheme operated by Daily Mail and General Trust pic providing
service-related benefits based on final pensionable salary The assets of the scheme are held independently from the
company's finances and are administered by a lrustee company The contributions payable to the scheme are
determined by the trustee company after taking advice from an independent qualified actuary, and following
agreement with the company This scheme s no longer offered to new employees of the company The most recent
actuaral valuation of the scheme, upon which the current contrbutions are based, was carned out as at 31 March
2004 and the key financial assumptions adopted were as follows

Long-term assumed rale of

Investment return 70%pa
Price inflation 275%pa
Salary increases 45%pa
Pension increases 275%p.a
Discount rate for accrued habilities 66%pa

The results of the actuarial valuations of the principal schemes of Dally Mail and General Trust plc as at March 31
2004 indicated an aggregate deficit of £22 1 miflion (after taking account of certan events that took place shortly after
the valuation date) Allowing for this deficit, and the changes to the benefis under the schemes effective from Apnl 1
2005, the trustee companies and the company agreed 10 increase the employers’ contribution rate from 15% to 18%
of pensionable salaries with effect from October 1 2004

The company cash contribution rate to the scheme during the current year was therefore 18% of pensionable salaries
(2005 18%)

The scheme has a two-tiered benefit structure represented by a “Standard” section and a “Pension +” section In the
“Standard” section, employees pay contributions of 5% of pensionable salaries and have benefits based on a normal
retirement age of 65 Under the "Pension +” section, employees currently pay contnbutions of 7%, nsing to 7 5% on
July 1 2007 and enjoy a higher benefit accrual rate and lower normal retirement age than in the “Standard” section

A prepayment of £209,000 (2005 £204,000) 1s included under debtors, representing prepaid contributions for the year
to September 30 2007 paid in accordance with the schedule of contnbutions currently in force

The Group I1s unable to identify its share of the underying assets and habiities the this scheme The scheme I1s
operated on an aggregate basis with no segregation of the assets o individual participating employers and, therefore,
the same contribution rate 1s charged to all paricipating employers {ie the contribution rate charged to each employer
is affected by the expenence of the scheme as a whole) The scheme s therefore accounted for as a defined
contribution scheme by the company This means that the penson charge included in these financial statements 1s
the same as the cash contnbutions due In the period

The ultimate parent company, Daily Mal and General Trust pic, 1s required to account for the defined benefit scheme
under International Accounting Standard 19 *Employee Benefits” ("IAS 197} The IAS 19 disclosures in the Annual
Report and Accounts of Dally Mail and General Trust plc have been based on the results of the actuanal valuation of
the defined benefit scheme as at March 31 2004 adjusted to allow for the assumptions and actuanal methodology
required by IAS 19 and updated to October 1 2006 by the scheme's actuary These showed thal the market value of
the pnncipal scheme's assels was £584 2million (2005 £531 9 million) and that the actuanal value of these assets
represented 87 6% (2005 84 9%) of the benefits that had accrued to members {(also calculated 1n accordance with
IAS 19)
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Staff costs continued

Euromoney Pension Plan

The Euromoney Pension Plan 1s a defined contnbution arrangement under which contrbutions are paid by the employer and
employees From February 1 2003 this plan was merged with the DMGT Pension Trust, an umbrella trust under which DMGT UK
defined contnbution plans are held Insured death benefits are also held under this trust

The plan 1s contracted-in to the State Second Pension and its assets are invested under trust in funds selected by members and
held independently from the company's finances The investment and administration of the plan s undertaken by Fidelity Pension
Management

Private schemes

Inshtutional Investor, Inc coninbutes to a 401k sawngs and Investment plan for its employees which 18 admirustered by an
independent investment provider Employees are able to contnbute up to 15% of salary with the company malching up to 50% of
the employee contnbutions, up to 5% of satary

Stakeholder pensions
The company provides access to a stakeholder pension plan for relevant employees who are not ehgible for other pension

schemes operated by the group

Finance income and expense

2006 2005
£000's £000's
Finance income
Interest receivable from short-term investments 623 340
Dwvidends receivable from assets held for sale 110 -
Ineffectiveness of interest rate swaps 39 -
772 340
Finance expense
Commutted faciity (4,020) (3,711)
Imputed interest on acquisition option commitments {916) -
Notional interest on deferred consideration {334) (472)
(5.270) {4.183)
Net finance expense T (4,498) T (3843)
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Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Current tax expense

UK corporation tax

Foreign tax

Adjustments in respect of prior years

Deferred tax (credit)/expense
Current year
Adjustments 0 respect of pror years

Total tax (credit)expense in income statement

2006 2005
£000's £000's
6,119 5,194
1,533 1,531

107 544
7,759 7,269

(11,361) (4,701)

90 (151)

(11,271} {4 852)
(3,512) 2,417

The effective rate of tax for the year I1s negative, at (10%) (2005 positive 7%) The actual total tax charge for the
year is different from 30% of profit before tax for the reasons set out in the following reconciiation

Profit before tax

Tax at 30%
Factors affecting tax charge
Lower rates of tax on overseas profits
Joint venture and associate income reported net of tax
US State taxes
US goodwill
Disallowable expenditure
UK Goodwill
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses
Non deductible loss on sale of business
Pricr year adjustments
Total tax charge for the year

2006 2005
£000's £000's
35,234 34,434
10,570 10,330
(338) (599)
(362) (187)
756 1,283
(13,120) (1,809)
136 246
161 -
(1,957} (7.240)
445 -
197 393
(3,512) 2417

Of the charge to current tax £nil (2005 £18,000) related to profits ansing in Mondiale, which was disposed of
dunng the year No tax charge or credit arose on the disposal of the relevant subsidiary Foliowing a
reassessment of the recoverabibty of the potential US deferred tax asset, an additional asset of £13,649,000

(2005 £7,240,000) was recognised dunng the year

The actual tax charged directly to equity was £265,000 (2005 £264,000)
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9 Dmividends

Amounts recognisable as distributable to equity holders in pernod
Final dividend for the year ended September 30 2005 of 11 Op (2004 10 0p)
Interim dividend for year ended September 30 2006 of 5 4p (2005 5 2p)

Employees' Share Ownership Trust dwidend

Proposed final dvidend for the period ended September 30
Employees’ Share Ownership Trust dividend

2006 2005
£000's £000's
9,767 8,798
4,806 4,587

14,573 13,385
(10) (9)
14,563 13,376
11,907 9,767
(10) 10
11,897 9,757

The final dvidend of 11 8p (2005 11 Op) 15 subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting on February 5 2007 and has not
been included as a liabiity in these financial statements in accordance with IAS 10 "Events after the balance sheet date”

40 Earnings per share

Basic earnings

Intangible amortisation

Exceptional items

Deferred tax assels recogmtion

imputed nterest on acquisition option commitments
Adjusted earnings

Weighted average nurnber of shares
Shares held by the Employees’ Share Ownership Trust

Effect of dilutive share options
Diluted weighted average number of shares

Basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive share oplions

Diluted earnings per share

Effect of intangible amortisation

Effect of exceptional items

Effect of deferred tax assets recognition

Effect of imputed interest on acquisition option commitments
Adjusted diluted earnings per share

2006 2005
£000's £000's
37,430 30,181
144 -
716 315
{13,649) (7.240)
916 -
25,557 23,256
Number Number
000's 000's
88,943 88,336
{58} {89)
88,884 88,277
456 231
89,340 88,508
2006 2005
Pence per Pence per
share share
42 11 3419
{0 21) {009)
4190 3410
016 -
080 036
{15 28) (8 18}
103 -
28 61 26 28

The adjusted diluted earnngs per share figure has been disclosed since the directors consider i 1o gve a meaningful indication

of the underlying trading performance
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11 Goodwill and other intangibles

Intangibles
acquired on Licenses & Licenses &
acquisition Software Goodwill Software Goodwill
2006 2006 2008 2005 2005
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Cost
At Qctober 1 - 1,048 101,261 07 95,196
Additions - 296 1,631 415 7,727
Acquisitions (note 14) 2,770 - 5,609 - -
Disposals - - (1,651} (300) (1,662)
Exchange differences - (49) (2,642) 26 -
At September 30 2,770 1,295 104,208 1,048 101,261
Amortization and impairment
At October 1 - 569 35,232 544 35,963
Amortisation charge for the year 144 237 - 150 -
imparrment losses - - 519 - -
Disposals - - - {136) (731}
Exchange differences - (31) 5 11 -
At September 30 144 775 35,756 569 35,232
Net book value at September 30 2,626 520 68,452 479 66,029
The carrying amounts of goodwill by business are as follows
2006 2005
£000's £000's
Worldhnk - 136
CEIC 5,609 -
internet Securives, Inc 3,303 2,205
MIS 2,205 2,328
Mondiale - 1,651
Engel publishing 1,871 1,977
Petroleum Economist 236 236
Guif pubhishing 4,083 4,311
Tempest - 29
HedgeFund Intelligence 14,718 14,718
Information Management Network 36,419 38,097
Other 8 79
Total 68,452 66,029

During the year the goodwill in respect of each of the above businesses was tested for imparment in accordance with
IAS 36 With the exceplion of Mondiale, which was sold dunng the year, and Worldink and Tempest, that ceased
operations, and were therefore fully imparred, each of the others were assessed to have a value in excess of ther
respective carrying values, and hence no other adjustments to goodwill were considered necessary other than exchange

rate fluctuations

The key assumptions in the value in use calculations were

Forecasts by business based on pre-tax cash flows denved from approved budgets for 2007 Management beheve

these budgets to be reasonably achievable,

«Subsequent cash flows were increased n ine with growth expectations of the applicable business,
=The pre-lax discount rate used was 10%, the same as that used In assessing potenbal acquisitions,

«Long term growth rate assumed to be 3%
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Long-term  Short-term

Freehold leasehold leasehold Office Motor
2006 premises premises premises equipment vehicles Total
2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 2006

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Cost
At October 1 2005 862 2,575 6,961 14,678 36 25,112
Additions - - 6,101 1,593 - 7,694
Disposals (862) - - {151) - (1,013)
Exchange differences - - {225) {528) - (753)
At September 30 2006 - 2,575 12,837 15,592 36 31,040
Depreciation
At October 1 2005 217 159 2,804 11,160 25 14,365
Charge for the year 16 - 1,367 1,531 1 2,925
Disposals (233) - - {149) - (382)
Exchange differences - - (84) (427} - (511)
At September 30 2006 - 159 4,087 12,115 36 16,397
Net book value at September 30 2006 - 2,416 8,750 3,477 - 14,643
Net book value at September 30 2005 645 2,416 4,157 3,518 11 10,747

Long-term Short-term

Freehold leasehold leasehold Office Motor
2005 premises premises premises equipment vehicles Total
2008 2005 2005 2005 2005 2005

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Cost
Al October 1 2004 862 - 7,264 12,327 123 20,576
Additions - 2,075 102 2,840 - 5,017
Transfer - 500 (500) - - -
Disposals - - - (680) {87) (767)
Exchange differences - - 95 191 - 286
At September 30 2005 862 2,575 6,961 14,678 36 25,112
Depreciation
At October 1 2004 200 - 2,503 10,583 77 13,363
Charge for the year 17 18 409 1,136 15 1,685
Transfer - 141 (141) - - -
Disposals - - - (757) {67) (824)
Exchange differences - - 33 198 - 231
At September 30 2005 217 159 2,804 11,160 25 14,365
Net book value at September 30 2005 645 2,416 4,157 3,518 11 10,747
Net book value at September 30 2004 6§62 - 4,761 1,744 46 7,213
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Notes to the Accounts continued

13

Investments

2006

Al October 12005
Additions

Share of profits retained
Increase in far value
Transfer to subsidiaries
Dnndends

Prowvision

At September 30 2006

2005

At October 1 2004
Addbons

Share of profits retained
Foreign exchange

At September 30 2005

Investmaents in Avallable for
assoclated Investmants in sale Trade

undertakings joint ventures investments investment Tota!
£000's £000"s £000's £000's £000's

2,479 4,587 - 14 7.080

- 3,424 19,740 - 23,164

419 788 - - 1,207

- - 405 - 405

{5 0586) (5,058}

{756) - - - (756)
{198} - - (198)

1,944 3,743 20,145 14 25,846

Investments n
agsociated investments in  Avaiable for sale

undertakings Joint ventures investments  Trade investment Total
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

140 186 - 14 340

2,080 4,017 - - 6,097

259 365 - - 624

- 19 - - 19

2,479 4,587 - 14 7 080

The associated undertakings at September 30 2006 were Capital NET Limited whose principal activity 1s the provision of electronic database services
and TelCap Limited whose principal activity 15 business pubkshing The group has a 4B 4% mterest in Capial NET Limited and a 40% interest in

TelCap Limited

The joint venture undertaking at Se
47 5% nterest in Asia Busmess Forum For the six months to March 31 2006 the grou
April 2008 the group paid the second instalment of $
capital by 25% and bnnging our total holding to 74%

plember 30 2006 was Asia Business Forum whose principal actvity is conferences and training Tha group has a
p had a 49% yoint venture interest In CEIC Hoaldings Limited In

7 4 milhen (£4 3 mullion}) for CEIC Heldings Limited, increasing the nvestment in its equity share
CEIC, from Apnl 2008, 1s treated as a subsidiary and no longer classified as a joint venture

The available for sale investments represent the 4,931,595 of Metal Bulletin plc shares acquired by the group in August 2006 This represents 8 9%
of the equity share capiial of Metal Bulletin ple at the time of acquisition

The group has a 50% interest m Capital DATA Limited The ordinary share capudat of Capital DATA 15 divided ito 50 ‘A’ shares and 50 ‘B’ shares with

the group owning the 50 A shares Under the terms of the
enttisment to any share of dividends or other distnbution of
inftuence nor is it involved in the day to day running of the business As such Capital DATA s accounted for as a U

Articles of Association of Capttal DATA, the *A’ shares held by the group do not carry
profits of Capital DATA The group does not have the abiiity to exercise significant
rade investment The group I1s

entitled to 28 2% of Capital DATA's revenues being £2,746,000 in the year {2005 £2,676,000) At December 31 2005, Capial DATA Limited had
£195 000 of 1ssued share capial and reserves (December 31 2004 £212,000}, and its loss for the year then ended was £17,000 (December 31

2004 profit £568,000)

Some of the group's associates
after tax generated by the group’s associates and joint ventures from their respective lates

Total assets
Total habilities
Total revenues
Profit after tax
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and jont ventures do not have coterrminous year ends with the group The lotal assets, habilies, revenues and profit

1 avalable audited accounts ars set oul below

Assoclates and
joint ventures

Associates and
Joint ventures

2006 2005
£000's £000's
3,624 1,948
{1,648) {815)
6,725 3,669
1,815 1056
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Notes to the Accounts continued

13 Investments continued

Details of the pnncipal subsidiary undertakings included in these consoltdated financial statements at September 30 2006 are
as follows

Proportion Principal activity and Country of
held operation incorporation

Direct investments
Adhesion (UK) Limited 100% Conventions Great Britain
Coaltrans Conferences Limited 95% Conferences Great Bntain
Euromoney Institutional Investor (Ventures) Limited 100% Investment holding company Great Britain
Euromoney institutional Investor (Jersey) Limited 100%t Publishing Jersey
Eurcmoney Jersey (Finance) Limited 100% Holding company Great Bntan
Euromoney Publications (Jersey) Limiled 100%* Publishing Jersey
Euromoney Publications (Overseas) Limited 100% Holding company Great Britain
Euromoney US Heldings LP 100% Holding company us
Glenpnnt Limited 100% Publishing Great Bntain
HedgeFund Inteligence Limited 100% Publishing Great Bntain
The Petroleum Economist Limited 100% Publishing Great Britain
Tipall Limited 100% Property holding Great Britain
World Link Publications Limited 100% Publishing Great Bntain
Indirect Investments
Adheston el Associes SA 100% Conventions France
Business Conventions Internationale 100% Conventions France
Carlcroft Limited 100% Publishing Great Britain
CEIC Holdings Limuted 74% Publishing Hong Kong
Ell Holdings, Inc 100%" Holding company Us
Enge! Publishing Partners 100% Publishing us
Euromoney (Singapore) Pte Ltd 100% Training Singapore
Euromoney Training, Inc 100% Holding company us
Euromoney, Inc 100% Holding company uUs
Gulf Publishing Company 100% Publishing us
Information Management Network, Inc 80% Conferences us
Institutional Investor, Inc 100% Publshing us
Internet Secuntes, Inc 92 20% Information services us
Latin Amenican Financial Publications, In¢ 100% Publishing us
Med Ad, Ing 100% Holding company us
MIS Training (UK) Limited 100% Trarung Great Brtain
MIS Training Insutute, LLC 100% Training us
Joint ventures and associates
Capital NET Limited 48% Databases Great Batain
Asia Business Forum 48% Conferences Hong Kong
TelCap Limited 40% Publishing Great Britain

All heldings are of crdinary shares
* 100% preference shares held in addition

+ Euromoney Institutional Investor {Jersey} Limited’s pnincipal country of operation 1s Hong Kong
 Euromoney Publications (Jersey) Limited's principal country of operation is Great Bntain
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Notes to the Accounts continued

14 Acquisitions and Disposals

Acquisitions
The following interests were acquired in the year

Purchase of new businesses

In March 2008, the group signed an agreement to acquire 47 5% of Asia Business Forum ("ABF"), a leading conference
orgarser and training business for the Asian region The price, including payments for working capital and fees, for the inihal
47 5% tranche 1s £3 4 millon |n addition, the group has an option to acqurre a further 42 5% In March 2007 and the final 10%
after 2008 These further payments are dependent on the audited profits of ABF for the years to December 31 2006, and 2009
or later, respectively The maximum consideration payable for 100% of ABF 1s capped at £17 6 million

In July 2006, the group, through Internet Securities, Inc (IS!) purchased substantially all of the assets of RussiaDeal LLC's
financial deal Information business based m Moscow The maximum consideration payable s capped at $500,000 (£268,000)

Payments of deferred consideration

in February 20086, in accordance with the purchase agreement, the group paid the third instalment of $14 2 million (£8 Omillion)
for Information Management Network "IMN", the 80% owned financial conference organiser purchased in February 2004
Further deferred consideration payments under the purchase agreement 1s payable in February 2006 and 2007 {note 16 and
17) This resulted In the creation of £356,000 additional goodwill

Increase 1n equity shareholdings
in February 2008, the group purchased a further 1% of the equity share capital of IS for a cash consideration of $4 2milhion
{£2 3 million) bringing the group’s holding to 92% This resulted in addiional goodwill of £1 3 million

In July 2006, the group, through 151, paid the second instalment of $7 4 million (£4 0 milion) for CEIC Holdings Limited, one of
the leading providers of ime-series macro-economic data covering Asia, increasing our Investment in its equity share capital by
25% and bringing our tatal holding to 74% and has since been consolidated as a subsidiary This resulted in addittonal goodwill
of £1 3 million

The amount that CEIC has contributed to revenue and operating profit since becoming a subsidiary 1s £1,918,000 and
£812,000 respectively

Book Fair value Provisional Provisional
value adjustments fair value goodwill Consideration
£000's £000's £000's £000°s £000's
ABF 150 905 1,055 2,369 3,424
CEIC 273 2,379 2,652 1,325 3,977

Disposals

in August 2006 the group sold Office Products International Limited (previously named Mondiale Limited) (*OPI’}, the publisher
and events organiser for £150,000 with a further cash payment due to the group dependant on its future profits At the date of
disposal OPl's net assets were £l and the group wrote off goodwill held on its balance sheet of £1 6 million resuiting in a loss
on disposal of £1 5 milion There is no tax effect The results of disposed businesses are included in the consolidated
accounts up to therr date of disposal
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Notes to the Accounts continued

14 Acquisitions and Disposals

Post-balance sheet date acquisitions

Metal Bulletin Plc

On August 4 2008, the group announced the terms of a recommended cash offer for Euromoney Institutional Investor (Ventures)
Limited, a subsidiary of the company, to acquire the entire ordinary share capial of Metal Bulletin Plc The offer document
setting out the full terms of the offer was posted to Metal Bulletin Shareholders on August 31 2006

All of the conditions of the offer have been satisfied and the offer was declared unconditional on October 5 2006, representing
the date of acquisition

Under the terms of the offer, Metal Bulietin shareholders recewed 400 pence in cash for every Metal Bulletin share held The
offer valued the 1ssued ordinary share capital of Metal Bulletin at approximately £230 milion which includes associated fees of
£5 million

A partal share alternative was made available which allowed Metal Bulletin shareholders to elect to receve any proportion of the
consideration i new Euromeney shares subject to not more than 14 milion new Euromeney shares being 1ssued For the
purposes of the partial share alternative, each consideration share had an assumed value of 394 75 pence which was
Euromoney's closing share prce on July 25 2008, the last business day before the announcement made by Euromoney of the
final proposed recommended offer for Metal Bulletm The partial share allernative was oversubscribed and the maximum
number of Euromoney shares were 1ssued on October 6 2006

A loan note alternative was alsc made avalable Shareholders were entitled to elect to recewe, for every £1 of cash
consideration, £1 nominal value of loan notes The loan notes will bear interest from the date of i1ssue payable every 6 months in
arrears on June 30 and December 31 in each year, at 0 75 per cent below LIBOR per year The loan notes are redeemable at
par on interest payment dates commencing on June 30 2007 Any loan notes outstanding on 31 December 2016 will be
redeemed at par on that date

At October 24 2006 Euromoney was the beneficial owner of 97 2% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of Metal Bulletin Metal
Bulletin shareholders opting for the loan note alternative represent 5 2% of Metal Bulletin's share capital Accordingly o 1s
estimated that the cash component of the offer will be approximately £157 million

Metal Bulletin's balance sheet at the date of acquisition 15 $et out below An exercise is currently under way to establish the far

value of assets, habiities and contingent labilites at this date due to the timing of the acquisition, the directors therefore do not
consider 1t practicable to disclose these far values

Metal Bulletin plc

£000's
Goodwill and intangible assets 45,355
Other non-current assets 3,662
Current assets 10,836
Trade creditors and other payables {10,376}
Other current habilities (26,020)
Non-current habilities {17,600)
Net assets 5,857

Total Deryvatives Limited
In October 2006, the group acquired 67% of Total Derivalives, an oniine news service covenng the denvatives markets, for
£67m
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Notes to the Accounts continued

15 Trade and other receivables

2006 2005
£000's £000's
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors 35,134 30,447
Amounts owed by DMGT group undertakings (note 17) 23,259 16,449
Other debtors 6,923 2,125
Prepayments and accrued income 8,196 5,906
73,512 54,927
The directors consider the carrying amount of trade and other receivahles approximates ther farr values
The bad debt provision at September 30 2006 1s £3 8m (2005 £3 5m)
16 Trade and other payables
2006 2005
£000's £000's
Trade crediters 2,841 2,198
Amounts owed to DMGT group undertakings (note 17 60,451 47,635
Other creditors 16,887 12,204
Corporation tax 7,246 6,321
Deferred consideration for acquisitions 8,090 7,577
95,515 75,935

The directors consider the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their fair values
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Notes to the Accounts contnued

17 Financial instruments

Detalls of the objectives policies and strategies pursued by Euromoney m refation to financial instruments are set out on
pages 48 and 49 of the accounting pohicies The main financial nsks faced by Euromoney are market nsks including the effect
of changes in foreign exchanga rates, interest rates and hquidity nsks Denvatives are used to hedge or reduce the nsks of
interest rate and exchange rate movements and are not entered inte unless such nsks exists Denvatives used for hedging a
particular nsk are not specialised and are generally available from numerous sources

Liquidity risk
The group's hiquidity nsk 1s described in detail In section 4 of the Directors report Fixed and floaling rate borrowings analysed

by maturity are analysed below Borrowings are shown after taking account of related interest rate denvatives in designated
hedging relationships

2008 2005
Vanable Fixed Varable Fixed

rate rate Total rate rate Total
borrowings  borrowings valug horrowings borrowings value
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Within one year 58,666 - 58,666 41,250 4,183 45,433
after 2 years but within 3 years 2,361 63,169 65,530 - - -
after 3 years but within 4 years - - - - 62,518 62,518
61,027 63,169 124,196 41,250 66,701 107,951

At September 30 2006, £104 0 mulion (2005 £107 9 million} of borrowings were designated in US dollars The average rate
of interest paid on the debt was 3 2% (2005 3 4%)

Annual Report & Accounts 2006




Euromoney Institutional investor PLC

Notes to the Accounts continued

17 Financial instruments continued

Interest rate nisks

The group's Interest rate nsk 1s descnbed in detall 1n section 4 of the Directors report Euromeney's interest rate
exposure management policy aimed at optimising net interest cost and reducing volatiity This is achieved by modifying
the inlerest rate exposure of debt and cash positions throught the use of interest rale swaps

The group uses interest rate swaps o manage its exposure to interest rate movements on its bank borrowings

At September 30 2006, interest rates were fixed approximately for B6% of the net cash and borrowing positions
compared with 100% at September 30 2005

The following sensitivity analysis of borrowings and danvative financial instruments to interest rate movements assumes
an 1mmediate 100 basis point change in interest rate for all currencies and maturities from their levels at September 30
2006 with all the other vanables held constant The range of changes represents the directors' view of the changes that
are reasonably possible over a one year period based on these assumptions

A 100 basis point reduction of interest rate would result in an estimated decrease in net interest expense of £0 4 milion,
based on the composition of financial nstruments including cash, cash equivalents and bank loans at September 30
2006 A 100 basis point nse i interest rates would result in an estimated imcrease in net Interest expense of £0 4 million
The sensitivity of the fair value of financial instruments at September 30 2006 to changes in interest rates 1S set out 1n

the table below

Fair value
Carrying/ +100 basis -100 basis
fair value points points
£000's £000's £000's
Short term borrowings 58,666 58,666 58,666
Long term borrowings 65,530 65,530 65,530
Interest rate swaps 2,039 3,758 318

Short term borrowings compnse bank loans, net loans from DaWy Mail group companies and overdrafts due within cne
year Long term borrowings comprise of loans A 100 point basis change in interest rate would not result in a matenal
change to the farr value of any other financial instrument
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17 Financial instruments continued

Foreign exchange rate nsk

The group's foreign exchange rale nsk 1s described in detall In secion 4 of the Directors report The group operates In
many countrigs and 15 subject to nsks from changes n foreign currency values, maost particularly in respect of dollar
inflows These exposures are hedged, by the use of forward exchange contracts

At September 30 2006, the farr value of the group's currency dervatives I1s estimated to be approximately £1 0 million
{October 1 2005 habiity £19 million) These amounts are based on market values of equivalent instruments at the
balance sheet date, comprising £1 0 million 1n current assets included in derivative assets All currency denvatives have
been designated as hedges and tested as effective and the movement in fair value has been deferred to equity

The following senstwvity analysis of net borrowings and denvative financial instruments to foreign exchange rate
movements assumes an immediate 5% change in all foreign exchange rates aganst sterling as appropriate from their
levels at September 30 2006 with all the other vanables held constant A +5% change indicates a strengthening of the
currency against sterling and a - 5% change indicates a weakening of the currency against sterling The range of changes
represents the directors' view of changes that are reasonably possible over a one year penod based on these
assumptions

All foresgn exchange contracts are designated as hedges of future forecast transactions

Fair value
Carrying/ 5% change {5%) change
fair value
£000's £000's £000's
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1,030 2,933 {1,073}

A 5% change n foreign currency exchange rates would not resull In a matertal change to the fair value of any other
financial instrument
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18 Bank overdrafts and loans

2006 2005

£000's £000's
Bank overdraft 1,235 139
Deferred consideration for acquisitions - 8,689
Commitied facility 65,530 62,518
66,765 71,346

Committed facility

The group has a funding agreement which was entered info in October 2004 Euromoney is one of a number of approved
borrowers under a £300 millon five year committed banking facility As at September 30 2006 there were £50 4 milion of
other uncommitted un-drawn facilities drectly avallable to the group Interest s payable on this facility at a vanable rate above
US dollar LIBOR The vanable rate 1s betwsen 0 4% and 0 7%, dependant on net debt to EBITDA

In August 2006, the group entered into a dedicated £375 million three year mutti-currency facihty with DMG Radio Holdings
Limited, a subsichary of DMGT Interest 1s payable on this facility at a vanable rate of between 0 4% and 1 6% above LIBOR
At Seplember 30 20086, the group had not drawn down on this facility but remaned a borrower under the five year committed
faciity above Committed undrawn borrowings available to the group at September 30 2006 on the new facility were £200 4
million Subsequent to the year end the group, through the new facility, paid off its year end borrowings and purchased all of
the equity share capital of Meta! Bulletin pic (see note 14)

Amounts owed to DMGT group undertakings

The group borrows funds directly from DMGT under the same terms and conditions as the five year committed facility above
All borrowings for both the current and prior year are in US Dollars The directors consider the carrying amount of Group
borrowings approximates ta their fair value All these loans mature after more than a year
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19

20

Provisions
Onerous Group share of
lease netliabilities in Group
provision  joint ventures total
£000's £000's £000's
At Qctober 1 2005 1,111 14 1,125
Used In the year (292) - {292)
Exchange differences (56) - (56)
At Septembar 30 2006 763 14 777
Matunty profile of provisions
2006 2005
£000°s £000's
Within 1 year (included in current hiabilities) 329 254
Between 1 and 2 years (included m non current labilities) 310 332
Between 2 and 5 years {included 1n non current habilities) 138 539
777 1,125

Onerous lease provision
The onerous lease provision relates to certain buildings within the property portfolio which eiher through acquisition were rented at non-market
rales or are no longer occupied by the group

Deferred taxation

The net deferred tax asset at September 30 2006 compnsed

Acquisitions
Adoption of Income and
2005 IAS 32/38 statement Equity dispogals 2006
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Capitalised goodwill and intangibles (713) - (1,479) 612 {321} (1,971)
Tax deductible goedwill amertisation - - 12,078 - - 12,078
US and other overseas tax losses 4,334 - {612} - - 3,722
Financial instrurnents - 390 (72) (1,081) - {773}
Other short term temporary differences 5218 - 1,356 213 - 6,787
Deferred tax 8,839 390 11,271 (268) _{391) 19,843
Compnsing
Deferred tax assets 22,917
Deferred tax habilities (3074)
19!843

A deferred tax asset of £4,877,000 (2005 £3,175,000) has been recogruzed in respect of depreciation In excess of UK capital allowances,
financial nstruments and other short-term timing differences The directors are of the opimion that based on recent and forecast trading, it1s
prabable that the level of profits in future years are sufficient lo enable the asset to be recovered

Al the balance sheet date, the group has unused tax losses available for offset aganst future profits A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of £3,722,000 (2005 £4,334,000) The US losses can be camed farward for a penod of 20 years from the date they arose  The losses
have varying expiry dates from December 2018 to September 2025

A deferred tax asset of £14,317,000 (2005 £2,372,000) has been recognized n respect of tax deductible goodwll amortisaton and other
overseas shori-lerm iming differences  The directars are of the apinion that based on recent and forecast trading, 11 1s probable that the level of
profits i future years are sufficient 1o enable the asset to be recovered

A deferred tax asset of £5,975,000 has not been recognized in respect of overseas tax losses and other short term temporary differences (2005
£16,157,000) as directors do not betieve there 1s currently sufficient evidence that it 1s probable they will be recovered

Al the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences with undistnbuted eamings of subsidianes for which deferred tax
nabilites have not been recogmsed was £65 611,000 (2003 £85,785,000) No hability has been recogmised In respect of these differences
because the group 1s in a pesition to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it 1s probable that such differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future
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21

22

Called up share capital

2006 2005
£000's £000's
Authonized
112,000,000 ordinary shares of 0 25p each 280 280
Allotted, called up and fully paid
89,032,180 ordinary shares of 0 25p each
(2005 88,792,364 ordmary shares of 0 25p each) 223 222

Dunng the year, 239,816 ordinary shares of 0 25p each (2005 814,154 ordinary shares) with an aggregale nominal
value of £600 (2008 £2,035) were issued for a cash consideration of £730,344 (2005 £2,958,904) following the
exercise of share options granted under the company’s share option schemes

Between November 15 2006 and the year end the group i1ssued 13,560,040 new shares with a nominal value of 0 25p
each, as approved at the EGM on September 20 2006 in relation to the partial share alternative for the acquisihon of
Metal Bulletin PLC

Share-hased payments

Share options

The following options are outstanding at September 30 and are options to subscnbe for new ordinary shares of 0 25p
each in the company

Number of ordinary shares under option

Option price
{Lapsed/
exercsed)

2005 fissued 2006 £

Period during which option may be exercised
Before February 7 2006 10,000 (10,000} - 333
Befare February 6 2007 28,448 (8,000) 20,448 355
Before January 6 2008 35,564 (17,580} 17,984 396
Before January 28 2009 244 000 (54,000} 180,000 419
Before February 10 2009 160,000 - 160,000 396
Before June 24 2009 540,000 - 540,000 43
Before January 4 2010 160,000 (4 000) 156,000 563
Before March 1 2011 282,000 (25,000) 257,000 538
Before January 22 2012 188,000 {50,000) 138,000 335
Between December 4 2005 and December 3 2012 448,000 (20,000} 428,000 259
Between February 1 2006 and July 31 2006 103,205 (103,205) - 208
Between January 28 2007 and January 27 2014 426,000 (32,000) 394,000 419
Between February 1 2007 and July 31 2007 39,047 (9,048) 29,999 124
Between January 4 2008 and July 3 2008 42,424 (9.470) 32,954 338
Between February 1 2008 and July 31 2009 - 83,580 83,580 369

2,706,688 (258,723) 2,447,965

Capital Appreciation Plan (CAP)

The CAP executive share option scheme was approved by shareholders on February 1 2005 Each of the CAP
awards compnses an option to subscnbe for ordinary shares of 0 25p each in the company for an exercise price of
¢ 25p per ordinary share The awards become exercisable on satisfaction of certain performance conditions and
lapse to the extent unexercised on September 30 2014 In the event that the performance canditions are achieved,
the optien pool {of @ maximum of 7 5 million shares) will be allocated between the holders of outstanding awards One
third of the awards will vest immediately, with the other two thirds vesting in equal tranches in the following two years,
but anly If the specified profit target 15 matntained Otherwise vesting 1s deferred until the profits achieved in 2008 are
achieved agam, but no later than by reference to the year ending September 30 2013 The CAP expense recognised
in the year was £4,307,000 (2005 £1,289,000)
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22 Share based payments continued

Share Option Schemes

The company has nine share option schemes for which an IFRS2 charge has been recognized Detalls of these schemes are set out in the
Directors Remuneration report on pages 27 to 40 The fair value per oplion granted and the assumplions used in the calculation are shown
helow

Options were valued using the Black-Scholes option-pncing modeil

Exacutive Options SAYE
1 2 3 4
Date of Grant December 4  January28  February 1 February 1 January 4 January 6
2002 2004 2003 2004 2005 2006
Market value at date of grant {p} 259 419 260 405 433 458
QOption Pnce (p} 259 419 208 324 338 369
Number of share options outstanding 428,000 384,000 98,917 39,401 42,424 92,393
Term of option (years) 55 55 3 3 3 3
Penod of exercise after vestng (years) 4 4 3 3 3 3
Exercise price (p) 259 419 208 324 338 369
Risk-free rate 4 80% 4 80% 4 80% 4 80% 4 80% 4 80%
Volatty 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 30%
Fair value per option (£) 052 072 o7 111 122 124
CAP
Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
June 20 June 20 June 20
Date of Grant 2005 2005 2005
Market value at date of grant (p} 401 401 401
Option Pnce {p) 025 025 025
Number of share options outstanding 2,200,000 2,200,000 2,200,000
Term of oplion {years} 328 453 553
Period of exercise after vesting (years) 328 453 583
Exercise pnce (p} 025 025 025
Risk-free rate 4 80% 4 80% 4 80%
Volatiity 30% 30% 0%
Fair value per option (£) 328 302 282
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24

25

Statement of movement on reserves

Liability
Share Capital for share
premium  redemption Own based FairVatue Transtation Retained
account resarve shares payment ressrves resarves  eamings Total
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's EQDO's
At October 1 2004 34,393 8 {74} 99 - - {91 786} {57 360)
Retaned profit for the year - - - - - - 30,181 30,181
Exchange differances ansing on translaton of net
mvestments in overseas subsidiary undertakings - - - - - (1,300) - (1 300)
Credit for share-based payments - - - 1,380 - - - 1380
Dvidends paid - - - - - - (13 376) (13 376)
Exercisa of share optons 2,958 - . - - - - 2,958
Tax on gems going through reserves - - - - - - (264) {264}
At September 30 2005 37,351 8 (74) 1,479 - (1.300) ~ (75.245)  (37,781%)
Impact of adoption of 1AS39 on October 1 2005 - - - . (599) - (21 248) {21 84T)
Retained profit for the year - - - - - - 37,430 37,430
Changes In acquistion commsments - - - {4,728) (4 7T2B)
Exchange differences ansing on transiation of net
Investments in overseas subsidiary undertakings - - - - - 1,066 - 1,056
Net exchange difference on fareign cumency loans - - - - 3183 . - 3,183
Change in fair value of available for sale investments - - - - 405 - - 405
Change in far value of hedges - - - . 3,629 - - 3,629
Credt for share-based payments - - - 4,428 - - - 4428
Dvidends paid - - - - - - (14 563) {14 583)
Transfer to reserves - - - - - - - -
Exercise of share options 730 - - - - - - T30
Tax on tams going through reserves - - - - - - (265) (265)
Other movements - - - - - - {23} {231
At September 30 2006 38,081 8 {74) 5,807 8,618 {244} {78,642} (28,346)

The nvestment in own shares is held by the Euromoney Employees’ Share Ownership Trust {(ESOT) At September 30 2006 the ESOT held 58 976 shares camed
at a histone cost of £1 25 per share with a market value of £270,000 (2005 58,000 shares with a market valua of £242 0003, and waived the nghts to receive
dividends Interest and administrative costs are charged to the profit and loss account of the ESOT as incurred

Acquisitien option commitments

The group 1§ party to a number of put opbons over the remaining minonty ang majorty interests in its subswdiaries jont ventures, associates and investments JAS
39 'Financal Instruments’ requires the recogniten of acquistion labikhes The group has taken advantage of the transiional rules available under IAS 39 and hence
the adopton of IAS 39 has no impact on accounting for financial denvatives for 2005 The effactive date of adoption of IAS 39 1s Oclober 1 2005 As at September
30 2006, the discounted present value of these ophons 18 £24,332,000 (October 1 2005 £20,089 000} In the yeer to Seplember 30 2006 onwards these discounts
are unwound as a notonal interest charge to the income statement. Full detalls of the impact of the adoption of Intemnabonal Financial Standards are set out n note
29

Commitments

At September 30 2008 the group has committed 1o make the following payments i respact of operaiing leases on land and buildings
2006 2005
£000's E000's

Within ona year 3T 3,582
Between 2 and five years 12,931 14,297
After 5 years 17,772 21,433

34,424 39,312
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Notes to the Accounts continued

26

27

0

(w)

{m)
(v}

(v)

(vn)

Contingent liabihties and assets

Clatms in Malaysia

Four wnts claiming damages for libel were 1ssued in Malaysia against the company and three of ils employees in respect of an
article published in one of the company's magazines, International Commarcial Litigation, in November 1985 The wnts were
served on the company on October 22 1996 The total amount clamed 1s 260 million Malaysian nnggis (£40 2 million) No
provision has been made for these claims in these financial statements as the directors do not beheve the company has any
matenial lability in respect of these writs

Related party transactions

The group has taken advantage of the exemption allowed under I1AS 24 ‘Refated party disclosures' not to disclose transactions
and balances between group companies that have been ehminated on consolidation Other related party transactions and
balances are detalled below

The group has a loan faciity from Daily Mail and General Holdings Limited and provides the same loan facility to Associated
Newspapers North America, Inc  The amount owing and recevable at September 30 2006 was US$43 6 million (£23 3 mithon)
which mcludes accrued interest  Each balance was repayable within one month of demand and bears interest at the US pnme
rate +1%

The company has a credit faciity with Daily Mail and General Holdings Limiled As at September 30 2006 the dollar loan was
£14 2 millign {US$22 5 milhon) (2005 £28 8 mullion (US $510 million}}, the stering foan £19 9 millon (2005 £nil} A igan
arrangement fee of £1 1 miflion was pad to DMGR Holdings hmited in respect of the new banking faciity

The group expensed £390,000 (2005 £233,000) for services provided by Daily Mail and General Trust plc

At September 30 2006 the group had £63 2 million fixed rate interest rate swaps outstanding with Daily Mail and General
Holdings Limited amounting to US$118 0 milion at interest rates between 27 % and 4 9 % and terminalion dates between
March 30 2007 and March 31 2011 Durng the year the group recewved $12 million (2005 paid $0 7 million} of interest to
Daily Mal and General Holdings Limited in respect of interest rate swaps

In Apnl 2006 (2005 January), CR Brown, a directer of the company, was advanced, under the terms of lus contract, $100,000
{2005 $117,000) in respect of part of hus profit share payment normally paid to him at the end of the year At September 30
2006 the balance by Mr Brown to the group was $nil (2005 $nib)

There 15 an annual pul optien agreement over the sale of Internet Secunties, Inc {IS1) shares between the company and
G Mueller, a director of the company The annual put option values these shares based on the valuation of ISI as determined
by an independent financial adviser Under the terms of the agreement consideration caps have been put In place that require
the maximum consideration payable to option holders to be capped at an amount such that the results of any relevant class
tests, would at the relevant tme, fail beiow the requirement for shargholder approval

In January 2006, under the pul option agreement, Mr Mueller sold 67,614 shares valued at $13 10 (2005 69,999 shares
valued at $8 72 per share) for a total consideration of $885,743 (2005 $610,391) Also in January 2006, Mr Mueller exercised
27,024 options with an exercise pnce of $7 40, 16,653 options with an exercise pnce of $8 95 and 3,937 options with an
exercise pnce of $7 07 realising a gain of $154,036, $69,1 10 and $23,740 respectively Mr Mueller retained the shares

The compensation pad or payable for key management personnel 15 set oul below Key management includes the executive
and non-executive directors as set out in the remuneration report and other key divisional directors who are nol on the board

Key management compensation 2008 2005
£000's £000's
Salanes and short-term employee benefits 9,701 8,270
Non-executive director's fees 178 183
Post-employment benefits 883 725
Other long-lerm benefits (all share-based) 1,387 387
12,149 9,566
Of which
Executive directors 10,030 8,068
Nen-executive directors 178 183
Dwvisignal directors 1,941 1,314
12,148 9 566

Details of the remuneration of directors I1s given in the Remuneration report
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Notes to the Accounts continued

28 Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The directors regard the ulimate parent undertaking as Rothermere Continuation Limited, which 1s incorparated n
Bermuda The ultimate controlling party 1s The Viscount Rothermere The largest and smallest group of which the company
's a member and for which group accounts are drawn up 15 that of Daily Mail and General Trust plc, incorporated n Great
Bntain and registered in Engtand and Wales Copies of the report and accounts are available from

The Company Secretary

Daily Mall and General Trust plc
Northeliffe House, 2 Derry Street
London W8 5TT
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Notes to the Accounts continued

29 First time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

Euromoney has adopted International Financial Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU with effect from January 1
2005 with a transition date to IFRS of October 1 2004, with the transitional year being the year ended September 30
2005 IAS 32 and IAS 39 with respect of financial instruments have been applied with effect from October 1 2005

The group has elected to take the following key exemptions on transition to IFRS

IFRS 3 - Business combmnations

The group has chosen not to restate histonic business combinations distinguishing between goodw:ll and other
intangibte assets to comply with IFRS 3 The goodwill carrying value has not therefore been adjusted between
the UK GAAP balance sheet as at September 30 2004 and the IFRS opering balance sheet at October 1 2004

JAS 16 - Valuation of fixed assets

The group has elected not to use farr value as deemed cost for any items of property, plant and equipment at the
date of transition

IFRS 2 - Share based payments

IFRS 1 provides an exemption which allows companies to only apply IFRS 2 to share based payment awards
granted after November 7 2002 and unvested at October 1 2004 The group has taken advantage of this
exemption and elected to only apply IFRS 2 to share options granted on December 4 2002, February 1 2003
(SAYE options), January 28 2004, February 1 2004 (SAYE options), January 4 2005 (SAYE options) and June
20 2005 (Capital Appreciation Pian)

1AS 21 - The effects of changes n foreign exchange rates

IAS 21 states that cumulative foreign exchange movements created on the translation of foreign entihies should
be disclosed n a separate reserve within shareholders’ funds On disposal of a foreign entity, the cumulative
exchange gains of losses associated with that entity should be recycled through the income statement as part of
the gain or loss on disposal The group has taken the exemption under IFRS 1 whereby cumulative exchange
differences are deemed to be zero at the date of transition to IFRS The gain or loss on any subsequent
disposals will therefore exclude any translation gains of losses prior to the date of transition

IAS 32 - Financral Instruments Disclosure and Presentation, IAS 39 - Financial Instruments Recognition
and Measurement

Under IFRS 1, the group has taken the option to defer the implementation of 1AS 32 and IAS 39 to the year
ending September 30 2006 Therefore, financial instruments were accounted for and presented In accordance
with UK GAAP for the year ended September 30 2005

1AS 12 - Deferred tax

Under UK GAAP, the group recognised deferred tax on tming differences that arose from the inclusion of gains
and losses n tax assessments in penods different from those in which they were recognised 1n the financial
statements (an income statement approach)

Under IAS 12, deferred tax I1s recogrised in respect of temporary differences ansing between the tax base and

the accounting book value of balance sheel tems (a balance sheet approach) This results in deferred tax being
recognised on certain items that would not have given rise to deferred tax under UK GAAP
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Notes to the Accounts continued

29 First time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards continued
The most significant areas of change for the group on adoption of IFRS are summarnsed below

a) IFRS 3 - Goodwl! and other intangibles
Under IFRS 3 'Business combinations’, goodwill 1s no longer amortised and, instead, 1 assessed annually for
impairment As discussed above, goodwill ansing on acquisiions before October 1 2004 will not be restated
The group has reviewed the goodwill balances for imparrment as at October 1 2004 and September 30 2005
and no imparment was identified at either date

Intangible assets ansing from acquisitions after October 1 2004 wili be separately identified and amortised over
their estmated useful economic fives, potentially over shorter penods than goodwill has previously been
amortised

As a result of this change, the group's operating profit for the year ended September 30 2005 has been
increased by the amount of goodwill amortisation recorded under UK GAAP (amounting to £5 7milion) but
reduced by the amortisation of other purchased intangible assets

b) IAS 21 - Retranslation of goodwill

Under UK GAAP, goodwill ansing on foreign subsidiary invesiments held in the consolidated balance sheet 15
translated into sterling at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of acquisition Under IAS 21 'The effects
of changes in foreign exchange rates’ this goodwill 1s rebased back into the enginal currency (usually US dollars)
and retranslated into sterling at the applicable penod end exchange rates Any exchange difference ansing Is
taken to equity as part of the retranslation of the net assets of the subsidiary (see 4)) below) This has resulted
in a decrease In goodwill of £17 millon and £04 million, at October 1 2004 and Seplember 30 2005
respectively

¢) IFRS 1 - Exceptional loss on sale of business
IFRS 1 no longer requires goodwill previously written off o reserves under UK GAAP 1o be re-instated in the
income statement on disposal As a result, the exceptional loss on sale of business n 2005 of £1 Om 1s reduced
by £0 7m to £0 3m

d) 1AS 27 - Joint venture reclassification

The group has a 50% holding n World Link Publications Limited which, under UK GAAFP, 1s treated as a
subsidiary undertaking and fully consolidated in the group's resulls because the group exercises dommnant
influence over the subsidiary's operating and financial policies 1AS 27 ‘Consolidated and separale financial
statements’ only recognises the legal form of the 50% holding and therefore the investment must be accounted
for as a joint venture

e) IAS 38 - Software costs
Under UK GAAP, capiialised software costs are included within tangble fixed assets on the balance sheet
Under IAS 38 'Intangible assets’ such items, where they are not an integral part of the related hardware, should
be disclosed separately on the face of the balance sheet This has resulted In a reclassification of £0 4m and
£0 5m n the balance sheets as at October 1 2004 and September 30 2005 respectively There 18 no related
impact on the income statement or net assets
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Notes to the Accounts continued

20 First time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards continued

f} IFRS 2 - Share based payments
The group operates a range of share based incentive schemes

IFRS 2 'Share based payments’ requires a charge to be recogmised in the income statement for share options,
long-term Incentive plans and other share based payments (including SAYE options), based on the farr value at
grant date, using an appropnate option pricing model The farr value of the these options is charged against
profits over the period from grant date to vesting (the vesling period) This differs from UK GAAP UITF 17
'Employee share schemes', which requires thal the charge lo the profit and loss account should be based on the
difference between the markel value of shares at the date of grant and the exercise price (1e an intrinsic value
basis) and spread over the performance period In addition, as permitted under UK GAAP, UITF 17 has never
been applied to SAYE share options The difference between the imputed charge under UITF 17 and IFRS 2 on
the group's Capital Appreciation Plan options issued on June 20 2005 1s £0 1m at September 30 2005

As stated In note 3, the group has taken advantage of the exemption allowed to it under IFRS 1 and will not
recognise a charge on its options granted before November 7 2002 and unvested at October 1 2004 Under
IFRS 2, the imputed charge on its options issued on December 4 2002, February 1 2003 (SAYE options),
January 28 2004, February 1 2004 (SAYE options), and January 4 2005 (SAYE options) has resulted in a
reduction In the group’s reported operating profit as, under UK GAAP, no cost 1s Incurred on these oplions as
there was no difference between the grant and exercise price for the issues of shares concerned

The pre-tax impact of IFRS 2 on the results for the periods ended September 30 2005 is a charge of £0 2 milhon
There 1s no effect on net assets

g) |IAS 38 - Deferred marketing costs
Under UK GAAP, the group, lo the extent that the costs are expected to be recoverable, defers marketing and
promotional expenditure relating to future events and holds these on its balance sheet until those events have
taken place

Under IAS 38 'Intangible assels’, the deferral of event promolional costs until the running of the event Is
speciically disallowed, and these costs will therefore be expensed as incurred This has resulted in a reduction
In the group's reported pre-tax operating profit of £0 3 million for the year ended September 30 2005 and a
reduchion 1n net assets at October 1 2004 of £0 8 million

h} IAS 17 - Leases
The group has a property lease with pre-determmned fixed rent increases Under UK GAAP these are treated as
inflationary Increases, and a steady inflationary increase n the rental charge 1s recognised each year over the
lease term IAS 17 ‘Leases' requires that the total rental payments spectied by the lease are recogniséd on a
straight-line basis over the course of the lease, with a constant rental charge recognised each year

The pre-tax impact of 1AS 17 on the results for the period ended September 30 2005 15 a £0 1 million charge
The cumulative pre-tax reduchion in net assets at October 1 2004, September 30 2005 15 £0 4 million and £0 5
milhon respectively

1) IAS 19 - Employee benefits

Under UK GAAP the group does not account for employees’ unused accrued holiday Under IAS 19 any accrued
hohday entitiement that has not been taken by employees at the penod end 1s recognised as a creditor Any
movement n the creditor between penods 15 charged or credited to the income statement

The pre-tax impact of IAS 19 on the results for the penod ended September 30 2005 1s a charge of £32,000

The reduction In net assets at October 1 2004 and September 30 2005 1s £06 milion and £06 million
respectively
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Notes to the Accounts continued

29 First time adoption of international financial standards continued

1) 1AS 32 and IAS 39 - Financial Instruments - adopted from October 1 2005

As permitted by IFRS 1 *First time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards”, the group has
elected to defer the implementation of IAS 39 until the year ending September 30 2006 The effect of the
adoption of IAS 39 at October 1 2005 i1s to reduce net assets by £21 9 milion, due to the following
adjustments

Forward exchange contracts and interest rate swaps
IAS 39 requrres that derivative financial instruments are recognised on the balance sheet at ther far
value At October 1 2005 the effect on the group balance sheet was to reduce net assets by £0 6 milion

Derecogmition of habilities

IAS 39 sets out specific critena in relation to when a financial hability should be derecognised Application
of this resulted in an increased lability of £1 6 million which was recognised on the balance sheet from
October 1 2005

Acquisition option commitments

The group Is party to a number of put options over the remaining minority interests in its subsidiaries  1AS
39 requires the recogrition of a liability in respect of these acquisition option commitments  As at October
1 2005, the discounted present value of these options 1s £201 mihon From October 1 2005 these
discounts are unwound as a notional Interest charge to the ncome statement

Net investment hedging

Under UK GAAP, exchange differences ansing from long term foreign currency funding can be offset
against the net assets of foreign subsidiaries, including goodwill held in reserves 1AS 39 Iimits the extent
of the hedging, only allowing exchange differences ansing from long term foreign currency funding to be
offset aganst the net assets of foreign subsidianes, excluding goodwill previously written off to reserves,
with any remaining exchange difference being recognised in the profit and loss account There is no effect
on the October 1 2005 opening balance sheet but the adoption of IAS 39 may lead to volatility of earnings
for the year ended September 30 2006 onwards As explamed above in 4b) as part of the conversion to
IFRS the group has chosen to rebase its gocdwll relating to foreign subsidiary investments held on its
consolidated balance sheet from sterling into dollars

Deferred tax
A deferred tax asset of £0 4 million has been recognized on the above adjustments

K) IAS 10 - Events after the balance sheet date
IAS 10 requires that dividends declared after the balance sheet date should not be recognised as a
llabiity at the balance sheet date as the liability does not represent a present abligation as defined by 1AS
37 'Provisions, contingent habilibes and contingent assets’

As a result the final dividends for the financial year ended September 30 2004 (£8 8m) and September 30
2005 (£9 8m) have not been recognised in the group’s IFRS restated balance sheets at October 1 2004
and September 30 2005 respectively The final dividend for the year ended September 30 2004 has been
charged drrectly to equity n the group's IFRS balance sheet as at September 30 2005, following its
approval by shareholders on February 1 2005

1) IAS 12 - Deferred and current taxes
Under UK GAAP, the group recognised deferred tax on items that arose from the inclusion of gains and
losses In tax assessments v periods different from those in which they were recognised in the financial
statements (an Income statement approach)

Under 1AS 12 'Deferred tax', deferred tax 1s recogmsed In respact of temporary differences on the
difference between the tax base and the accounting book value of balance sheet items (a balance sheet
approach) This results in a deferred tax ability of £0 1mifion and £0 8 million as at Oclober 1 2004and
September 30 2005 respectively being recognised on certan items that would nol have given rise to
deferred tax under UK GAAP

Annual Report & Accounts 2006




Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Notes to the Accounts continued

29 First time adoption of international financial standards continued

1) IAS 12 - Deferred and current taxes confinue

Addttionally, a deferred tax asset of £1 0m as at October 1 2004 and September 30 2005 has been
provided on the adjustments outined in this announcement

The key differences for the group between UK GAAP and IAS 12 are as follows

(1} Under UK GAAP, recognition of deferred tax in respect of rolled over capital gains 1s not required,
whereas IFRS requires provision for deferred tax on such gains

(1) Goodwill written off to reserves under UK GAAP, prior to the introduction of FRS 10, gave nse to a
potential deferred tax hability under UK GAAP However, the reverse 1s true under IFRS, where a potental
deferred tax asset anses

(m) Under UK GAAP, the group was permitted to discount deferred tax assets and habihties, whereas IFRS
does not pernmit discounting

(v} As amoriisation of goodwill I1s not permitted under IFRS, the potental deferred tax n respect of
capitalised tax deductible goodwill will be more significant under IFRS
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Independent Auditors' Company Report

Indepandent auditors' report to the members of Euremoney Institutional Investor PLC

We have audited the individual company financial statements of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC for the year ended September 30
2006 which comprise the parent company balance sheet and the related notes 1 to 17 These individual company financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

The corporate governance statement and the directors' remuneration report are included n the group annuat report of Euromoney
Institutional Investor PLC for the year ended September 30 2006 We have reported separately on the group financial statements of
Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC for the year ended September 30 2006 and on the information in the directors’ remuneration report
that 1s described as having been audited

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Qur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them n an
auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsiblilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng the annual report and the indwvidual company financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Pracuce) are set out m the
statement of drectors’ responsibilities

Our responsibiity 1s to audit the individual company financial statements in accordance with relevant United Kingdom legal and
regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the individual cornpany financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with the
relevant financial reporing framework, and whether the individual company financial stalements have been properly prepared n
accordance with the Comparues Act 1985 We report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the directors’ report 15
consistent with the individual company financial statements We also report ta you If, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper
accounting records, If we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law
regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the directors’ report and the other information contained in the annual report for the above year as described in the contents
section and consider the implications for our report If we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsislencies with
the individual company financial statements

Basis of audit opimion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audibing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the individual company financial
statements 1t also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
ndividual company financial statements, and of whether the accounting pelicies are appropriate to the company's circumstances,
consistently applhied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order 1o
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the individual company financial statements are free from materal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other wregulanty or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information 1n the individual company financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion

* the individual company financial statements give a true and far view, in accordance with United Kingdorm Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the company's affairs as at September 30 2008,

* the individual company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

* the information given in the directors’ report 1s consistent with the financial statements

Dewide < o ucAnr Lef

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Regstered Auditors
London

November 15 2006
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Company Balance Sheet

as at September 30 2006

2005
2006 {Restated)
Note £000's £000's
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 6 8,228 8,228
Tangible assets 7 8,743 3,951
Investments 5 117,641 95,078
134,612 107,257
Current assets
Debtors 8 51,402 39,100
Cash at bank and in hand 5,870 4329
Denvative financial instruments 1,031 0
58,303 43,429
Craditors amounts falling due within one year ] (78,719) (70,856}
Net current ilabilities (20,416) {27,427)
Total assets less currant habilities 114,196 79,830
Creditors amaunts falling due after more than one year
Provision for labilties 10 (505) {674)
Accruals (18,505) {13,893)
Defarred income (10,684) (8,727
Accruals and deferred income falling due within one year (29,189) (22,620)
Net assets 84,502 56,536
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 223 222
Share premium account 38,080 37,351
Capital redemption reserve 8 8
Capital reserve 1,842 1,842
Own shares (74} (74}
Liatility for share based payments 12 2,893 652
Profit and loss account 11 41,530 16,535
Equity shareholders' funds 84,502 56,536

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC has taken advantage of section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 and has
not included its own profit and loss account in these accounts The profit after taxation of Euromoney
Institutiona! Investor PLC included in the group profit for the year 1s £42,330,000 (restated 2005 profit

£20,859,000}

The accounts were approveg by the board of directors on November 15 2006

/‘
Richard E LQKW\I

Colin Jones
Dirsctors
'
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Notes to the Company Accounts

1 Accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention except for denvatives financial instruments
which have been measured at fair value and in accordance with apphcable United Kingdom accounting standards
and the Urited Kingdom Companies Act 1985 The according policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated,
been applied consistently through current and prior year

Accounting policies

Foreign currencies

Transactions n foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction or, if
hedged forward, at the rate of exchange of the related foreign exchange contract Monetary assets and liabiliies
denominated In foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date

Leased assets
Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight ine or other systematic basis as
allowed by SSAP 21 'Accounting for Leases and Hire Purchase Contracts’

Pension schemes

Details of the company's pension schemes are set out in note 6 to the group accounts The company participates
in this Harmsworth Pension Scheme It 1s unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and habilites in the
this scheme The scheme is operated on an aggregate basis with no segregation of the assets to indmdual
participating employers and, therefore, the same contnbution rate 1S charged to all parhicipating employers {ie the
contnbution rate charged to each employer is affected by the expenence of the scheme as a whole) The scheme
s therefore accounted for as a defined contribution scheme by the company This means that the pension charge
included in these financial statements 1s the same as the cash contnbutions due in the penod

Preliminary restatement of 2005 financial information




Euromoney Institutional investor PLC

Notes to the Company Accounts continued

Accounting policies continued

Depreciation
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 15 provided on the straight-line basis over their expected useful ives
at the following rates per year

Freehold premises 2%

Long-term leasehold premises over term of lease

Short-term leasehold premises over term of lease

Office equipment 1% - 33%
Goodwill

Where the company has divisionalized the unincorporated businesses of its subsidianes, the investment In
the subsidiary then has the substance of goodwill and I1s reclassified accordingly Goodwill ansing in these
arcumstances 1s not amortized In the company where the direclors are of the view that the goodwill has an
indefinte economic hfe, but1s reviewed annually for impairment The non-amortization of goadwili represents
a departure from the Companies Act 1985 but 1s necessary to give a true and fair view under the provisions
of FRS 10 'Goodwill and Intangible Assets' It 1s not possible to quantify the impact of this departure, as it
would depend on the ife adopted As at September 30 2006, the total of such goodwill was £8,228,000
(2005 £8,228,000)

Taxation

Current tax, including UK corparation tax and foreign tax, Is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or
recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s calculated under the provisions of FRS 19 'Deferred Taxation’, and 15 provided In full on
timing differences that result in an obhgation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a nght to pay less
tax, at a fulure date, at rales expected to apply when the uming differences crystalize based on current tax
rates and law Deferred tax is not provided on timing differences on un-remitted earnings of subsidianes and
associates where there 1s no commitment to remil these earnings Deferred tax assets are only recogmzed
to the extent that it 1s regarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered

Dervatives and other financial instruments (pre Cctober 1 2005)

The group uses vanous financial mstruments to manage financial nsk ansing from fluctuations n foreign
currency movements Forward foreign currency contracts are used to manage this nsk

Currency swaps and forward foreign currency contracts are used to convert foreign currency funds into
sterling to meet sterling costs Realized exchange gains and losses are recognized 1n the profit and loss
account on matunty

Financial instruments {after October 1 2005)

Financial reporting standards 25 and 26 (FRS 25 & 26) 'Financial Instruments' have been adopted for the
first time 1n the year ended September 2006 The elements affecting the company are

Forward exchange coniracts and inferest rate swaps

FRS 26 requires all denvative financial instruments to be recognised in the balance sheet at therr farr values
At October 1 2005 the effect of FRS 26 on the group balance sheet was to reduce nel assets by £1 9 million
These hedges on a company basis are considered to not be effective hedges, the far value adjustments to
the denvalves are taken to the income slatement

Derecogmition of habilifies

FRS 26 sets out specific critena in relation to when a financial lability should be derecognised Application of
this rule resulted 1n an mncreased liability of £4 5 million which will be recognised in the October 1 2005
balance sheet This liability wali begin to be released in 2006
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Notes to the Company Accounts continued

1

Accounting policies continued

Financial instruments continued

Acquisttion option commitments

The company is party to a put and call option over the remaining minonty interests in on of its subsidianes
FRS 26 requires the recogmition in one of all acquisiion habilities As at October 1 2005, the discounted
present value of this option was £0 5 mithon From 2006 onwards these discounts will be unwound as a
notional interest charge to the iIncome statement

Opening Deferred tax has resulted in an opening deferred tax asset of £0 7 million being included In the
opening adjustment

Pnor year adjustments

Financial reporting standard 21 (FRS 21) ' Events after balance sheet date' has been adopted for the first
time 1n the year ended September 30 2006 Under FRS 21, proposed dividends do not meet the definition of
a liabiity until such time as they have been approved by shareholders at the Annual General mesting
Therefore, we no longer racognise a liability in any penod for dividends that have been proposed but will
note be approved until after the balance sheet date This applies for external dividends as well as intra-
group dividends paid to the company

Profit for the year as reported in 2005 was £6 5 milion This includes intra-group dividends of £4 4 million
which under FRS 21 'Events after balance sheet date’ are not recogmised untl they have been approved by
shareholders in the Annua! General meeting It also excludes intra group dividends of £3 8 million that would
have been recogmsed in 2004 but under FRS 21 'Events after balance sheet date’ are recognised in 2005
following the Annual General meeting approval

Under Financial reporting standard 20 (FRS 20) ‘Share based payments', the company makes share-based
payments to certain employees These are measured at the fair value at the date of grant, being market
value less exercise pnce The fair value determined at the grant date I1s expensed In the profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the vesting penod, based on the company’s estmate of the number of shares that
will eventually vest

The impact of FRS 20 on the results for the penod ended September 30 2005 is a credit of £0 6 million Inin
accordance with this standard, a new reserve ‘Liabilities for share based payments' has been created

The comparative amounts for the year ended September 30 2005 have been restated accordingly

Financial Reporting Standard 17 (FRS 17) ‘Retirement benefits' has been adopted for the first time in the
year ended September 30 2006 There was no impact on the Profit and Loss or the Balance Sheet
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Notes to the Company Accounts continued

2 Staff costs

2006 2005

£000's £000's

Salanes, wages and incentives 26,670 24 375
Soclal secunty costs 21N 2,938
Pension contributions 621 553
Share based compensation costs 2,468 798
32,530 28,665

Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 27 to 40 and in note 6 of the group
accounts

The ultmate parent company, Daily Mail and General Trust plc, is required to account for the defined benefit scheme under
International Accounting Standard 19 “Employee Benefits” ("IAS 19") The IAS 19 disclosures i the Annual Report and
Accounts of Darly Mail and General Trust plc have been based on the results of the actuana! valuation of the defined benefit
scheme as at March 31 2004 adjusted to allow for the assumptions and actuarial methodology required by IAS 19 and updated
to October 1 2006 by the scheme’s actuary These showed that the market value of the principal scheme's assets was £602 3
mdlion (2005 £518 4 milien) and that the actuanal value of these assets represented 90% (2005 83%) of the benefits that had
accrued to members (also calculated in accordance with 1AS 19) The vatuations and disclosures requued under IAS 19 for the
financia! statements of Daily Mail and General Trust plc are not matenally different to the valuations and disclosures required
under FRS 17

3  Number of staff 2006 2005
Average Average

Financial pubhishing 163 177
Business publishing 102 121
Tramng ' 89
Conferences and seminars 83 T0
Databases and information services 11 .
Central 185 175
Total 621 632

4 Remuneration of auditors 2006 2005
£000's £000's

Parent company statutory audit fee 318 270

5 Investments
Investments Available for

in associated sale Trade
Subsidiaries undertakings Investments investment Total
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
At October 1 2005 95,030 34 - 14 95,078
Disposal - - - - -
Acquisition 5601 - 19,740 - 2534
Change in farr value - - 405 - 405
Exchange differences (3 183} - - - {3,183)
At September 30 2006 97,448 a4 20,145 14 117,641

Details of the pnncipal subsidiary undertakings of the company at September 30 2006 can be found on page 68

6 Intangible fixed assets

Goodwiil
£000's
Cost
At October 1 2005 11,051
Addwons -
At September 30 2006 11,054
Amortization
At October 1 2005 2,823
Charge for the year' - -
At September 30 2006 2823
Net book value at September 30 2006 6
e
Net book value at September 30 2005 B 228

"The company does not amortize sts goodwill (note 1)
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Notes to the Company Accounts continued

7 Tangible Fixed Assets

Short-tarm
Freehold leasehold Office
premises premises equipment Total
£000's £000's £000's £000's
Cost
At October 1 2005 862 2,917 6,922 10,701
Additions - 6,067 1,007 7,074
Disposals {862) - - (862}
At September 30 2006 - 8,984 7,929 16,913
Depreciation
At October 1 2005 217 1.612 4921 6,750
Charge for the year 16 1,086 551 1,653
Disposals (233) - - {233)
At September 30 2006 - 2,698 5472 8,170
Net book value at September 30 2006 - 6,286 2,457 8,743
Net book value at September 30 2005 645 1,305 2,001 3,951
8 Debtors 2006 2005
£000's £000's
Due within one year
Trade debtors 15,494 14,388
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 26,571 18,912
Other deblors 1,168 985
Deferred tax 3,181 2,731
Prepayments and accrued income 4,988 2,084
51,402 39,100
9 Creditors 2006 2005
£000's £000's
Due within one year
Trade creditors 2,913 3,034
Amounts owed 1o DMGT group undertakings 63,707 36,482
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 674 23,401
Other creditors 8,284 5,545
Corporation tax 2,651 2,394
Dernwvative hability 490 -

78,719 70.856

10 Prowvisions for liabilities

2006 2005
Onerous lease provision £000’s £000's
At Qctober 1 674 -
Used in the year (169) -
Additional provision - 674
At September 30 505 674
2006 2005
£000's £000's
Maturity profile of provisions
Within 1 year 184 92
Between 1 and 2 years 184 184
Between 2 and 5 years 137 398
505 674

The onerous lease provision relates to certain bulldings within the property portfolic which either through acquisition were
rented at non-market rates or are no longer occupied by the group

Annual Report & Accounts 2006




Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Notes to the Company Accounts continued

1

12

13

14

15

Profit and loss account

Balance brought forward

Pnor year adjustment (see note 1)

Impact of adoption of FRS26 on October 1 2005 (Note 1)
At Qctober 1 - restated

Profit for the year

Final dimidend 2004 on ordinary shares of 10 Op

Final dwidend 2005 on ordinary shares of 11 Op

Intenm dividend 2005 on ordinary shares of 5 2p

Intenm dividend 2006 on ordinary shares of 54 p
Change In Farr value of avalable for sale mvesiments

Saptember 30 2006

Liability for share based payments

Balance brought forward

Pnor year adjustment (see note 1)

At October 1 - restated

Credn to equity for share based payments
September 30 2006

Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Balance brought forward

Pricr year adjusiment (see note 1)

Impact of adophion of FRS26 on October 1 2005 (Note 1)
At October 1 - restated

Profit for the year”

Drnadends pad

Change in Fair value of available for sale nvestments
Proceeds from 1ssue of shares for cash

Credit to equity for share based payments

Septembar 30 2006

Commitments
Operating leases which expire
Within one year

Between two and five years
Over five years

Financial Instruments

2006 2005
£000's £000's
16,535 4,071
. 4,980
{3,166) -
13,369 9,061
42,330 20,859
. (8,798)
(9,767)
- {4.577)
(4,807) -
405
41,530 16,535
2006 2005
£000's £000's
652 -
. 99
652 99
2,241 553
2006 2005
£000°s £000's
56,536 40,460
. 5079
(3,166) -
53,370 45,539
42,330 20,859
(14,574) {13,375)
405 .
730 2,960
2,241 553
34502 58,536
2006 2005
£000's £000's
65 48
253 269
892 892
7210 1703

Under FRS 26 *Financial Instruments’ the company has recognized forward exchange contracts with a fair vatue of £1,031,000 (2005 hability

£1,808,000) Full detalls regarding these can be found 1n note 17 to the group accounts
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Notes to the Company Accounts continued

16

17

Post balance sheet event

The directors propose a final dwvidend of 11 6p per share {totaling £11,907,000) for the year ended September 30 2006 the dividend wil! be
submitted for formal approval al the Annual General Meeting to be held on February 1 2007 In accordance with FRS 21, these financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable, which will be accounted for in shareholders' equiy as an appropation of retained earnings in the
year ending September 30 2007 During 2006, a finat dividend of 11 0 p per share (totaling £9,767,000) was paid in respect of the dividend
declared for the year ended September 30 2005

Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The directors regard the ulimate parent undertaking as Rothermere Continuation Limited, which 1s incorporated in Bermuda The ultimate
controlling party 1s The Viscount Rothermere The fargest and smallest group of which the company 15 a member and for which group accounts
are drawn up 15 that of Daily Mal and General Trust plc, ncorporated in Great Britain and registered in England and Wales Copies of the report

and accounts are available from

The Company Secretary

Daily Mail and General Trust plc
Northchffe House, 2 Derry Street
London W8 5TT
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Five Year Record

Group Income statement extracts | UK GAAP | IFRS
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Revenue 179,734 158,942 174,654 196,266 222276
Operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation, share 29,064 23,812 30,606 39,348 43,812
option expense and exceptional items
Capital appreciation plan expense - - - - -
Goodwill amortization (6.125) (14,617) {7,534) - -
Intangible amortisaton - - - - {144}
Share option expense - - - (1,380} (4,428)
Exceptional items - - - (3185) {716}
Operating profit before associates and joint ventures - - - 37,653 38,524
Share of results in associates and joint vantures - - - 624 1,208
Operating profit 22,939 9,195 23,072 38,277 39,732
Share of operating profit in associates 413 418 373 -
Exceptional profit/{loss), on disposal/closure of businesses 1,533 701 - -
Net finance costs {4,239) {2,918) (2,954) (3,843) {4,498)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 20,646 7.396 20,491 34,434 35,234
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 2,793 {3,101) {3,899) (2,417} 3,512
Profit on ordinary activities after tax 23,439 4,295 16,592 32,017 38,746
Equity minonty interests 38 (226) (578) (1,836) (1,318}
Profit for the financlal year 23477 4,069 16,014 30,181 37,430
Dividends paid and proposed (12,941) (12,941} {13,186}
Retained profit{loss) for the financial year 10,536 {8,872} 2,828
Basic earmings per share 26 76p 4 64p 18 22p 34 19p 42 11p
Diluted earmings per share 26 76p 4 64p 18 16p 34 10p 41 90p
Adjusted diluted earnings per share before goodwill amortization and
excaptional items 24 29p 20 50p 26T1p 2628p 2861 p
Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares (number) 87,735,087 87,737,261 88,160,349 88,508,359 89,340,024
Dividend per share 14 75p 14 75p 15 00p 16 20p 17 00p
Group balance sheet extracts
Intangible fixed assets 24,611 33,757 60,989 66,508 71,588
Tangible fixed assets 10,088 9,097 7.766 27.647 63,406
Net current assets/(hablities) 37,286 (2,118) (66,093) 3,924 7,334
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year {98,350} {64,680) (10,611) (72,188) (93,5313)
Provisions for labiibes and charges {127} - {575) (1,125) (777)
Accruals (17,258} (17,032) {148,569) (23,225) (29,478)
Deferred income {31,8486) (32,330) (35,317) (37.491) (45,324)
Net liabilities _{75,696) (73,306} (62,410} {35,950) (26,774)

The mncome statements, earmungs per share and dividends per share for 2005 and 2006 have been prepared under IFRS 2004 and earlier penods have
not been adjusted from UK GAAP as it is not practicable to restate these year's reports in accordance with IFRS Due to difierences between IFRS and UK
GAAP, these are some comparative inconsistencies in the above tables Refer to note 29 for an indication of the adjustments to comply with IFRS
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Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Internet Sites

Euromoney Institutional Investor
Internet Sites (all www )

abf-asta com

abf com sg

absolutereturn net

adhes com
airfinancejournal com
airtrafficmanagement net
asialaw com

astamoney com

ceicdata com
chinalawandpractice com
coaltrans com

degtraining com

dealogic com
emergingmarkels org
guromoney com
euromoneybooks com
euromoneyconferences com
guromoneyleasetraining com
euromoneypic com
euromoneyseminars com
euromoneytraining com
euromoney-yearbooks com
euroweek com

expertguides com
financialdirectories com
globalhnvestormagazine com
globaltelecomsbusiness com
gulfpub com
hedgefundintelhigence com
hydrocarbonprocessing com
fir com

fir1000 com

nconferences com

irevents com

#ournals com
nmemberships com
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nnews com
nresearchgroup com
iisearches com

1mn org
nstitutronahnvestor com
internationaltaxreview com
1sfmagazine com
latinfinance com
legalmediagroup com
managingip com
medadnews com
metalbulletin com

mist com

mistieurope com
petroleum-economist com
pharmalive com
projectfinancemagazine com
ravenfox com

reactionsnet com
securtties com

sfinews net

telcap co uk
totaldernvalives com
tradefinancemagazine com
worldoit com

For further information on all Eurcmoney
Institutional Investor products, call the Hotline on
(UK} +44 (0) 207 779 8999
(US) +1 800437 9997 or

+1 212 224 3570

or e-mail to

hothine@seuromoneyple com
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